
 

 
 

 
 
 

  Shropshire Council 
Legal and Democratic Services 
Shirehall 
Abbey Foregate 
Shrewsbury 
SY2 6ND 

   
Date:   Friday, 26 February 2021 
 

 
Committee: Cabinet 
 
Date: Monday, 8 March 2021 
Time: 1.00 pm 
Venue: THIS IS A VIRTUAL MEETING - PLEASE USE THE LINK ON THE AGENDA TO 
LISTEN TO THE MEETING 
 
Members of the public will be able to listen to this meeting by clicking on this link: 

 
http://shropshire.gov.uk/CabinetMeeting8March2021 

 

 Please note that this meeting will be made available through Microsoft Teams Live Events - 
your device will need to meet the minimum specification as detailed on the Microsoft 
website at this link: Device Specification 

 You will need to download MS Teams (free) and click on the link to listen to the meeting if 
you are using a PC.  

 If using a mobile device, you will need to download the MS Teams app (free) before clicking 
the link.  

 Use the link at 1.00 pm on the day of the meeting and click on ‘Join as Guest’.  

 You may receive an error message or a request for login details if you try to gain access 
before 1.00 pm. 

 The recording will be made available on You Tube following the meeting. 
 
You are requested to attend the above meeting.  
The Agenda is attached 
 
Claire Porter 
Head of Legal and Democratic Services (Monitoring Officer) 
 
Members of Cabinet  
Peter Nutting (Leader) 
Steve Charmley (Deputy Leader) 
Gwilym Butler 
Dean Carroll 
Lee Chapman 
 
 

Steve Davenport 
Robert Macey 
David Minnery 
Lezley Picton 
Ed Potter 

 
 

Public Document Pack

http://shropshire.gov.uk/CabinetMeeting8March2021
https://support.office.com/en-gb/article/get-started-with-microsoft-teams-live-events-d077fec2-a058-483e-9ab5-1494afda578a#bkmk_systemreq


Your Committee Officer is:  
 
Amanda Holyoak  Senior Democratic Services Officer 
Tel:   01743 257714 
Email:   amanda.holyoak@shropshire.gov.uk 



AGENDA 
 
1  Apologies for Absence  

 
 

2  Disclosable Pecuniary Interests  
 
 

3  Minutes  
 
The minutes of the meeting held on 8 February 2021 are to follow 
 

4  Public Question Time  
 
To receive any questions from members of the public, notice of which has been given in 
accordance with Procedure Rule 14.  Deadline for notification is not later than 1.00 pm on 
Thursday 4 March 2021 
 

5  Member Question Time  
 
To receive any questions from members of the public, notice of which has been given in 
accordance with Procedure Rule 14.  Deadline for notification is not later than 5.00 pm on 
Wednesday 3 March 2021. 
 

6  Scrutiny Items (Pages 1 - 6) 
 
Report from Communities Overview Committee on the Shropshire Affordable Housing 
Allocation Policy and Scheme is attached.   
 

7  The Cliffe Designation as Local Nature Reserve (Pages 7 - 16) 
 
Lead Member – Councillor Lezley Picton – Portfolio Holder for Culture, Leisure, Waste 
and Communications 
 
Report of Director of Place 
 
Contact:  Mark Barrow 01743 258916 
 

8  Strategic Development Framework (Pages 17 - 30) 
 
Lead Member – Councillor Steve Charmley – Deputy Leader and Portfolio Holder for 
Assets, Economic Growth and Regeneration   
 
Report of Director of Place, attached (Appendix A to Follow) 
 
Contact:  Mark Barrow 01743 258916 
 

9  Financial Monitoring Report Quarter 3 2020/2021 (Pages 31 - 76) 
 
Lead Member – Councillor David Minnery – Portfolio Holder Finance and Corporate 
Support 
 
Report of Director of Finance, Governance and Assurance attached 
 
Contact:  James Walton 01743 258915 



 
10  Hackney Carriage Table of Fares (Pages 77 - 92) 

 
Lead Member – Councillor Gwilym Butler – Portfolio Holder for Communities, Place 
Planning and Regulatory Services 
 
Report of Director of Adult Social Care, Housing and Public Health 
 

Contact:  Tanya Miles, 01743 258663 
 
 

11  Quarter 3 Corporate Performance Report (Pages 93 - 106) 
 
 
Lead Member – Councillor Lee Chapman – Portfolio Holder for Organisational 
Transformation and Digital Infrastructure 
 
Report of Chief Executive 
 
Contact:  Andy Begley, tel 01743 258675 

 
 

12  Exclusion of Press and Public  
 
To resolve that in accordance with the provisions of Schedule 12A of the Local 
Government Act 1972 and Paragraph 10.4 (3) of the Council’s Access to Procedure 
Rules, the public and press be excluded from the meeting during the consideration of the 
following item 
 

13  Shrewsbury Pitch and Putt (Pages 107 - 116) 
 
Lead Member – Councillor Steve Charmley – Deputy Leader and Portfolio Holder for 
Assets, Economic Growth and Regeneration   
 
Report of Director of Place, attached 
 
Contact:  Mark Barrow 01743 258916 
 



 

 Committee and Date 

 

Cabinet 

 

8 March 2021 

 

 Item 

 

 

Public 

 

 

Shropshire Affordable Housing Allocation Policy and Scheme – suggested 

revisions 

 

Responsible officer 

Danial Webb – overview and scrutiny officer 

danial.webb@shropshire.gov.uk 

01743 258509 

 

1.0 Summary 

1.1 This report lists suggested areas of review of the current Shropshire Affordable 

Housing Allocation Policy and Scheme, in order to assist Shropshire Council’s 

Housing Services Manager to update the policy. The report was approved by the 

Communities Overview Committee on 25 January 2021. 

  

2.0 Recommendations 

2.1 That Cabinet note the report. 

 

3.0 Opportunities and risks 

3.1 The Shropshire Affordable Housing Allocation Policy and Scheme ensures that 

housing associations and other social landlords agree a single policy that 

allocates social housing fairly while also meeting the local authority’s corporate 

objectives. It also provides residents and those from outside Shropshire seeking 

to apply for social housing with clear and consistent criteria with which to 

determine if and when to apply for housing. 

 

3.2 A failure to update the Shropshire Affordable Housing Allocation Policy and 

Scheme could result in a policy that does not take into account new legal and 

regulatory obligations that have come into force since approval of the previous 

draft of the policy. Furthermore, a policy that does not reflect corporate, 

community or social objectives could result in allocating properties to residents 

deemed to be not a priority for social housing. This could in turn erode trust in the 

allocations policy among Shropshire residents and those seeking to move to 

Shropshire. 

  

4.0 Financial assessment 

4.1 Drafting and reviewing the housing allocations policy is an administrative task that 

forms part the council’s regular work. There are therefore no cost implications in 

carrying out this review. 

  

Page 1

Agenda Item 6



Communities Overview Committee 25 January 2021: Shropshire Affordable Housing Allocation Policy and Scheme – 
suggested revisions 
 

 2 

5.0 Report 

5.1 In November 2020 the Communities Overview Committee received a report from 

Shropshire Council’s Housing Services Manager that gave an overview of 

Shropshire Homepoint. At this meeting, it was noted that the Shropshire 

Affordable Housing Allocation Policy and Scheme (the allocations policy) had not 

been updated since 2014. At the manager’s suggestion, the committee agreed to 

carry out a review of the policy, with a view to providing elected member input into 

a revised policy. 

 

5.2 A working group of the Communities Overview Committee (the group) carried out 

this work in an informal meeting with the housing services manager in December 

2020.   

 

5.3 To support this review, the committee also invited other elected members of the 

local authority to contribute through a questionnaire sent out to all members. In 

total 21 elected members contributed to the review through this questionnaire. 

The group considered these responses in tandem with its section-by-section 

review of the allocations policy.  

 

6.0 Suggested amendments to the housing allocations policy 

6.1 The group suggests the following changes to the allocations policy.  

 

6.2 The group noted that the allocations policy is rather long, making it difficult for a 

lay member of the public to understand what housing priority band they might be 

allocated. The group felt that this might act as a disincentive to some people who 

seek housing. An executive summary with the most important elements of 

the policy might help people determine their likely band. 

 

6.3 The allocations policy affords a higher priority for people whose work (or offer of 

work) would require them travel more than an hour in each direction. However it 

does not differentiate between types of work. The group discussed the difficulty in 

attracting some key workers to Shropshire such as care home staff and social 

workers. It therefore suggests that people employed in an agreed list of key 

professions receive priority over other workers, irrespective of commuting 

time. 

 

6.4 At present the allocations policy states that “reduced preference may be given to 

households whose income and / or capital resources exceed £63,000.” Although 

the policy stated that this would be reviewed annually, no review had taken place 

since 2014. The group discussed the continued increase in property prices 

making £63,000 of housing capital relatively modest, for example in a shared 

property following separation where the spouse may wish for the rest of the family 

to remain in the home. The group therefore suggests that this figure be 

reviewed upwards. 

 

Page 2



Communities Overview Committee 25 January 2021: Shropshire Affordable Housing Allocation Policy and Scheme – 
suggested revisions 
 

 3 

6.5 The allocations policy’s priority housing bands are named Priority, Gold, Silver 

and Bronze. The group agreed that these names might cause unnecessary 

confusion. It recommends that the Priority band, which is the highest 

possible band allocation, be renamed Platinum. 

 

6.6 The Rent (Agriculture) Act 1976 requires a local housing authority to use their 

best endeavours to provide accommodation for a qualifying displaced agricultural 

worker. The allocations policy advises that in doing so it may refer to the local 

Agricultural Dwelling-House Advisory Committee. The group learned that these 

committees were abolished shortly after the allocations policy was agreed. 

However, the group recognises an ongoing priority housing need for agricultural 

workers. It therefore suggests that this section of the policy be updated, and 

that agricultural workers whose tenancies are tied to their employment 

continue to receive a higher than Bronze banding. 

 

6.7 The group discussed at length the various criteria for a higher banding on the 

grounds of health conditions. Officers confirmed that the allocations teams spent 

a large amount of time evaluating banding on grounds of health. Elected 

members not at the meeting who responded to the group’s questionnaire also 

frequently raised concerns about a lack of certainty about banding. The group 

agreed that this was a highly complex matter. It noted that health conditions could 

improve or deteriorate once an application had been made, making the job of the 

allocations officer more difficult still. It also accepted that sometimes it might be 

better for someone with a long-term condition to wait longer for a property that 

better suited to their needs, which could be difficult to explain to the applicant. 

The group therefore suggests that the revised policy contain a dedicated 

section that explained how the policy prioritised allocations based on health 

conditions. 

 

6.8 Young people leaving the care of the local authority were identified by the group 

as a particular priority for the council. The group agreed with the Gold banding 

currently in place for this group, but felt that the restrictions in the allocations 

policy were unnecessary. It suggests that the allocations policy be updated to 

remove those restrictions and that the revised allocations policy be 

strengthened to emphasis the council’s commitment to ensure young 

people moved into suitable accommodation when they left care.  

 

6.9 The current allocations policy awards a Gold banding to “people experiencing 

ongoing serious violence or harassment who need to move”. The group agreed 

that this definition may not adequately protect people who were the victims of 

domestic abuse. It therefore suggests that a specific criteria of domestic 

abuse be created, and that the criteria for this align more closely with the 

work of the Shropshire Domestic Abuse Partnership. 

 

Page 3



Communities Overview Committee 25 January 2021: Shropshire Affordable Housing Allocation Policy and Scheme – 
suggested revisions 
 

 4 

6.10 The group discussed at length the current bedroom allocations policy. In their 

responses to our questionnaire, this was the foremost concern of elected 

members. In particular, members and the group raised two specific concerns, 

couples where one partner required sole use of a bedroom because of medical 

need, and divorced couples living separately with joint custody of a child. Officers 

told the group that a medical need for sole use of a bedroom was already covered 

by the policy. Officers also informed the group that the current policy aligned with 

rules when determining the housing benefit element of Universal Credit. Although 

the housing policy could choose to be more generous in allocating additional 

bedrooms to families with children or shared care of children, It was considerably 

more likely that doing so would render the property unaffordable to those in 

receipt of Universal Credit, which compromised the majority of those applying for 

social housing through the allocations policy. The group accepted this 

explanation, and agreed that the policy remain unchanged. It did however 

suggest that the allocations policy redraft the bedroom entitlement section 

to clarify the criteria for additional bedrooms based on medical need, and 

the criteria for bedrooms allocated to children within a family unit or shared 

care arrangement.  

 

6.11 The group were pleased to note the additional support provided to members of 

the armed forces. It agreed that a Gold banding was suitable for those serving 

more than four years who had been discharged or were about be discharged 

honourably. The group suggests that the requirement be changed so that 

there was no requirement to have been unsuccessful in finding suitable 

permanent accommodation. The group also noted the lack of pledge regarding 

accommodation in the council’s Armed Forces Covenant. It therefore 

recommends that the Communities Overview Committee review the covenant as 

part of its future programme of work. 

 

6.12 The group noted that there was no specific allocation for young people in work. 

Younger people in work typically receive lower than average wages in a local 

economy that is already relatively low-waged compared to elsewhere in England. 

The group did not agree that younger people should automatically receive a 

higher allocation banding, but did agree that there should be some form of 

additional support or allocation for this group. This was a view shared by elected 

members responding to the group’s questionnaire. The group therefore suggests 

that the allocations policy review explores ways by which it could offer 

more support to young people in work. 

 

6.13 Similarly, the group noted that there was no provision in the allocations policy to 

prioritise applications on the basis of income. The group did not feel that a low 

income should result in a higher banding, as the majority of applicants were 

already likely to be on relatively low incomes. It did however suggest that the 

applications policy, as with younger people in work, should explore ways by 

which it could offer some support to this group.  

Page 4



Communities Overview Committee 25 January 2021: Shropshire Affordable Housing Allocation Policy and Scheme – 
suggested revisions 
 

 5 

 

6.14 One of the more commonly raised issues among elected members responding to 

the group questionnaire was a concern that applicants did not receive a regular 

update on how near they were to the front of the queue within their banding. The 

group understands that this information would have to be supplied within the 

context of how rapidly people in each band were allocated a property. 

Nonetheless it felt that some indication would be better than no indication at all. It 

therefore suggests that the updated allocations policy should include a 

review of how the council updates applicants on their application. 

 

7.0 Next steps 

7.1 The Communities Overview Committee has recommended that this report be 

forwarded to Cabinet for information. The committee has also recommended that 

the revised allocations policy return to the Communities Overview Committee, for 

further scrutiny before it is referred to Cabinet or Council for approval. 

 

List of background papers (This MUST be completed for all reports, but does not 

include items containing exempt or confidential information) 

 

Shropshire Affordable Housing Allocation Policy and Scheme 

 

Cabinet Member (Portfolio Holder) 

 

Portfolio Holder – Housing and Strategic Planning 

Portfolio Holder – Communities, Place Planning and Regulatory Services 

 

Local Member 

 

All 

 

Appendices 

 

None 

 

 

Page 5



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 Committee and Date 
Cabinet – 8/03/2021 
 
 
 

 Item 
 
 
 
 
 
Public 

 
 

THE CLIFFE - LOCAL NATURE RESERVE DESIGNATION – DELEGATION OF 
POWERS 
 
 

Responsible Officer Clare Featherstone, Culture, Leisure and Tourism Manager 
Email: Clare.featherstone@shropshire.gov.

uk 
Tel: 01743 255067   

 
 
1. Summary 
 
1.1 The Cliffe lies adjacent to Nesscliffe Hill Country Park and forms a continuous area of 

publicly accessible green space extending from Nesscliffe to Ruyton-XI-Towns. In 2019 
Ruyton XI Towns Parish Council purchased the majority of this area of common land from 
the Bradford Estate which is managed by Shropshire Council under a formal agreement. 
The Parish Council have given their support for the designation of their land as a Local 
Nature Reserve. The Cliffe provides a mostly open heathland landscape, one of the rarest 
type of habitat globally. There are panoramic views over the North Shropshire Plain and 
towards the distant hills of South Shropshire and Wales. 

1.2 Shropshire Council has the power under the 1949 National Parks and Access to the 
Countryside Act 1949 to dedicate land as a Local Nature Reserve (LNR). This is an 
executive function for the purposes of the Local Government Act 2000 and the Local 
Authorities (Functions and Responsibilities) (England) Regulations 2000 and accordingly 
can be delegated to another local authority by Cabinet. Sections 13 and 19 of the Local 
Government Act 2000 and the Local Authorities (Arrangements for the Discharge of 
Functions) (England) Regulations 2012. Ruyton-XI Towns Parish Council is also required to 
formally accept the delegation.   

 
1.3 Environmental designation raises the profile with the public and can increase visitor usage 

and the health and wellbeing benefits this provides. LNR designations also provides some 
protection for the site’s nature conservation and recreation interest. Declaring The Cliffe as 
an LNR will:  

 improving local quality of life, health and wellbeing. 

 Create opportunities for education, enjoyment and recreation, helping attract visitors and 
preserves links with the local community’s past. 

 Safeguards local ecosystem services – the benefits nature provides for people – such 
as reducing carbon in the atmosphere or absorbing surface water. 

 Protecting and enhancing the natural heritage as a key part of building sustainable 
communities. 

 Raises the nature conservation and recreation interest. 

 Recognition of the site’s wildlife value 

 Recognition of local community involvement 

 Protection within the planning system from future development.  
Page 7

Agenda Item 7



2 
 

 

1.4 The anticipated benefits of a Local Nature Reserve dedication in this location lead to the 
conclusion that it would be appropriate to formally delegate the Council’s power to make a 
Local Nature Reserve dedication in accordance with section 21 of the National Parks and 
Access to the Countryside Act in respect of the land known as The Cliffe, to Ruyton-XI 
Towns Parish Council.  

 
1.5 Ruyton-XI Towns Parish Council will therefore also be responsible for undertaking the 

necessary formalities to give effect to the dedication.  
 
2. Recommendations 
 
2.1 That the Council delegates power to Ruyton XI Towns Parish Council to enable the 

designation of The Cliffe as a Local Nature Reserve.  
 

REPORT 
 

 
3. Risk Assessment and Opportunities Appraisal 
 
3.1 Along with the benefits identified above, LNR designation meets the following Shropshire 

Council strategic outcomes set out in the following Strategies: 

 Vibrant Shropshire- Cultural Strategy for Shropshire (draft) 2021-31 

 Shropshire’s Great Outdoor Strategy 2018-2028 

 Shropshire’s Economic Growth Strategy- developing the visitor economy, agricultural 
support post- Brexit, developing skills, improving Quality of Life and ensuring attractive 
environments. 

 Shropshire’s Local Plan- Better planning of meaningful greenspace and non-motorised 
access, new destination country parks, protecting environmentally-sensitive sites. 

 Shropshire’s Health and Wellbeing Strategy- harnessing the power of the outdoors to 
increase physical activity, address mental health issues and help people stay independent 
for longer. 

 Local Transport Plan for Shropshire- encouraging walking and cycling. 

 Shropshire Council Corporate Plan- helping deliver across the board: resilient communities, 
healthy people and prosperous economy. 

 
3.2 There are no discernible risks to Shropshire Council of making this delegation. 

3.3 The designation of The Cliffe to a Local Nature Reserve will enhance the site status giving 
greater emphasis on community involvement and giving rise to enhanced opportunities for 
external funding and support. LNR designation will safeguard the site into the future. It will 
encourage stronger community benefit and support the ‘The Cliffe Crew’ a new, local 
volunteer group, together with the Parish Council of Ruyton XI Towns and the Nesscliffe 
Advisory Group. The process of designating The Cliffe as an LNR has full Natural England 
backing.  

3.4 Consultation with colleagues within Estates has revealed the land is worth less than £500K. 
As the land is worth less than £500,000 then the decision to declare The Cliffe as a Local 
Nature Reserve could be made at officer level.  

3.5 Other opportunities and impacts: 

 Impact on Looked After Children – No negative impacts identified 

Page 8



3 
 

 Impact on Vulnerable Children, Young People and Adults – No negative impacts identified – 
Enhanced opportunities for experiencing Shropshire’s great outdoors contributing to 
physical and mental well-being. 

 Supports family approach, community resilience. - Enhanced community cohesion and 
opportunities for experiencing Shropshire’s great outdoors contributing to physical and 
mental well-being. 

 Human rights – No issues identified. 

 Equalities – No issues identified. 

 Environmental consequences of the proposal – Enhanced protection of the site and access 
to additional external funding allowing greater protection of habitat and species in the long-
term. 

3.6 Natural England have been consulted and give their support.  
 
 
4. Financial Implications 
 
4.1 There are no financial implications of the delegation beyond staff time to create this report. 

Ruyton-XI Towns Parish Council will be responsible for making a formal resolution to 
accept the delegation from Shropshire Council and a separate resolution to make the 
dedication. They will then be responsible for undertaking all relevant procedures with 
Natural England etc to give effect to the dedication.  

 
4.2 The current site budget used by Outdoor Partnerships to manage the site will be 

maintained. However, the opportunity to apply for additional external funding would be 
available once designated as an LNR.   

 
5. Climate Change Appraisal 
 
5.1 Local Nature Reserves are important habitats, offering carbon storage and biodiversity 

gains helping to mitigate the impact of climate change and aid nature recovery. 
 
6. Background 
 
6.1 The Cliffe occupies a prominent ridge of sandstone approximately 15km north of 

Shrewsbury between the villages of Nesscliffe and Ruyton-XI-Towns. The site extends to 22 
Ha, is largely open heathland, recovering with encroachment by oak and birch. There are 
no formal car parks serving this site, however numerous laybys allow some parking. The 
site is crossed by a network of footpaths and bridleways. Local Parishes covering the site 
include Ruyton XI Towns and Little Ness.  

6.2 The Cliffe is an important recreational site for many people from the local area and from 
further afield within the county due to the site being readily accessible just off the A5. The 
site has seen a steady increase in visitor numbers in recent years particularly with regards 
mountain bikers, horse riders and pedestrians. The site is also popular with orienteers. The 
size of the site and its position adjacent to Nesscliffe Hill Country Park allows visitors to 
enjoy spending long periods of time exploring the area without having to walk along or 
cross any busy roads, a feature that has been noted to be of particular importance to horse 
riders. Several benches are provided. It is known that several local schools and the Field 
Studies Council make use of the site for environmental education work.  

6.3 There appears to be little available information regarding historical management of The 
Cliffe, although as Common Land it is likely to have been grazed.  The northern part was 
affected by a fire in 1984. 

Page 9



4 
 

6.4 Severn Trent Water have a right of way across the southern part of The Cliffe to access 
their reservoir. 

6.5 The whole of the Cliffe is a registered common. 

 
7. Legal requirements and other criteria to consider 
 
7.1 Schedule 11 (12) of the Natural Environment and Rural Communities Act 2006, which 

replaced Section 15 of the National Parks and Access to the Countryside Act 1949 (1949 
Act), describes a ‘nature reserve’ as: 

 

 land managed solely for a conservation purpose, or 

 land managed not only for a conservation purpose but also for a recreational 
purpose, if the management of the land for the recreational purpose does not compromise 
its management for the conservation purpose. 

7.2 Land is managed for a conservation purpose if it is managed for: 
 

 providing, under suitable conditions and control, special opportunities for the study of, 

and research into, matters relating to the fauna and flora of Great Britain and the 

physical conditions in which they live, and for the study of geological and 

physiographical features of special interest in the area; or 

 preserving flora, fauna, or geological or physiographical features of special interest in 

the area or for both these purposes. 

7.3 Land is managed for a recreational purpose if it is managed for the purpose of providing 
opportunities for the enjoyment of nature or for open-air recreation. 

 
7.4 The power to dedicate a Local Nature Reserve rests with Shropshire Council as the 

principal authority under the 1949 Act.  However, under that 1949 Act, the local authority 
must first have or acquire a legal interest in the land in question through ownership, lease 
or an agreement with the owners and occupiers involved. Shropshire Council does not have 
a legal interest in The Cliffe, and therefore cannot dedicate it as a Local Nature Reserve.  

 
7.5 Shropshire Council does have powers under Sections 13 and 19 of the Local Government 

Act 2000 and the Local Authorities and (Arrangements for the Discharge of Functions) 
(England) Regulations 2012 to delegate its functions in this regard to a parish, town or 
community council. The Council’s Constitution allows Cabinet to delegate Cabinet functions 
to another local authority or Cabinet of another local authority. Declaration of a Local Nature 
Reserve is an executive function and accordingly can be delegated to another local 
authority by Cabinet. 

 
 
7.6 Natural England believes LNRs should be of high value locally for environmental education 

and/or research. People are more likely to be aware of and value the natural environment 
when they can experience it at first hand in places such as LNRs.  LNRs can help 
safeguard not just rare but also more common, locally valued species, habitat and 
geodiversity. They can play an important part in Local Biodiversity Action Plans and Local 
Geodiversity Action Plans.  

 
7.7 Natural England recommends that everyone should have an accessible greenspace of 2 ha 

within 300m of home; at least one accessible 20 ha site within 2km of home; at least one 
accessible 100ha site within 5km of home; and at least one 500ha site within 10km of 

Page 10



5 
 

home. LNR’s can contribute to these targets and the ANGSt standard of a minimum of 1ha 
of LNR per 1000 head of population.  

 
7.8 The Natural England LNR Visitor Standards set out what an LNR should offer to provide a 

quality experience for visitors.  
 
 
8. Consequences of designation as a Local Nature Reserve 

 
8.1 In terms of the management of The Cliffe, there will be no change. The site will continue to 

be managed by Shropshire Council’s Outdoor Recreation Service as an area of public open 
space for quiet recreation and for the enhancement and protection of flora and fauna 
together with cultural and historic access. 

 
8.2 Designation will benefit the site in terms of recognition by local residents and visitors, 

offering encouragement to enable continued positive input by the community.  
 
 

9. Procedure to declare a local nature reserve 
 

9.0 The site needs to be identified as suitable for an LNR. Natural England have confirmed 
suitability following correspondence and a site visit with an LNR Officer. The Management 
Plan has been accepted by Natural England with a review due to take it to 2029. Interested 
parties must be informed of the intent to proceed to declaration. In this case Shropshire 
Council departments, Estates, Property Services and Outdoor Recreation have been 
informed of this declaration.  

 

9.1 Once a decision is approved, as a result of this report, Shropshire Council must then write 
formally to the Natural England regional team to the effect that it intends to delegate power 
to Ruyton XI Towns Parish Council. 

9.2 The following steps should then be taken: 

 a formal declaration document should be drawn up which accurately shows the LNR 
boundary.   

 a public notice announcing the declaration should be placed in a local paper and 
copies of the declaration and map made available for the public to inspect free of 
charge; 

 the local authority should formally notify the Natural England regional team of the 
LNR declaration in writing and send them a copy of the declaration, together with 
maps and any other details required about the reserve.  

 
10. Conclusions 
 
10.0 It is considered that designation of The Cliffe as a Local Nature Reserve will enhance the 

sites status within Shropshire as an area for quiet recreation, nature conservation and 
heritage interpretation, along with offering Climate Change mitigation. Management of the 
site in future will follow the management plan which will be reviewed on a 10 year basis and 
community involvement with the site will be encouraged through a voluntary group known 
as the Cliffe Crew and with liaison with Ruyton XI Towns Parish Council. 

 
 

Page 11



6 
 

List of Background Papers (This MUST be completed for all reports, but does 
not include items containing exempt or confidential information): 
 
 
 

Key Decision:  
 
Included within Forward Plan:  
 

Name and Portfolio of Executive Member responsible for this area of 
responsibility: 
Cllr Lezley Picton 
 
 

Local Member: 
Cllr. Edward Potter 
 

Appendices: 
 
1. Location Map 
2. Site Maps 
3. Criteria for designation 
 
 
 

 
  

Page 12



7 
 

Appendix1. Location Map  

 

 

 

Page 13



8 
 

Appendix 2. Site Maps 

 

Page 14



9 
 

 
Appendix 3- Criteria for designation 
Is the site the focus of local community interest and concern, or does it have the potential to 
capture people’s imagination? Have local people (both those living and working nearby, and 
interested groups and users) been involved in the selection process?  
Yes 
Will interested communities be involved in steering the site’s development, management and 
monitoring? 
Yes, via regular volunteer work parties, the Nesscliffe Advisory Group and Ruyton XI 
Towns Parish Council 
Is the site reasonably close to schools, community education centres and/or field study centres? 
Will there be opportunities for local schools to get involved and for schemes such as the Forest 
School programme or a Watch group to be set up? 
Yes, the site is often used by local schools for educational visits. 
Are there areas where children are welcome to play? 
Yes, informally. 
Is the site in an area generally lacking in publicly accessible natural heritage? 
No 
Is there some public access – rights of approach, entry or use that are legally defined or 
established through long-standing use? Is the site linked to wider public access networks, green 
networks, other open spaces, etc? 
Yes  
Is it safe and physically easy to get into and around the site, accepting that access to highly 
sensitive areas may need to be restricted wholly or periodically? 
Yes 
Can people enjoy the access rights and feel comfortable about using the site, for example without 
fear of crime? 
Yes 
Can people get to the site by active and public transport? Does the site have, or could it have, car 
parking, and provision for safe delivery and pick-up for educational visits? 
There are informal laybys adjacent to site entrances. 
Does the site lend itself to being a safe educational resource, for example with good site 
interpretation, without adversely affecting its special interest? 
Yes 
Is the site safeguarded, notably through the development plan process, or can safeguarding be 
included in the next Local Plan revision? 
The Cliffe is designated a common  
Has the site been (or is it likely to be) identified of local importance in the Local Biodiversity Action 
Plan or Local Geodiversity Action Plan? 
The Cliffe contributes to both the Local BAP and Local GAP with heathland and regionally 
important geological sites. 
Are there any implications for neighbouring areas, or other sites or facilities? 
Yes, the neighbouring site known as Nescliffe Hill Country Park is also managed by 
Shropshire Council and we are looking to designate this site an LNR also, site ownership 
warrants a separation of the two areas for this purpose. 
Is the site’s future secured for some time? There is limited benefit in investing resources in an LNR 
that will be de-declared and subsumed into the development cycle in the short, or perhaps even 
medium-term. 
Yes 
What is the existing use of the site and how can this be taken into account when planning the LNR 
development? Will alternative provision have to be made, and will there be an overall public 
benefit? 
The Cliffe is currently used for quiet recreation and is managed to enhance local 
biodiversity with community involvement and interpretation for a wider audience. This will 
continue and be enhanced once LNR designation is granted.   

Page 15



10 
 

Is the site a viable management unit with appropriate access for management, etc? 
Yes 
What are the likely costs to be incurred during the life-cycle of the LNR (including initial 
developmental, establishment, staffing costs, etc), and has provision been made for these? 
Costs are on-going and unaffected by LNR designation 

 

Page 16



1 
 

 

 
Officer and Date 

Cabinet 

8th March 2021 

 

 Item 
 

 
Smithfield Riverside Strategic Development Framework 

Shrewsbury  

Responsible Officer Mark Barrow, Executive Director of Place 
e-mail: mark.barrow@shropshire.gov.uk  Tel: (01743) 258919 

 

1 Summary 

1.1 The Smithfield Riverside Strategic Development Framework (SDF) provides a 
bold and ambitious vision for one of Shrewsbury’s prime development sites. 
The Shrewsbury Big Town Plan (BTP) Masterplan Vision 2020 identifies the 
Riverside site’s significance and its opportunities in achieving the place-
shaping aspirations of the BTP. As a core component in delivery of an 
investible masterplan for Shrewsbury, the SDF establishes the spatial 
framework for development that will sustain and enhance the economic, social 
and environmental performance of the town centre and increase its 
attractiveness to businesses, investors and developers, residents, and visitors, 
whether for leisure, tourism, culture or to work. 

1.2 The Smithfield Riverside SDF provides regeneration objectives for the site and 
with guiding principles for development, articulates the scale, form, massing 
and orientation necessary to ensure sensitive and appropriate development. 
Informed by multi-modal forms of movement, mobility and accessibility the 
SDF, will inform the use profile and mix, activities, public realm and open 
space, streets and squares, as well as promote environmental quality and 
measures that contribute to climate change mitigation. 

1.3 An experienced multi-disciplinary consultancy team, led by LDA Design and 
including associates Phil Jones Associates (movement and transport) and 
Cushman and Wakefield (commercial development and regeneration), were 
awarded the contract in January 2020. 

1.4 This Smithfield Riverside SDF has been developed with the engagement of 
key stakeholders, businesses and partners. Framed around the Big Draw, a 
two-day design workshop, stakeholders and the general public were invited to 
shape ideas for the site and create a working vision for the site. Through this 
vision LDA Design and Shropshire Council have created a deliverable 
framework which reflects the needs and aspirations of Shrewsbury. 

Page 17

Agenda Item 8

mailto:mark.barrow@shropshire.gov.uk


Cabinet 8th February 2021 

 2 

 

Figure 1: Smithfield Riverside Strategic Development Framework Area 

1.5 The Smithfield Riverside SDF provides an assessment of commercial viability 
and deliverability, with the aim of attracting developer/investor interest in 
bringing this site forward and as a catalyst for the town’s wider development, 
in line with the aspirations of the Shrewsbury BTP. The approach will inform 
the procurement and delivery strategy, as detailed in recommendation 3 of this 
report. 

1.6 The commission was extended to include Frankwell side of the Riverbank, to 
explore the opportunities on the other side of the River and to ensure that the 
balance of uses is looked at in the whole and also ensure linkages, routes and 
placemaking principles are maintained and maximised.  

2 Recommendations 

1. Cabinet agrees that the draft Smithfield Riverside Strategic Development 
Framework be subject to public consultation for a period of six weeks, 
commencing on a date to be agreed by the Executive Director of Place in 
consultation with the Portfolio Holder for Economic Growth, Assets and 
Regeneration.  

Page 18



Cabinet 8th February 2021 

 3 

2. Cabinet agrees that the officers will report back to Cabinet on the 
outcome of consultation and present the final Riverside Smithfield 
Strategic Development Framework for approval.  

3. Cabinet authorises the Executive Director of Place, in consultation with 
the Portfolio Holder for Economic Growth, Assets and Regeneration, to 
develop a procurement and delivery strategy (to be informed by the 
finalised SDF) for the site’s redevelopment.  

  

Page 19



Cabinet 8th February 2021 

 4 

REPORT 

3 Risk Assessment and Opportunities Appraisal 

3.1 The Smithfield Riverside SDF identifies the challenges and physical 
constraints to be addressed, as well as the wider opportunities to be gained, 
from driving forward the redevelopment of the site in a timely manner and with 
pace. The guiding principles and recommendations of the SDF have been 
informed and developed in consultation with stakeholders and aligns with the 
aspirations of the Shrewsbury Big Town Plan (2018) and the recently launched 
Masterplan Vision (2020). 

3.2 The physical constraints and challenges of the site and its context adjacent to 
the River Severn include: 

 Parcels of land prone to flooding: liaison with the Environment Agency will 
identify technical solutions to facilitate development. 

 Demolition of existing structures: sequence, phasing, accessibility and 
logistics. 

 Realignment of Smithfield Road: highway implications and service utilities 
diversions. 

 Re-provision of: 
o bus station or alternative facility, due to proposed redevelopment of 

existing location. 
o car parking to replace the Raven’s Meadow multi-storey car park: this 

facility is  

 Topography and ground conditions. 

 The existing footbridge connecting the site to Frankwell: this is not 
accessible to those with specific needs and will benefit from replacement 
with a more suitable structure, realigned to proposed links and movement, 
that will further support the vision of the SDF and the wider Shrewsbury 
BTP. 

3.3 The nature and scale of the above constraints, whilst expected, will have an 
impact on the deliverability and viability of the riverside redevelopment. The 
indicative development capacity and mix considered in the SDF provides a 
reference point from which to further appraise viability and deliverability and 
forms the basis for the request to progress the procurement and delivery 
strategy, as recommendation 2. 

3.4 The proposed procurement and delivery strategy will also consider the impacts 
and implications of the recent Covid pandemic. The economic impacts of Covid 
remain unpredictable, however, recent measures put in place to ensure social 
distancing in the town, have allowed many of the movement and public realm 
principles to be tested. These interventions have demonstrated the resilience 
of the town and its ability to continue to perform well, despite the restrictions 
and compared to similar town centres both locally and nationally, demonstrates 
strong patterns of recovery. 

Page 20



Cabinet 8th February 2021 

 5 

3.5 The Smithfield Riverside SDF will be subject to a high-level Equality and Social 
Inclusion Impact Assessment (ESIIA). More detailed assessments will be 
undertaken for specific projects as they come forward.  

4 Financial Implications 

4.1 The costs incurred in the preparation of the Smithfield Riverside SDF, have 
been met by a budget previously approved in December 2018.  

4.2 The development of a provisional procurement and delivery strategy for the 
site’s redevelopment, as recommendation 3 of this report, will require the 
allocation of further funding of up to £250,000. This will enable: 

 Site investigations and appraisals, including utilities and infrastructure 
implications. 

 An appraisal of vehicle movement, servicing and parking. 

 Market analysis and the mix of appropriate uses. 

 Identification and financial modelling for a range of development 
approaches. 

 Scope procurement options/framework for engagement with the 
development market. 

 Legal consideration, requirements and assurance. 

 Delivery sequencing and phasing. 

 A basis for the production of development prospectus(s) aligned to 
development phases. 

4.3 A phased approach of this work will be undertaken to progress in stages, 
breaking down the funding requirement into smaller elements. The first phase 
of the procurement and delivery strategy is estimated at no more than £40,000 
and each phase will be reviewed before progressing to the next stage. This will 
be identified from existing revenue budgets within the Economic Growth 
service area. 

4.4 As development proposals and projects come forward, in the context of the 
Smithfield Riverside SDF, and subject to the Council’s role being determined, 
they will be subject to further business case assessment, financial appraisal, 
and the Council’s governance and reporting procedures. Access to the 
Council’s Capital Programme will be pursued at a later date where projects will 
be appraised on an individual basis following the process detailed in the Capital 
Strategy. 

5 Background 

5.1 The Smithfield Riverside SDF commenced with a programme of consultation 
and engagement. This process commenced with the innovative and engaging 
two-day workshop titled the ‘Big Draw’, attended by a broad and representative 
range of stakeholders, including local businesses, education bodies, residents, 
community/interest groups and multi-agency partners. The outcomes provided 
a robust basis on which to shaping ideas, identify objectives, develop a 

Page 21



Cabinet 8th February 2021 

 6 

collective vision for the site, with a deliverable framework, that reflects the 
needs and aspirations of Shrewsbury. 

5.2 The initial Riverside commission was extended to include the quayside of 
Frankwell, to ensure the framework references, and integrates with, its river 
corridor context. This also ensures mutually supportive principles and 
opportunities are identified for activities either side of the river, whether in the 
context of the predominant demolition and comprehensive rebuilding of 
Riverside or the selective redevelopment amongst existing building on 
Frankwell. 

5.3 The plan outlines aspirations for the site that align and robustly support the 
recently launched Shrewsbury BTP Masterplan Vision 2020: creating vibrant 
new living, leisure and work destinations within a socially and commercially 
attractive and enviable riverside setting. Connecting key localities across the 
historic town centre, such as the proposed Station Square, Riverside Park, 
intertwined with high quality public realm and open spaces, that celebrates the 
River Severn at the heart of the masterplan. Creative, transformational 
infrastructure proposals include the relocation, and down-scaling, of Smithfield 
Road to create commercially attractive, high-value mixed-use development 
sites, whilst facilitating the creation of an exemplar riverside parkland setting 
to the Severn. 

Scope and Purpose 

5.4 The scope and purpose of the Smithfield Riverside SDF can be summarised 
as follows. 

 Provide a framework and guiding principles for the future detailed 
masterplanning, design and delivery of the Riverside area. 

 Identify constraints, challenges to be addressed and opportunities to 
unlock the sites development potential. 

 Inform the optimum scale, massing, orientation and mix of uses. 

 Provide the basis for the development of a procurement strategy and 
delivery plan with phasing and sequencing scenarios. 

 Contribute to the evidence base that will inform development prospectus 
that aims to foster market confidence and developer appetite. 

5.5 The Smithfield Riverside SDF provides the following outcomes. 

 Planning and Regeneration Context: The SDF is aligned to the current 
core strategy and the emerging local plan. The SDF is framed by the 
Shrewsbury Big Town Plan masterplan vision. 

 An appraisal of challenges and constraints, including, but not exclusively, 
flooding, viability, movement and parking. 

 Smithfield Riverside vision statement: 

Celebrating the jewel in the Severn: 

Page 22



Cabinet 8th February 2021 

 7 

The evolution of Smithfield Riverside towards a mixed-use destination for 
Shrewsbury and beyond. 

For more than a thousand years the dramatic loop of the River Severn has inscribed 
Shrewsbury’s historic centre. As Shrewsbury grows over the next few decades, it 
must adapt to the climate emergency and to the rapidly evolving patterns of living, 
working and leisure. The town centre will grow too, possibly beyond the loop of the 
river, and over time, it will evolve. Its attractions are manifest, everything set within 
a short walk or cycle, marked by wonderful buildings, streets and public spaces, 
increasingly traffic-free, and every part framed by river. It is the picture of an extra-
ordinary zero-carbon place. In our vision for Smithfield Riverside this part of town 
dramatically changes its role. A part of the town, that has largely been forgotten 
about for centuries, suddenly takes centre stage, becoming a unique destination 
within this wonderful historic town. The river is the destination, where Smithfield 
Gardens replaces a busy road, where what was the back of the town, now becomes 
the route to a dramatic new bridge over the river to Frankwell. An area that has 
always been vulnerable to flooding is now designed to be more resilient and 
adaptable such events. It will be distinctive but deeply rooted in Shrewsbury, 
reflecting its character and knitting into its everyday life. It will be a pleasure to walk 
or cycle in Riverside, whether you are just passing through or, more likely, you are 
dwelling in its many high-quality public space or dipping your toes in the River 
Severn. Riverside will be a place where visitors and residents will be drawn to, 
making the most of its fantastic river setting and its many cafés bars and restaurants. 
A place for businesses to lay down roots and grow, as well as for communities to 
flourish in a vibrant town centre setting. What better opportunity will there be to live 
and work and spend your leisure time in an entirely new part of the town centre, with 
everything you need.  

 Regeneration objectives of the SDF derived and assessed in the context 
of the Shrewsbury BTP. The seven objectives below set the standards 
and aspirations for the site and provides the framework for future 
proposals. 

 
Figure 2: Regeneration Objectives of the Smithfield Riverside SDF 

 Suite of Core Design Principles including;  

Page 23



Cabinet 8th February 2021 

 8 

o Built form and layout 
o Movement and access 
o Use and activities 
o Public spaces and streets 
o Environment and climate 

 Key moves that underpin design principles;  

o Unlocking the site through strategic demolition programme. 
o Re-imagine Smithfield Road to create safer public realm for 

pedestrians and cyclist and to promote public transport. 
o Creating a waterfront destination, accommodating vibrant leisure, 

commercial and other activities. 
o Forge links and connections to the town centre and its environs 

through network of green and blue routes. 

 The Framework Plan: an illustrative plan to demonstrate the principles of 
the Smithfield Riverside SDF: 

 

Figure 3: Illustrative Masterplan for Smithfield Masterplan (extract) 

 Land use and development capacity: indicative scenarios for the mix and 
location of viable and market relevant uses attractive to potential 
development partners/investors.  

Page 24



Cabinet 8th February 2021 

 9 

 Outlining potential delivery options, mechanisms, sequencing and 
phasing appropriate to the scale of development proposed by the 
Smithfield Riverside SDF. 

Smithfield Riverside Strategic Opportunities 

5.6 The redevelopment of the Smithfield Riverside site offers a once in a 
generation opportunity to deliver significant place making, through an 
ambitious, bold yet sensitive and sustainable mixed-use development on a 
comprehensive basis and at scale. The site has the potential to not only to 
transform this site, but to also act as a catalyst for redevelopment and 
opportunity for growth of the whole of the town centre. Consequently, the SDF 
recognises the immediate context to Smithfield Riverside in delivering the 
following. 

 Creating a cultural destination: supporting Theatre Severn in sustaining a 
cultural quarter. 

 Better connecting Shrewsbury: integrate the site through creating new 
links and supporting those already in place/under development, including 
the Shrewsbury Connect Park and Ride facility. 

 Unlocking and improving open space: create a key green space for 
Shrewsbury. 

 Celebrating the Riverside: making the most of the waterfront setting. 
 

 
Figure 4: Illustrative Vision for Smithfield Riverside (extract) 

Page 25



Cabinet 8th February 2021 

 10 

Development Capacity, Delivery and Phasing 

5.7 The Smithfield Riverside SDF provides the basis for developing a procurement 
and delivery strategy. It highlights future opportunities for bringing this 
significant site forward and the procurement options and delivery vehicles that 
need to be assessed against the Council’s objectives, as well as those mutually 
shared with the Shrewsbury BTP partners and stakeholders.  

5.8 In summary, the proposed procurement and delivery strategy will: 

 Defines delivery objectives. 

 Articulates development principles. 

 Identifies delivery mechanisms. 

5.9 Procurement and delivery strategy considerations, relevant to the Smithfield 
Riverside SDF include: 

 Public Procurement options, including open or restricted procedures, 
competitive procedures in negotiation or with dialogue. 

 Site enabling works: demolition, infrastructure works and site remediation. 

 Procurement approach, rationale and controls: comprehensive site 
development versus incremental plot sales or hybrid approach. 

 Options for development: 

o Disposal of sites post securing of planning permission 
o Development management – direct delivery by the Council 
o Contractual agreement – i.e. development agreement 
o Contractual partnership – i.e. master development agreement 
o Joint venture (JVCo.) 
o Investment Partner (InvestCo.) 

 Identify potential sources of investment funding:  

o Capital receipts, revenue and borrowing 
o Public sector partners 
o Grant funding 
o Private sector investors/developers 

5.10 The above considerations form the basis of the Procurement and Delivery 
Strategy as detailed in recommendation 2 of this report. 

6 Engagement activity 

6.1 Through the ‘Big Draw’, a two-day engagement and workshop session, which 
was held in February 2020; businesses, stakeholder and partners were invited 
to help shape and collaborate on the development of the plans and ideas for 
Riverside. LDA have continued to develop and test the framework with 
partners and key stakeholders which has helped shape the objectives, 
parameters and principles within the framework. 

Page 26



Cabinet 8th February 2021 

 11 

6.2 The Big Town Plan Masterplan Vision sets the overarching framework for the 
SDF, which builds on the objectives and principles in the BTP. The BTP has 
been created through a series of workshops with businesses and residents. 
The BTP festival in January 2021, launched the consultation on the Masterplan 
Vision with a series of webinars and events and an online consultation 
platform. The consultation concluded on the 3 March 2021. 

6.3 The Smithfield Riverside SDF has been developed in line with the ‘Big Moves’ 
and the principles outlined for the Riverside Character area in the SBTP 
Masterplan Vision. The SDF is not prescriptive on the design intent for the 
area, rather it robustly defines the design principles and parameters/criteria by 
which future development must adhere, if the wider aspirations of the site are 
to be realised. This will enable the Council to incentivise high quality design, 
appropriate to the Shrewsbury’s unique character, prescribed through the 
procurement process. As the Smithfield Riverside SDF moves into the design 
and development phases, this will enable more detailed engagement and 
collaboration, involving residents, stakeholders and partners in design 
process. 

6.4 It is proposed to undertake a public consultation exercise for the Smithfield 
Riverside SDF for a period of six weeks. This will be consistent with the 
consultation approach adopted for the Shrewsbury Big Town Plan (2018) and 
the recently launched Masterplan Vision, concluding on 3 March 2021. The 
commencement date for the Smithfield Riverside SDF consultation is proposed 
to start after the Masterplan Vision consultation has concluded and the findings 
appraised. This will ensure the outcomes of this process can provide further 
context and be aligned to the consultation process proposed for the Smithfield 
Riverside SDF.  

7 Climate Change 

7.1  Following the declaration of the Climate Emergency, the Smithfield Riverside 
SDF and any future delivery and procurement will include Council expectations 
on new developments. The SDF sets out an aspiration for sustainability and 
responding to the climate emergency. Smithfield Riverside will be recognisably 
sustainable and responsive to the environmental sensitivities of the site, as 
well as responding to the climate emergency and its impacts in Shrewsbury.  

The following principles should be considered for the site: 

 Design and plan to mitigate against the impacts of flooding across the site, 
as well as being resilient to the effects of climate change. 

 Any development or alteration to the flood plain must not impact upstream 
or downstream flooding and mitigation.  

 Development proposals must provide safe means of access in the event 
of flooding for all, however development which would activate ground 
floors can be considered if necessary mitigation measures are put in 
place. 

 Development must maximise access to light. 

Page 27



Cabinet 8th February 2021 

 12 

 A more natural, larger river front part should seek to mitigate against 
flooding where possible. 

 The impact of wind through the site must be fully assessed to ensure 
wind-funnelling does not create uncomfortable public spaces and street 
environments, encouraging use and dwell time of spaces and contributes 
to a perception of safety throughout the day. 

 Public realm should seek to incorporate green and blue infrastructure 
where possible to provide resilience against the effects of climate change. 

8 Conclusions 

8.1 The Smithfield Riverside SDF provides an opportunity to sustain and grow the 
future commercial viability of the town. The Smithfield Riverside SDF aims to 
achieve a design, place-led approach for the redevelopment of the site, which 
is underpinned by delivery. The vision for Smithfield Riverside is therefore 
ambitious, yet deliverable. It outlines a flexible framework for the design and 
delivery of development on the site. It has been shaped through an engaged 
and iterative design process which has tested the capacity for change across 
the site. The next steps will be to move this forward to develop a procurement 
and delivery strategy for the site.  

  

Page 28



Cabinet 8th February 2021 

 13 

List of Background Papers  

Cabinet report November 2018 - Shrewsbury Big Town Plan 

Cabinet report December 2018 – Shrewsbury Shopping Centres  

Cabinet report January 2020 - Shrewsbury Big Town Plan Masterplan Vision  

Cabinet Member (Portfolio Holder) 

Cllr Steve Charmley 

 

Local Members 

Peter Adams, Dean Carroll, Nat Green, Kevin Pardy, Ioan Jones, Julian Dean, Ted 
Clarke, Pam Moseley, Hannah Fraser, David Vasmer, Alan Mosley, Peter Nutting, 
Jane McKenzie, Keith Roberts, Tony Parsons, Alex Philips, Kate Halliday, Gwen 
Burgess 

Appendices 

Appendix 1: Smithfield Riverside Strategic Development Framework (Final draft) 

 

 

Page 29



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 Committee and Date 
Cabinet 
8th March 2021 
 
 

 Item 
 
 
 
 

 

FINANCIAL MONITORING REPORT – QUARTER 3 2020/21 
 

Responsible Officer James Walton 
Email: james.walton@shropshire.gov.uk Tel: (01743) 255011 

 
1. Summary 
 
1.1 The report sets out the projected revenue expenditure for the whole of 2020/21 

as at Quarter 3, and for capital sets out the expenditure up to the end of 
Quarter 3. For capital, any budget increases and decreases and any re-profiling 
of budgets between 2020/21 and future years are also set out for decision 
making.  
 

1.2 The revenue monitoring within this report is based on financial information held 
for the first nine months of the year, extrapolated to year end to produce an 
estimated outturn position. As the year progresses and further financial 
information becomes available, the quality of the estimates used within this report 
are expected to increase.  
 

1.3 Variances in the overall projected position for the Council do not yet reflect all 
management action that can be taken. Management action instigated as a result 
of the Q3 monitoring projections identified in this report will be reflected in the 
outturn position for the Council. 
 

1.4 The report identifies the current projections on delivery of revenue savings 
included within the forecast.  To aid reporting of savings delivery the Council uses 
a RAG (Red, Amber, Green) rating to identify a rating for the delivery of savings 
proposals (more detail is provided in the report below).  As at Quarter 3, evidence 
suggests that of the £18.725m of proposals to be delivered in 2020/21, £10.223m 
are rated as green – with a high degree of certainty of being delivered. 
 

1.5 The Quarter 3 monitoring position suggests that £6.925m of the £18.725m 
savings planned are categorised as red.  Within the Medium Term Financial 
Strategy presented to Cabinet on 25th February 2021 there is a commitment to 
deliver £6.022m of undelivered 20/21 red savings in 21/22 on an ongoing basis.  
Furthermore, additional ongoing service pressures totalling a net value of 
£6.898m are being highlighted, which service areas will need to address 
alongside delivering their savings. 
 

1.6 £22.410m non-ringfenced grant has been received from MHCLG to enable the 
Council to respond to coronavirus (Covid-19) pressures across all services.  In 
addition to this, it is estimated that the Council may be able to claim approximately 
£5.066m additional un-ringfenced support from MHCLG to recompense the 
Council for a proportion of lost sales, fees and charges income that has not been 

Page 31

Agenda Item 9



Cabinet, 8th March 2021: Financial Monitoring Report – Quarter 3 2020/21 

 

 
 2 

 

received by the Council due to the pandemic. The current estimate of additional 
cost pressures and loss of income to the Council as a result of Covid-19 is 
currently estimated at £24.913m.  However, it is also estimated that there will be 
a further £2.750m of collection fund losses (council tax and business rate losses) 
in future years.  

 
1.7 The key issues highlighted by this report are that: 

 The projected revenue outturn position is an overspend of £0.838m. 

 At this level, the projected General Fund balance as at 31 March 2021 would 
be £12.672m, which is below the recommended level. 

 There is currently no budget pressure arising in year as a result of Covid-19 
but we are monitoring the position closely. 

 Management action across all areas of the Council has delivered a reduction 
in overspend from Q2, but more action is needed to bring the budget back into 
balance, as far as possible.   

 Without management action, there is a risk that savings proposals currently 
rated as “Amber” may be undelivered, which would have the effect of 
increasing any underlying overspend by £1.577m. 

 The projected capital outturn is £73.378m, in line with the current budget.  This 
follows a net budget decrease of £26.405m in Quarter 3. 

 Current capital expenditure of £35.001m, representing 48% of the budget at 
Quarter 3, with 75% of the year elapsed. 

 One scheme is currently forecast to outturn in excess of the approved budget 
and delivery is significantly behind schedule. 

 In 2021/22 and 2022/23 capital receipts are currently projected to be lower 
than those required for the programme to a value of £8.959m and £13.959m 
respectively. Therefore, urgent action is required to progress further disposals 
identified in both the current and future years. 
 
 

2. Recommendations 
 
It is recommended that Members: 

A. Note that at the end of Quarter 3 (31st December 2020), the full year revenue 
forecast is a potential overspend of £0.838m; 

B. Consider the impact of this on the Council’s General Fund balance. 
C. Approve that Shropshire Council acts as accountable body for the Leisure 

Recovery Fund. 
 
 
 
 

REPORT 
 

3. Background 
 

3.1 Budget monitoring reports are produced monthly for Directors, and quarterly for 
Cabinet, reporting on the period from June (period 2) to February (period 11) of 
each financial year, highlighting the anticipated year end projection.  
 

Page 32



Cabinet, 8th March 2021: Financial Monitoring Report – Quarter 3 2020/21 

 

 
 3 

 

3.2 The monitoring reports track progress against agreed budget decisions, 
consider any budget changes (including re-profiling on Capital), forecast any 
significant variances to the budget, and enable corrective action to be taken to 
attempt to ensure a balanced budget at year end. 
 

3.3 Revenue variances are reported on an exception basis depending on the total 
variance from budget, and the percentage change in projection in any one 
period. 
 

Green Variance +/- 1% (or £0.05m if budget less than £5m) 

Amber Overspend between 1%-2% (or £0.05m-£0.1m if budget less than 

£5m) 

Red Variance over 2% (or £0.1m if budget less than £5m) 

Yellow Underspend more than 1% (or £0.05m if budget less than £5m) 
 

3.4 In addition, given the level of savings proposals identified for delivery in 
2020/21, this report also includes a second RAG rating, specifically relating to 
the delivery of savings. The ratings are as follows: 
 
Green – Saving identified, quantified and confirmed  
Amber – Saving identified but not yet confirmed 
Red – Saving not achieved or unachievable 

 
3.5 Capital schemes are also reported on an exception basis, based on being 

delivered within budget and the expectation of being delivered within scheme 
timeframe. 
 
 

4. Revenue Monitoring 2020/21 Budget - Overall Position 
 

4.1 The projected revenue forecast for the year at Quarter 3, shows a potential 
overspend of £0.838m (0.15%) on a gross budget of £575.462m (net 
£225.522m). The forecast year end position for the Council is revised each 
Quarter (monthly for Directors) and reported using the graph below.  The area 
of the graph banded green shows the extent of variance from the budget that 
can be seen as reasonable given the size and complexity of the Council’s 
budget.  At Quarter 3, the projected year end overspend of £0.838m is falling 
within the green banding as shown in Graph 1 below.  

  

Page 33



Cabinet, 8th March 2021: Financial Monitoring Report – Quarter 3 2020/21 

 

 
 4 

 

 
Graph 1: Projected Outturn Variance to Gross Budget 

 
 

 
4.2 The projected overspend of £0.838m for 2020/21 is presented below and 

analysed in more detail within Appendix 1. 
 

Table 1: 2020/21 Projected Budget Variations Analysed by Service Area  
Service Area Revised 

Budget 
£'000 

Forecast 
Outturn 

£'000 

(Under) / 
Overspend 

£'000 
RAGY 

Classification 
     

Adult Services  118,579 117,240 (1,338) Y 
Central DSG - - - G 
Children’s Services 53,015 60,291 7,276 R 
Corporate Budgets (6,358) (16,910) (10,552) Y 
Finance, Governance & Assurance 2,240 2,958 718 R 
Legal & Democratic Services 453 499 46 G 
Place 57,835 61,114 3,279 R 
Strategic Management Board 4 353 349 R 
Workforce & Transformation  (246) 814 1,060 R 
     

Total 225,522 226,359 838 G 

 
4.3 The forecast impact of Covid-19 in 2020/21 is included within the monitoring 

position.  The most recent estimate of additional costs for Covid-19 (including 
unachieved savings) is forecast to be £13.667m, with a further £11.247m net 
loss of income forecast, resulting in a total cost to the Council of £24.913m in 
2020/21.  Additional costs and loss of income are shown in the tables below 
within section 4.5.   

 
4.4 £22.410m non-ringfenced Covid-19 grant has been received by the Council, 

and the majority of this grant income is included in the monitoring position within 
Corporate Budgets, along with additional one-off costs incurred, such as 
additional payments to adult social care providers, the purchasing of PPE, 
delivery of food parcels and the costs of temporary accommodation for rough 

572,000,000

574,000,000

576,000,000

578,000,000

580,000,000

582,000,000

584,000,000

586,000,000

April Quarter 1 Quarter 2 Quarter 3 Outturn

£

Gross Expenditure 2020/21

Gross Budget

Projection

Page 34



Cabinet, 8th March 2021: Financial Monitoring Report – Quarter 3 2020/21 

 

 
 5 

 

sleepers. Lost income is shown within the appropriate service areas, to show 
the impact of Covid-19 on the running of ongoing Council services.   
 

4.5 It is estimated that the Council may be able to claim approximately £5.066m 
additional un-ringfenced support from MHCLG to recompense the Council for a 
proportion of lost sales, fees and charges income that has not been received 
by the Council due to the pandemic.  This further income support is also forecast 
within the appropriate service areas, along with the value of the non-ringfenced 
grant required to be applied to those service areas in order to reduce the net 
loss of income to nil. 

 

Covid-19 
Additional Expenditure Area 
(Included within Corporate Budgets 
within Monitoring Position) 

Expenditure 
as at 31st 
December 
2020 (£m) 

Forecast 
Expenditure 
to 31st 
March 2021 
(£m) 

Confidence 
in Forecast 
Outturn 
Expenditure 

Adult Social Care 3.478 3.943 G 

Housing Services 1.838 1.063 G 

Public Health 0.125 0.191 G 

Regulatory Services 0.004 0.012 G 

Children's Social Care 0.377 2.998 A 

Learning and Skills 0.048 0.254 A 

Risk Management and Insurance 0.000 0.002 R 

Elections 0.000 0.002 R 

Highways and Transport 0.077 0.056 G 

Arts 0.000 0.020 A 

Leisure 0.239 1.098 A 

Health and Safety 0.002 0.002 G 

Communications 0.006 0.009 G 

ICT Services 0.009 0.300 R 

PPE  0.499 0.735 A 

Delivery of Food Parcels and Essential 
Supplies, and Grants to Community 
Groups  0.129 0.150 G 

Lockdown Compliance and Reopening 
Costs 0.105 0.116 G 

Contribution to WMCA Covid-19 Hub 0.020 0.020 G 

Unachieved Savings* 2.299 2.694 G 

Total 9.254 13.667 A 

             *included within directorate monitoring positions 

Page 35



Cabinet, 8th March 2021: Financial Monitoring Report – Quarter 3 2020/21 

 

 
 6 

 

 
Covid-19 
Loss of Income 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Service Area 

Job 
Retention 
Scheme 
Income 
Expected 
from HMRC 
(£) 

2020/21 
Forecast Net 
Loss of 
Income Due 
to Covid-19 
(£) (Net 
forecast 
includes 
savings on 
expenditure 
as a result of 
service 
reduction, 
including Job 
Retention 
Scheme 
income) 

Estimated 
Loss of Sales 
Fees and 
Charges 
Income to be 
Claimed 
from MHCLG 
(£) 

Contribution 
from 
Unringfenced 
Covid-19 
Grant to 
Fund 
Remaining 
Loss (£) 

2020/21 
Forecast Net 
Loss of 
Income Due 
to Covid-19, 
After Central 
Government 
Compensation 
(£) 

Adult Services Business 
Support and 
Development (30,111) 0     0 

Adult Social Care 
Provider Services   69,605 (48,560) (21,045) 0 

Housing Services   118,100 (82,663) (35,437) 0 

Registrars   321,840 (206,436) (115,404) 0 

Regulatory Services   14,767 (4,363) (10,404) 0 

Trading Standards and 
Licensing   363,531 (222,466) (141,065) 0 

Children's Social Care 
and Safeguarding (4,267) 0       

Learning and Skills   325,533 (195,799) (129,734) 0 

Revenues and Benefits   1,150,000   (1,150,000) 0 

Corporate Landlord (255) 391,010   (391,010) 0 

Shire Services (426,826) 840,777 (337,839) (502,938) 0 

Planning Services   436,000 (169,448) (266,552) 0 

Shrewsbury Shopping 
Centres   915,199   (915,199) 0 

Environment and 
Transport - Parking   3,074,571 (2,090,628) (983,943) 0 

Waste Management   414,912   (414,912) 0 

Leisure (50,574) 476,331 (329,065) (147,266) 0 

Libraries   41,686 (28,440) (13,246) 0 

Museums and Archives (16,472) 276,953 (189,216) (87,737) 0 

Outdoor Partnerships   75,487 (44,718) (30,769) 0 

Theatre Services (100,898) 1,940,326 (1,116,613) (823,713) 0 

Total (629,403) 11,246,628 (5,066,254) (6,180,373) 0 

 
 

Page 36



Cabinet, 8th March 2021: Financial Monitoring Report – Quarter 3 2020/21 

 

 
 7 

 

4.6 In addition to the non-ringfenced grant of £22.410m, the Council has also been 
provided with several ringfenced grants in order to respond to the pandemic in 
various targeted ways.  Grants awarded to date are as shown in the table below.  
Expenditure and grant income are included within service area income and 
expenditure projections.  Some of the grants (e.g. business grants) will be 
passported through to third parties so do not count towards supporting local 
authority expenditure/activities.  No net financial impact of the activities funded 
by the grants below is forecast within the Quarter 3 monitoring position. 

 

Covid-19 Ringfenced Grants and Support 

Value / 
Assumed 

Value to be 
Received 

(£) 

Small Business Grants and Retail Hospitality & Leisure Grants 91,670,000 

Business Rate Reliefs: Expanded Retail Discount 44,878,454 

Closed Business Lockdown Payment 20,250,000 

Local Restrictions Support Grants  18,294,545 

Additional Restrictions Support Grant (Discretionary) 9,333,154 

Infection Control Fund 8,631,037 

Discretionary Business Grants 4,583,500 

Contain Outbreak Management Fund  3,231,360 

Test and Trace Support Grant 1,126,797 

Rapid Testing Fund 1,119,966 

Covid-19 Bus Service Support Grant 1,007,021 

Covid-19 Winter Grant Scheme 841,634 

Home to School Transport Grant 350,000 

Emergency Assistance Grant 311,900 

Reopening High Streets Safely Fund 288,194 

Christmas Support Grant for Wet-Led Pubs 275,200 

Business Rate Reliefs: Nursery Discount 249,244 

Support for the Clinically Extremely Vulnerable 157,388 

Compliance and Enforcement Grant 145,151 

Next Steps Accommodation Programme 123,500 

Active Travel Grant 86,000 

Transport Demand Management Grant 50,000 

Homelessness and Rough Sleeping Contingency Fund 12,000 

Workforce Capacity Fund TBC 

Self Isolation Grant (Test and Trace Support Payments) TBC 

Total 207,016,045 

 
 
5. Update on Savings Delivery 

 
5.1 The savings projections for 2020/21 have been RAG rated in order to establish 

the deliverability of the savings and any potential impact on the outturn 

Page 37



Cabinet, 8th March 2021: Financial Monitoring Report – Quarter 3 2020/21 

 

 
 8 

 

projection for the 2020/21 financial year.  RAG ratings have been categorised 
as follows: 
 
Red  –  Savings are not solved on an ongoing basis, nor have they been 

achieved in the current financial year. These are reflected as 
unachieved within this monitoring report. 

Amber  –  Savings have been identified on an ongoing basis in the current 
financial year, however there is no clear evidence to support the 
delivery as yet. The projected outturn within this report assumes 
these savings will be delivered. 

Green  –  Savings have been identified on an ongoing basis in the current 
financial year, with evidence of delivery. 

 
The RAG ratings are updated monthly to determine progress on delivery.  
 

 Table 2: Update on Delivery of 2020/21 Savings Proposals 

Service Area  Red  Amber Green 
Total 

Savings 

  £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 

Adult Services  1,672 551 4,823 7,046 

Central DSG - - - - 

Children's Services 2,136 4 266 2,407 

Corporate Budgets 51 38 524 613 

Finance, Governance and Assurance - 71 487 558 

Legal and Democratic Services 127 - 273 400 

Place 1,268 430 3,366 5,064 

Strategic Management Board - - - - 

Workforce and Transformation 1,671 482 484 2,637 

Council  6,925 1,577 10,223 18,725 

 
5.2 The figures presented above show that 55% of the 2020/21 savings required 

have been rated as green with a further 8% with plans in place to be delivered 
(rated amber). Paragraph 6.2 below provides further detail on the red savings. 

 
5.3 Managers have provided assurance that plans are in place to deliver the 

savings that have been categorised as amber, however as evidence of the 
delivery has not yet been identified, there is still a risk that these savings could 
impact on the outturn position for 2020/21.  As the year progresses, these 
amber savings should gradually turn to green as the evidence becomes 
available.  However, if the amber rated savings are not delivered as planned, 
the effect on the outturn position is shown in Table 3 below. 

 
5.4 Non-delivery of the amber rated savings would result in a projected outturn of 

£577.878m, and a total overspend of £2.415m which would leave the General 
Fund balance at an unsustainable level.  

  

Page 38



Cabinet, 8th March 2021: Financial Monitoring Report – Quarter 3 2020/21 

 

 
 9 

 

 
 Table 3: Effect of Non-Delivery of Amber Savings in 2020/21 

  

Quarter 3 
Projected 
Variance 

£'000 

Amber 
Savings 

 
£'000 

Potential Outturn 
if Amber Savings 

not Achieved 
£'000 

Adult Services  (1,338) 551 (787) 

Central DSG - - - 

Children’s Services 7,276 4 7,281 

Corporate Budgets (10,552) 38 (10,514) 

Finance, Governance & Assurance 718 71 789 

Legal & Democratic Services 46 - 46 

Place 3,279 430 3,709 

Strategic Management Board 349 - 349 

Workforce & Transformation  1,060 482 1,543 

Total 838 1,577 2,415 

 
 

6. Analysis of Outturn Projections including Delivery of Savings 
 

6.1 The monitoring position detailed in Table 1 includes the current position on 
delivery of savings proposals for 2020/21 in addition to new monitoring 
pressures identified and one-off solutions to reduce the projected overspend. 
Table 4 provides further analysis of the projected overspends for each service 
area. 

 
Table 4: Reconciliation of Monitoring Projections to Savings Delivery 
 

  

Quarter 3 
Projection 

Savings 
Pressure 

in 2020/21 

Ongoing 
Monitoring 
Pressures 
Identified 

Ongoing 
Monitoring 

Savings 
Identified 

One Off 
Monitoring 
Pressures 
Identified 

One Off 
Monitoring 

Savings 
Identified 

  £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 
              

Adult Services Business Support & Development (106)       98 (204) 
Adult Services Management 122 200       (78) 
Provider Services (57)       225 (282) 
Housing Services 670 752 396   42 (521) 
Social Care Operations (1,704)       138 (1,842) 
Bereavement Services (1)         (1) 
Regulatory Services (153) 175     15 (343) 
Trading Standards and Licensing (54) 325     214 (592) 
Registrars and Coroners (4) 30     292 (326) 
Non Ring Fenced Public Health Services (52) 0     27 (79) 
Ring Fenced Public Health Services (0) 190 25   714 (928) 

Adult Services (1,338) 1,672 421 0 1,764 (5,196) 

        
Central DSG 0       863 (863) 

Central DSG 0 0 0 0 863 (863) 

       
Children’s Social Care & Safeguarding 7,034 2,094 368 0 6,067 (1,495) 
Early Help, Partnerships and Commissioning (211) 0 0 0 45 (257) 
Children's Services Management  6 7 0 0 22 (23) 
Learning and Skills 447 36 24 0 400 (13) 

Children's Services 7,276 2,136 392 0 6,534 (1,787) 

        

Page 39



Cabinet, 8th March 2021: Financial Monitoring Report – Quarter 3 2020/21 

 

 
 10 

 

  

Quarter 3 
Projection 

Savings 
Pressure 

in 2020/21 

Ongoing 
Monitoring 
Pressures 
Identified 

Ongoing 
Monitoring 

Savings 
Identified 

One Off 
Monitoring 
Pressures 
Identified 

One Off 
Monitoring 

Savings 
Identified 

  £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 
Corporate Budgets (5,295) 51     749 (6,095) 
Business Continuity – Covid-19 (5,257)       10,972 (16,229) 

Corporate Budgets (10,552) 51 0 0 11,721 (22,324) 

        
Audit Services (99)         (99) 
Finance 22       132 (110) 
Pension Administration Services 0           
Revenues and Benefits 832   2,141   150 (1,459) 
Treasury Services (0)           
Commissioning Development and Procurement (10)         (10) 
Risk Management and Insurance (27)       12 (39) 

Finance, Governance and Assurance 718 0 2,141 0 294 (1,717) 

        
Democratic Services (108)       4 (112) 
Elections 64 77     8 (21) 
Legal & Democratic Services 89 50     141 (102) 

Legal and Democratic Services 46 127 0 0 153 (235) 

        
Director of Place 152 92 64     (4) 
Head of Commercial Services 64 96     21 (53) 
Corporate Landlord 142       533 (391) 
Facilities Management (1)         (1) 
Property Services (127)         (127) 
Strategic Asset Management 293   100   193   
Commercial Investment Team (1,061)       4 (1,065) 
Climate Change 0           
Shire Services 558   401   998 (841) 
Head of Economic Growth (29)       20 (49) 
Planning Services 206       206   
Economic Growth (7)       774 (781) 
Broadband 0       66 (66) 
Planning Policy 10       216 (207) 
Shrewsbury Shopping Centres – Development 
Sites 263 320     113 (170) 
Shrewsbury Shopping Centres – Commercial 
Sites 199   199   915 (915) 
Head of Infrastructure (6)         (6) 
Highways (166) 200     398 (764) 
Environment and Transport 916 200 1,316   2,475 (3,075) 
Waste Management (49)       415 (464) 
Head of Homes and Communities 389 350     39   
Housing Development and HRA 1,025       1,025   
Head of Culture, Leisure and Tourism 113   111   2   
Arts (0)           
Shropshire Hills AONB 19       19   
Outdoor Partnerships 86   50   228 (192) 
Leisure  248       476 (228) 
Libraries 59 9 98   42 (91) 
Museums and Archives (16)       277 (293) 
Theatre Services 0       1,940 (1,940) 

Place 3,279 1,268 2,339 0 11,395 (11,724) 

        
Strategic Management Board 349       488 (139) 

Strategic Management Board 349 0 0 0 488 (139) 

        
Customer Services (268)         (268) 
ICT Digital Transformation Project 2,787 1,181 1,606       
ICT Services (1,329) 435     279 (2,043) 

Page 40



Cabinet, 8th March 2021: Financial Monitoring Report – Quarter 3 2020/21 

 

 
 11 

 

  

Quarter 3 
Projection 

Savings 
Pressure 

in 2020/21 

Ongoing 
Monitoring 
Pressures 
Identified 

Ongoing 
Monitoring 

Savings 
Identified 

One Off 
Monitoring 
Pressures 
Identified 

One Off 
Monitoring 

Savings 
Identified 

  £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 
Communications 38       45 (7) 
Information, Intelligence and Insight (101)       10 (111) 
Human Resources &Organisational Development (67) 55     110 (232) 

Workforce and Transformation 1,060 1,671 1,606 0 444 (2,661) 

        
TOTAL 838 6,925 6,898 0 33,656 (46,645) 

 
6.2 The 2020/21 savings projected not to be delivered within the Quarter 3 position 

are as follows: 
 

Reference Directorate Service Area Description 

2020/21 
Saving 
Required 
(£) 

Value 
Rated 
Red (£) 

Forecast 
Impact of 
Covid-19 
on Red 
Savings 

2A37R Adult Services 
Housing 
Services 

Increased Housing 
Income 150,000 100,000 100,000 

2A38R Adult Services 
Housing 
Services 

Utilisation of HRA 
monies to fund 
temp 
accommodation 
properties 172,200 172,200 0 

2A46R Adult Services 
Regulatory 
Services 

Regulatory 
Services, Trading 
Standards and 
Licensing review 
leading to 
redesign of 
delivery model, 
structures and an 
increased focus on 
income 
generation. 
Opportunities 
include; increased 
alignment to the 
CSC and an 
increased digital 
presence. 200,000 175,000 175,000 

Page 41



Cabinet, 8th March 2021: Financial Monitoring Report – Quarter 3 2020/21 

 

 
 12 

 

2A46R Adult Services 

Trading 
Standards and 
Licensing 

Regulatory 
Services, Trading 
Standards and 
Licensing review 
leading to 
redesign of 
delivery model, 
structures and an 
increased focus on 
income 
generation. 
Opportunities 
include; increased 
alignment to the 
CSC and an 
increased digital 
presence. 200,000 175,000 175,000 

H16 Adult Services 

Trading 
Standards and 
Licensing 

Increase parking 
enforcement 
functions in line 
with the parking 
strategy 100,000 100,000 100,000 

H24 Adult Services 

Ring Fenced 
Public Health 
Services 

Reclaim of funds 
from out of area 
for sexual health 
services (Wales) 50,000 50,000 0 

2A03 Adult Services 
Housing 
Services 

External income 
generation 100,000 50,000 0 

2A17 Adult Services 
Housing 
Services DFG Fees interest 100,000 100,000 100,000 

2A18 Adult Services 
Housing 
Services 

Reclaim of HRA 
monies 80,000 80,000 0 

2A20 Adult Services 

Ring Fenced 
Public Health 
Services 

Redesign of 
integrated sexual 
health services 100,000 100,000 0 

2A27 Adult Services 
Registrars and 
Coroners 

Registrars and 
Coroners income 
and reserve 
savings 30,000 30,000 30,000 

2A28 Adult Services 

Ring Fenced 
Public Health 
Services 

Public Health 
services training 
income 10,000 10,000 10,000 

2A29 Adult Services 

Ring Fenced 
Public Health 
Services 

Review of NHS 
Healthchecks, 
Preventive Health 
and Health TV. 30,000 30,000 30,000 

Page 42



Cabinet, 8th March 2021: Financial Monitoring Report – Quarter 3 2020/21 

 

 
 13 

 

2A30 Adult Services 

Trading 
Standards and 
Licensing 

Increase parking 
enforcement 
functions in line 
with the parking 
strategy 50,000 50,000 50,000 

2P02 Adult Services 
Housing 
Services 

New model for 
temporary 
housing 250,000 250,000 0 

2A15 Adult Services 
Adult Services 
Management 

PFI Contract 
Savings 200,000 200,000 0 

P41 
Children's 
Services 

Children's 
Services 
Management 

Negotiate 
contract savings 
upon renewal, 
through better 
contract 
management 6,880 6,880 0 

2C03 
Children's 
Services 

Children’s 
Social Care and 
Safeguarding 

North Yorks - No 
children in 
residential care 
model 2,000,000 2,000,000 1,000,000 

2C09 
Children's 
Services 

Children’s 
Social Care and 
Safeguarding 

New Residential 
Homes 100,000 50,000 50,000 

2C10 
Children's 
Services 

Children's 
Social Care and 
Safeguarding 

Reduction in use 
of agency workers 150,000 43,960 0 

2C06 
Children's 
Services 

Learning and 
Skills 

Reduction to 
Council Central 
Schools Block of 
Dedicated Schools 
Grant 100,000 35,600 0 

2F01 
Corporate 
Budgets 

Corporate 
Budgets 

Insurance 
premiums and 
recharges 163,000 51,000 0 

2LD04 

Legal and 
Democratic 
Services Legal Services 

New Children's 
Lawyer 50,000 50,000 0 

2LD07 

Legal and 
Democratic 
Services Elections JLB Bid Funding 76,690 76,690 0 

P11 Place Libraries 
Review of library 
provision 73,950 9,420 9,420 

P41 Place 
Director of 
Place 

Negotiate 
contract savings 
upon renewal, 
through better 
contract 
management 92,320 92,320 0 

P65 Place 

Shrewsbury 
Shopping 
Centres - 

Income 
generation from 320,000 320,000 320,000 

Page 43



Cabinet, 8th March 2021: Financial Monitoring Report – Quarter 3 2020/21 

 

 
 14 

 

Development 
Sites 

investment in 
assets 

P05 Place 

Head of 
Commercial 
Services 

Review of car 
parking at 
administrative 
sites 96,000 96,000 96,000 

2P03 Place 
Environment 
and Transport 

Support package 
for Operation of 
Park and Ride 200,000 200,000 200,000 

2P05 Place 

Head of Homes 
and 
Communities HRA cost recovery 100,000 100,000 0 

2P02 Place 

Head of Homes 
and 
Communities 

New model for 
temporary 
housing 250,000 250,000 0 

2P210 Place Highways    
LED Street 
Lighting 200,000 200,000 0 

2WT06 
Workforce and 
Transformation ICT Services 

PCI, SIP trunking 
and Telephony 200,000 8,830 8,830 

2WT12 
Workforce and 
Transformation 

Human 
Resources and 
Organisational 
Development 

Review of First 
Line HR Contacts 25,000 25,000 0 

2WT13 
Workforce and 
Transformation ICT Services 

Mobile Phone 
Contract 
Reduction 40,000 40,000 20,000 

2WT14 
Workforce and 
Transformation 

Human 
Resources and 
Organisational 
Development 

Re-working ICT 
approvals process 30,000 30,000 0 

2WT20 
Workforce and 
Transformation ICT Services 

Contract 
reductions from IT 
infrastructure 
replacement 283,000 283,000 0 

2WT21 
Workforce and 
Transformation ICT Services 

WAN contract 
reductions 103,000 103,000 103,000 

2WT23 
Workforce and 
Transformation 

ICT Digital 
Transformation 
Project 

Lean review of 
Shropshire Council 
structures and 
processes linked 
to transformation, 
single front door 
and digital 
enabling 
technologies 1,181,000 1,181,000 0 

TOTAL 7,663,040 6,924,900 2,577,250 

 
More detail on these is provided within the relevant service sections of 
Appendix 1. 

Page 44



Cabinet, 8th March 2021: Financial Monitoring Report – Quarter 3 2020/21 

 

 
 15 

 

 
6.3 A number of ongoing pressures have been identified within service areas, some 

of which relate to savings unachieved in previous financial years.  Ongoing 
pressures identified at Quarter 3 are as follows: 

 

Directorate Service / Description 
Nature of Ongoing 
Monitoring Pressure Value (£) 

Adult Services Housing - Temporary Accommodation Demography 396,319 

Adult Services 
Public Health - Out of Hours Call 
Service  Historic unachieved saving  24,800 

Children's Services 
Shrewsbury Training and 
Development Centre Reduced income 23,730 

Children's Services Children's Social Care Placements 
Demography and staff 
budget 47,950 

Children's Services Social Work Teams Staff budget 184,700 

Children's Services Children's Social Care Agency Costs Staff budget 135,140 

Finance, 
Governance and 
Assurance Housing Benefits Housing Benefit Subsidy loss 2,141,000 

Place Shire Services Historic unachieved saving  401,100 

Place Strategic Asset Management Historic unachieved saving  100,000 

Place Director of Place Historic unachieved saving  63,970 

Place Environment and Transport Historic unachieved saving  1,316,000 

Place Outdoor Partnerships Historic unachieved saving  50,000 

Place Libraries Historic unachieved saving  98,000 

Place Head of Culture, Leisure and Tourism Staff budget 111,064 

Place Shrewsbury Shopping Centres 
Reduced rental income and 
increased costs 198,591 

Workforce and 
Transformation DTP - Transformation Savings Historic unachieved saving 1,116,000 

Workforce and 
Transformation 

DTP - Single Front Door / Face to Face 
Review Historic unachieved saving 490,000 

TOTAL     6,898,364 

 
Significant further work is required within service areas to find an ongoing basis 
for managing and funding these pressures so that further growth is not required 
within the Financial Strategy, leading to an increase in the funding gap. 

 
 
7. General Fund Balance 

 
7.1. The effect on the Council’s reserves of the outturn forecast is detailed below. 

The Council’s policy on reserve balances is to have a General Fund balance 

Page 45



Cabinet, 8th March 2021: Financial Monitoring Report – Quarter 3 2020/21 

 

 
 16 

 

(excluding schools balances) of between 0.5% and 2% of the gross revenue 
budget. For 2020/21 the minimum balance required would therefore be 
£2.877m, although this is no longer considered to be an acceptable guide.   
 

7.2. The more appropriate risk-based target balance for the General Fund, as 
calculated in the General Fund Balance section of the Medium Term Financial 
Strategy 2020-25, reported to Council on 27th February 2020, is £19.242m. The 
2021/22 value will be reassessed ahead of the next Financial Year and planning 
adjusted accordingly.  
 

7.3. Based on the current monitoring position, the General Fund balance will reduce 
significantly at year-end, as shown in table 5 below.  The projected balance will 
be significantly below the required risk assessed target.  

 
Table 5: Projected General Fund Balance as at 31 March 2021 

 

  £'000 

General Fund Balance as at 31 March 2020 13,510 

  
This Report – Projected Outturn 
Under/(Over)spend (838) 
  
  
Projected Balance at 31 March 2021 12,672 

 
8. Movement in Capital Programme for 2020/21 
 
8.1 The capital budget for 2020/21 is subject to a review of the position of all 

projects during Quarter 3 and reprofiling where required into future years. In 
Quarter 3 there has been a net budget decrease of £30.363m for 2020/21, 
compared to the position reported at Quarter 2 2020/21.  Table 6 summarises 
the overall movement, between that already approved, changes for Quarter 3 
and the programme financing. 

Table 6: Revised Capital Programme Quarter 3 2020/21 

Page 46



Cabinet, 8th March 2021: Financial Monitoring Report – Quarter 3 2020/21 

 

 
 17 

 

 
 
8.2 Within the financing of the Capital Programme £1.399m is funded from revenue 

contributions. The major areas of revenue contributions to capital are £0.253m 
approved towards essential repairs in relation to the Corporate Landlord estate 
and £1.165m in ringfenced HRA monies to new build schemes (£0.700m) and 
the major repairs programme (£0.465m). 

8.3 Full details of all budget changes are provided in Appendix 2 to the report.  
Significant budget changes across the life of the programme in Quarter 3 are: 

Budget Increases 

 Increase of £1.517m CIL contributions to Highways projects. 

 Increase of £1.500m Prudential Borrowing requirement in relation to The 
Tannery project. 

 Increase of £0.789m funding from capital receipts fir HRA acquisitions. 

 Increase of £0.315m in relation to SEPuBu Phase 2 projects; £0.189m 
ERDF funding and £0.126m revenue contributions to capital match 
funding. 

 Grant award from DfE of £0.119m for Schools Full Fibre Broadband 
projects. 

 Increase of £0.089m in relation to newly approved S106 Parish Council 
Outdoor Recreation projects. 

 Grant award from DEFRA of £0.050m for Flood & Water Management 
schemes. 

 Increase of £0.013m in school revenue contribution to DFC projects. 

 Increase of £0.002m in S106 contributions in relation to ITP scheme in 
Shifnal to cover planned expenditure. 

 
Budget Decreases 

 Reduction of £2.716m of HRA revenue contributions to the HRA New 
Build Phase 5 scheme a budget requirement reduction for delivery of the 
2020/21 programme. 

Detail Agreed Capital 

Programme - 

Council 27/02/20

£

Slippage & 

Budget Changes 

Approved To Q2 

2020/21

£

Quarter 3  Budget 

Changes to be 

Approved

£

Revised 2020/21 

Capital 

Programme 

Quarter 3

£General Fund

Adult Services 72,225,091 (1,007,196) (2,876,088) 68,341,807

Childrens Services 7,537,407 (5,240,764) (3,459,784) (1,163,141)

Place & Enterprise 15,611,241 (3,037,800) (13,705,196) (1,131,755)

Workforce & Transformation 1,400,000 994,901 (1,000,000) 1,394,901

Total General Fund 96,773,739 (8,290,859) (21,041,068) 67,441,812

Housing Revenue Account 22,255,610 (10,954,931) (5,364,233) 5,936,446

Total Approved Budget 119,029,349 (19,245,790) (26,405,301) 73,378,258

Financing

Self Financed Prudential Borrowing * 43,635,000 (32,369,642) (6,691,954) 4,573,404

Government Grants 43,722,715 7,867,036 (4,275,922) 47,313,829

Other Grants - 271,742 189,216 460,958

Other Contributions 14,043,449 (2,537,506) (3,652,658) 7,853,285

Revenue Contributions to Capital 4,179,610 227,332 (3,007,699) 1,399,243

Major Repairs Allowance 5,026,000 1,543,444 (3,117,672) 3,451,772

Corporate Resources (expectation - 

Capital Receipts only)

8,422,575 5,751,805 (5,848,612) 8,325,768

Total Confirmed Funding 119,029,349 (19,245,790) (26,405,301) 73,378,258

Page 47



Cabinet, 8th March 2021: Financial Monitoring Report – Quarter 3 2020/21 

 

 
 18 

 

 Reduction of £1.989m of Major Repairs Allowance contributions to the HRA 
Major Repairs Programme due to a budget requirement reduction for 
delivery of the 2020/21 programme. 

 Removal of £1.215m of SALIX funding in relation to Street Lighting LED 
Conversion project now on hold pending review of scheme. 

 Removal of £0.416m Environment Agency grant funding in relation to 
Flood & Water Management schemes that are no longer progressing. 

 Reduction of £0.101m capital receipts funding as a result of agreed transfer 
to revenue in relation to Shropshire Empty Property Grants (£0.100m) and 
completion of Snailbeach Lead Mine scheme (£0.001m). 

 Reduction of £0.065m S106 and £0.076m CIL contributions in relation to 
completed school schemes. 

 Reduction of £0.017m S106 contributions in relation to completed and 
legacy schemes, 

 Reduction of £0.004m private sector contributions. 
 
 
 
 

Budget Re-profiling 
 

 Adult Services 
Reprofiling of £1.115m Department of Health (DoH) Disabled Facilities 
grant in relation to the future programme and to reflect the anticipated 
expenditure profile. 
Reprofiling of £0.900m DoH HOLD grant to reflect the anticipated 
expenditure profile. 
Reprofiling of £0.150m capital receipts to reflect the anticipated 
expenditure profile in relation to Shropshire Empty Property grants. 
Reprofiling of £0.611m capital receipts in line with programme delivery 
and anticipated expenditure profile and to meet the future programme. 

 

 Children’s Services 
Reprofiling of £2.000m Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL) funding in 
relation to New Primary Provision - Bowbrook (£1.500m) and Whitchurch 
Junior Extension (£0.500m) to reflect anticipated expenditure profiles. 
Reprofiling of £0.296m Prudential Borrowing requirements to reflect the 
expected expenditure profile of Children’s Residential Care projects. 
Reprofiling of £0.250m CIL and £0.057m S106 contributions to reflect 
delivery of the Schools Future Place Planning programme. 
Reprofiling of £0.200m DfE Devolved Formula Capital grant to reflect the 
expected expenditure profile of various school schemes. 
Reprofiling of £0.168m capital receipts to reflect the anticipated 
expenditure profile of various Early Years and school schemes. 
Reprofiling of £0.160m CIL contributions to reflect the anticipated 
expenditure profile of various school schemes. 
Reprofiling of £0.150m S106 contributions in relation Whitchurch Infants 
Extension to reflect the anticipated expenditure profile. 
Reprofiling of £0.069m S106 contributions to reflect the anticipated 
expenditure profile of various school schemes. 

Page 48



Cabinet, 8th March 2021: Financial Monitoring Report – Quarter 3 2020/21 

 

 
 19 

 

Reprofiling of £0.033m Condition grant in relation to Shifnal Primary 
School scheme to reflect the anticipated expenditure profile. 
Reprofiling of £0.027m Condition grant to reflect the anticipated delivery of 
a school scheme. 
Reprofiling of £0.007m Healthy Pupils Capital grant to reflect delivery of a 
school scheme. 
 

 Place 
Reprofiling of £6.681m Prudential Borrowing requirements to reflect 
anticipated expenditure profiles in relation to future commercial 
investments (£5.481m) and DVSA Site Acquisition (£1.200m). 
Reprofiling of £4.590m capital receipts funding to reflect anticipated 
expenditure profiles in relation to Broadband (£2.706m), SITP (£0.516m), 
Shrewsbury Self Build Scheme (£0.500m), In Vessel Composting project 
(£0.325m), Affordable Housing Rolling Fund (£0.201m), Shirehall FRA 
Works (£0.200m) and Oxon Link Road (£0.142m). 
Reprofiling of £1.500m DfT Safer Roads Fund in relation to A529 Road 
Safety Works to reflect the anticipated expenditure profile. 
Reprofiling of £1.409m CIL contributions to reflect delivery of Highways 
projects. 
Reprofiling of £1.000m S106 contributions in relation to SITP to reflect the 
anticipated expenditure profile. 
Reprofiling of £0.191m MHCLG Community Housing Fund in relation to 
Community Housing - Community Led Affordable Housing fund to reflect 
the anticipated expenditure profile. 
Reprofiling of £0.096m General Fund revenue contributions in relation to 
Community Led Affordable Housing Grant Scheme to reflect the 
anticipated expenditure profile. 
Reprofiling of £0.050m Environment Agency grant to reflect the 
anticipated expenditure profile for Shropshire Slow the Flow project. 
Reprofiling of £0.033m capital receipts and £0.005m EA grant to meet the 
future Flood and Water Management programme. 
Reprofiling of £0.005m private sector contributions to reflect delivery of 
the Ash Parva 30mph Speed Limit project. 
 

 Workforce & Transformation 
Reprofiling of £1.000m capital receipts in relation to ICT Digital 
Transformation to reflect the anticipated expenditure profile. 
 

 Housing Revenue Account 
Reprofiling of £1.128m Major Repairs Allowance contributions to reflect 
expected delivery of the Major Repairs Programme. 
Reprofiling of £0.300m revenue contributions to reflect the anticipated 
expenditure profile in relation to a new build scheme. 
Reprofiling of £0.020m capital receipts to reflect the anticipated 
expenditure profile in relation to PSH adaptations. 

 
 

9. Actual versus Planned Expenditure to Date 

Page 49



Cabinet, 8th March 2021: Financial Monitoring Report – Quarter 3 2020/21 

 

 
 20 

 

9.1  The actual capital expenditure at Quarter 3 is £35.001m, which represents 51% 
of the revised capital budget at Quarter 3, 75% of the year. This is slightly low 
in comparison to the total budget, but in line with the average expenditure 
percentage at this period in previous years. All budgets are fully allocated to 
projects and will be monitored for levels of spend throughout the remainder of 
the year. Based on recent years, the capital programme has out-turned at 
around 85% of the outturn budget, which on average has been around 20% 
lower than the budget at this point in the year, due to further re-profiling later in 
the year. 

9.2 The level of spend is slightly low across the programme in some areas, but 
equal to the level of spend in the previous year at this period. In terms of the 
major areas the spend position is as follows: Adult Services 55% (budget 
£2.640m), Children’s Services 29% (budget £8.202m), Place 52% (budget 
£55.205m), Workforce & Transformation 35% (budget £1.395m), HRA Major 
Repairs & New Build Programme 29% (budget £5.936m). 

  

Page 50



Cabinet, 8th March 2021: Financial Monitoring Report – Quarter 3 2020/21 

 

 
 21 

 

 

10. Schemes Forecast Outturn & Delivery 

10.1. Capital schemes within the capital programme are not only continually 
monitored in terms of current year actual expenditure against budget but also 
in terms of scheme forecast outturn compared to budget and scheme delivery 
against profile.  This is achieved by RAG rating each scheme as follows: 

RAG  Rating Scheme Projected Outturn Scheme Projected Delivery 

Red Schemes with a forecast 
outturn in excess of 10% of 
the current scheme budget.  

Scheme significantly below 
profile at current period and 
not expected to deliver as 
original profile. 

Amber Schemes with a forecast 
outturn in excess of 5% of 
the current scheme budget.  

Scheme below profile at 
current period and will not 
deliver as original profile. 

Green Schemes with a forecast 
outturn of less than or equal 
to the current scheme 
budget. 

Scheme on profile at current 
period and expected to be 
delivered as original profile. 

 

10.2. For most schemes, forecast outturn against budget and scheme delivery 
against  profile at Quarter 3 are within acceptable limits, however, currently one 
scheme is rated red in relation to both forecast outturn and scheme delivery.  
This scheme is discussed in detail below. 

 

Ludlow Assembly Rooms - Refurbishment Works 

The scheme budget totals £3.475m and forecast outturn is currently £3.753m; 
a potential scheme over spend of £0.366m.  Additionally, the scheme is also 
significantly behind schedule.  The majority of the overspend and overrun have 
arisen due to unforeseen works requirements relating to the condition of the 
building.  Of this forecast overspend £0.117m is as a direct result of the COVID-
19 pandemic and relates to increased costs arising from unavoidable project 
time delays.  This potential overspend has been reported and discussed by the 
Project Board.  The Board has implemented a recovery plan and actions in 
order to bring the scheme back within the approved budget. 

10.3. The position of this scheme will continue to be closely monitored and reported 
in subsequent monitoring reports. 

 
11. Impact of COVID-19 Pandemic 
 
11.1. Impact of the COVID-19 pandemic on capital schemes, in terms of both forecast 

outturn and delivery, in addition to new specific schemes, are routinely 

Page 51



Cabinet, 8th March 2021: Financial Monitoring Report – Quarter 3 2020/21 

 

 
 22 

 

considered and assessed at individual project boards and during monthly 
monitoring. 

11.2. As previously referred to in paragraph 3.2, the Ludlow Assembly Rooms project 
has incurred additional costs of £0.117m as a direct result of the COVID-19 
pandemic. 

11.3. It has been necessary to instigate two new projects, with total costs of £0.020m, 
to meet operational requirements in Adult Services as a result of the pandemic.  
These projects are: 

 Avalon - Outside Toilet Facility 

 Oak Farm - Lean-To Shelter for Handwashing 
 

12. Capital Receipts Position 
 
12.1 The current capital programme is heavily reliant on the Council generating 

capital receipts to finance the capital programme. There is a high level of risk in 
these projections as they are subject to changes in property and land values, 
the actions of potential buyers and being granted planning permission on sites. 
Table 7 below, summarises the current allocated and projected capital receipt 
position across 2020/21 to 2023/24.  A RAG analysis has been included for 
capital receipts projected, based on the current likelihood of generating them 
by the end of each financial year.  Those marked as green are where they are 
highly likely to be completed by the end of the financial year, amber are where  
they are achievable but challenging and thus there is a risk of slippage, and red 
are highly unlikely to complete in year and thus there is a high risk of slippage. 
However, no receipts are guaranteed to complete in this financial year as there 
may be delays between exchanging contracts and completing. 

Table 7: Projected capital receipts position  
 

 
 
12.2 Capital receipts of £19.619m were brought forward from 2019/20 and £3.555m 

has been generated to date in 2020/21.  A further £1.261m is currently projected 
as ‘Green’ for 2020/21, which mainly relates to the sale of Westgate, Bridgnorth 
(£0.869m) and from the sale of HRA Right to Buy properties (£0.418m). 

 

Detail 2020/21

£

2021/22

£

2022/23

£

2023/24

£

Corporate Resources Allocated in Capital Programme 8,325,769 15,944,792 5,000,000 

Capital Receipts used to finance redundancy costs                       - 

To be allocated from Ring Fenced Receipts         6,964,796           6,250,000                        -                     - 

Total Commitments 11,290,565 22,194,792 5,000,000 -

Capital Receipts in hand/projected:

Brought Forward in hand 19,619,249 13,145,236 (8,958,694) (13,958,694)

Generated 2020/21YTD 3,555,163        - -                     - 

Projected - 'Green' 1,261,388        90,863 -                     - 

Total in hand/projected 24,435,801      13,236,098 (8,958,694) (13,958,694)

Shortfall to be financed from Prudential Borrowing / 

(Surplus) to carry forward

(13,145,236) 8,958,694 13,958,694 13,958,694 

Further Assets Being Considered for Disposal 1,360,953         21,144,424         10,018,000      15,900,000 

Page 52



Cabinet, 8th March 2021: Financial Monitoring Report – Quarter 3 2020/21 

 

 
 23 

 

12.3 Based on the current programme and capital receipts in hand and projected as 
Green for 2020/21, the programme is affordable and there will be a balance of 
£13.145m to carry forward. 
 

12.4 In 2021/22 and 2022/23 there are currently projected shortfalls of capital 
receipts of £8.959m and £13.959m respectively, which may need to be financed 
from Prudential Borrowing if they cannot be addressed by progressing the 
disposals programmed for future years.  There is an urgent pressure to 
progress the disposals programmed for future years, to ensure they are 
realised, together with realising the revenue running cost savings from some of 
the properties. Considerable work is required to realise these receipts, with 
generally a lead in time of at least 12 to 18 months on larger disposals. In 
addition to the current expenditure commitments, the programme will also grow 
as new schemes are approved through the Capital Investment Board or if the 
Council further utilises the greater flexibilities around the use of capital receipts 
for transformational revenue purposes. 

 
12.5 It is important that work progresses, to minimise the funding shortfall.  Failure 

to generate the required level of capital receipts will result in the need to further 
reduce or re-profile the capital programme, some of which will occur naturally 
as part of the review of the delivery of schemes; or undertake prudential 
borrowing, which will incur future year revenue costs that are not budgeted for 
in the revenue financial strategy. 

 
 

13.   External Funding – National Leisure Recovery Fund (Sport England) 
 
13.1 Shropshire Council made a bid in January 2021 to the National Leisure 

Recovery Fund (Sport England), to support contracted out leisure facilities as 
they recover from the impact of the Covid-19 pandemic. 

 
13.2 The Council applied for a total of £0.836m funding to cover the period 

December 2020 to March 2021.  Wem Town Council also wished to make a bid 
but was advised that any bid from the organisation should come through the 
local authority.  Shropshire Council’s bid therefore included an element 
amounting to £0.013m to support the facilities at Wem.  The Council will hear 
whether this application is successful in late February 2021.  

 
13.3 If the application is successful, as accountable body, the Council will enter into 

a grant funding agreement with Wem Town Council, arrange the payment of 
the organisation’s funding and monitor progress of the programme to confirm 
that the funding is being used correctly. 

  

Page 53



Cabinet, 8th March 2021: Financial Monitoring Report – Quarter 3 2020/21 

 

 
 24 

 

 
 

List of Background Papers (This MUST be completed for all reports, but does 
not include items containing exempt or confidential information) 
 

Medium Term Financial Strategy 2020/21-2024/25 
Financial Rules 
Appendices 

1. Service Area Pressures and Actions 2020/21 
2. Amendments to Original Revenue Budget 2020/21 
3. Capital Budget and Expenditure 2020/21 

Page 54



Cabinet, 15th February 2021: Financial Monitoring Report – Quarter 3 2020/21 

 

 
 25 

 

Appendix 1 

Service Area Pressures and Actions 2020/21 
 

Summary 
 

  Budget Forecast Variance RAGY 

Adult Services  118,578,550 117,240,130 (1,338,420) Y 

Central DSG - - - G 

Children’s Services 53,014,990 60,291,321 7,276,331 R 

Corporate Budgets (6,357,730) (16,909,536) (10,551,806) Y 

Finance, Governance & Assurance 2,239,570 2,957,591 718,021 R 

Legal & Democratic Services 453,440 499,308 45,868 G 

Place 57,834,590 61,113,585 3,278,995 R 

Strategic Management Board 4,290 352,993 348,703 R 

Workforce & Transformation  (246,130) 814,068 1,060,198 R 

          

TOTAL 225,521,570 226,359,460 837,890 G 
 

 
Detail 

 
ADULT SERVICES   Full Year RAGY 

    

Budget 
£ 

Forecast 
£ 

Variance 
£   

Total     118,578,550    117,240,130  
    
(1,338,420) Y 

      

Adult Services Business 
Support and Development 

Portfolio Holder Adult 
Social Services and 
Climate Change      3,520,400       3,414,520  

       
(105,880) Y 

There is a projected underspend within Business Support and Development of (£0.106m) which is largely due to a 
number of managed vacancies across the service. The vacancies are not sustainable beyond the short-term, but 
will not impact service delivery in 2020/21.  A summary of the larger variances is as follows: 
• (£0.085m) underspend on Business Support. This is largely down to staffing and costs associated with posts, due 
to anticipated delays in appointing to vacant posts. 
• (£0.018m) underspend on Joint Training and the Professional Development Unit. This is largely down to staffing 
vacancies.  Some of this has been offset by loss of income. 

Adult Services 
Management 

Portfolio Holder Adult 
Social Services and 
Climate Change      1,958,710       2,080,887  

        
122,177  R 

There is a projected overspend within Adult Services Management of £0.122m.  A summary of the larger variances 
is as follows: 
• (£0.077m) underspend on staffing due to a Head of Service post not yet being appointed to. 
• £0.200m overspend due to an unachieved saving relating to PFI building contracts. 

Provider Services 

Portfolio Holder Adult 
Social Services and 
Climate Change      2,942,600       2,885,656  

         
(56,944) Y 

Page 55



Cabinet, 15th February 2021: Financial Monitoring Report – Quarter 3 2020/21 

 

 
 26 

 

There is a projected underspend within Provider Services of (£0.057m). The larger variances are as follows:  
• (£0.092m) underspend on preventative services contracts and increased Shared Lives Housing Benefit. This is a 
one-off saving in year. 
• £0.061m overspend at Four Rivers Nursing Home. There are cost pressures (mainly relating to Covid-19) on 
staffing of £0.061m, increased expenditure on supplies and services of £0.041m and loss of client contributions of 
£0.042m, some of which is offset by one-off Covid-19 related funding of (£0.083m). 
• (£0.024m) underspend within our in-house reablement service, START.  This is solely down to delays in 
recruiting staff and therefore carrying vacancies. 

Housing Services 

Portfolio Holder 
Housing and Strategic 
Planning      2,456,440       3,125,985  

        
669,545  R 

There is a projected overspend within Housing Services of £0.670m. The major variances are as follows:  
• (£0.246m) underspend on staffing due to anticipated in-year staff vacancies.  
• (£0.051m) net effect of under-achievement of income targets, offset by Covid-19 grant monies and underspend in 
service delivery related to projects such as assistive technology and Tech Severn. 
• £0.752m overspend relating to the expected underachievement of savings 
• (£0.182m) one-off savings achieved in prevention contracts 
• £0.396m anticipated overspend on temporary accommodation, due to an unprecedented number of homeless 
cases.  Savings targets have been proposed by reducing the reliance on more expensive bed and breakfast 
usage. 

Social Care Operations 

Portfolio Holder Adult 
Social Services and 
Climate Change   103,574,060    101,870,171  

    
(1,703,889) Y 

There is a projected underspend of (£1.704m) within the Social Care Operations section of Adult Services. The 
major variances are as follows: 
• (£1.073m) projected underspend within the purchasing budget. This is due to not seeing the level of growth in 
costs that was applied to the budget at budget setting. This could be partly, or entirely, down to the impact of 
Covid-19, where the Council is experiencing supressed demand as well as an increased death rate. There is also 
some one-off in year funding applied from NHSE, which is funding all hospital discharges from its Covid-19 
funding. This is an extremely volatile budget and assumptions made around in year growth are extremely difficult, 
made even more difficult due to the current pandemic and the unknown future. We are however starting to see 
demand increasing and we have a number of young adults requiring specialist placements. Budgeted growth 
projections have been altered to reflect the current situation. 
• (£0.540m) underspend due to a local authority decision to fund OT equipment costs through the Disabled 
Facilities Grant (capital funding) generating a revenue budget saving. This ongoing saving is to be reflected in the 
budget in 2021/22. 
• (£0.229m) underspend on all operational social work staffing due to anticipated delays in appointing to a number 
of staff vacancies. This is not sustainable in the longer term. 
• £0.123m overspend within maintenance and void costs across social care operations mainly with regards to 
occupational therapy equipment and supported living properties where void costs of properties are not covered by 
the collection of Housing Benefit of the inhabitants. 
• £0.015m overspend on transport costs. 

Bereavement Services 
Deputy Portfolio 
Holder Public Health        (263,170) 

       
(263,821) 

             
(651) Y 

Minor variation from budget at Quarter 3. 

Regulatory Services 

Portfolio Holder 
Communities, Place 
Planning and 
Regulatory Services      2,756,110       2,602,904  

       
(153,206) Y 

There is an underspend of (£0.153m) within the Regulatory Services section of Adult Services (Public Health). The 
major variances are as follows: 
• £0.175m of unachieved savings in relation to restructuring the services and increasing income that are not 
expected to be achieved due to resources being assigned to handling the outbreak. 
• (£0.262m) underspends due to delays in recruiting to vacant posts. 
• (£0.066m) underspend as a result of staffing resources reassigned to handling the Covid-19 pandemic under 
alternative funding streams. 

Trading Standards and 
Licensing 

Portfolio Holder 
Communities, Place         667,810          614,105  

         
(53,705) Y 

Page 56



Cabinet, 15th February 2021: Financial Monitoring Report – Quarter 3 2020/21 

 

 
 27 

 

Planning and 
Regulatory Services 

There is an underspend of (£0.054m) within the Trading Standards and Licensing section of Adult Services (Public 
Health). The major variances are as follows: 
• £0.175m of unachieved savings in relation to restructuring the services and increasing income that are not 
expected to be achieved due to resources being assigned to handling the outbreak. 
• (£0.149m) underspends due to delays in recruiting to vacant posts. 
• (£0.079m) underspend as a result of staffing resources reassigned to handling the Covid-19 pandemic under 
alternative funding streams. 

Registrars and Coroners 
Deputy Portfolio 
Holder Public Health         679,390          675,444  

           
(3,946) Y 

Minor variation from budget at Quarter 3. 

Non Ring Fenced Public 
Health Services 

Deputy Portfolio 
Holder Public Health         272,430          220,510  

         
(51,920) Y 

There is an underspend of (£0.052m) within the Non Ring Fenced section of Public Health. The larger variances 
are as follows: 
• (£0.032m) underspend due to a senior manager secondment arrangement which will not be ongoing. 
• (£0.020m) underspend as a result of staffing resources reassigned to handling the Covid-19 pandemic under 
alternative funding streams. 

Ring Fenced Public Health 
Services 

Deputy Portfolio 
Holder Public Health           13,770            13,770  

                 
(0) Y 

The Ring Fenced Public Health section of Adult Services is funded by Public Health England grant and is forecast 
to breakeven. The major variances within the breakeven position are as follows: 
• £0.150m of unachieved savings in relation to the redesign and procurement of sexual health services will not be 
achieved in 20/21 due to an unsuccessful procurement exercise. 
• £0.025m anticipated overspend on the out of hours call monitoring contract which is unlikely to be resolved in 
20/21 due to resource constraints. 
• (£0.332m) underspends expected in GP, pharmacy and inpatient payments for sexual health and substance 
misuse services where demand has temporarily reduced as a result of the Covid-19 outbreak. 
• (£0.127m) underspend due to a reduced outturn on NHS Healthcheck expenditure. 
• (£0.133m) underspend as a result of staffing resources reassigned to handling the Covid-19 pandemic under 
alternative funding streams. 
Additional grant received from Public Health England has been committed to investment in staffing resource and 
has resulted in the creation of a number of posts. The delay in recruiting to these new posts in addition to other 
one-off underspends is anticipated to result in a non-recurrent overall underspend within the ring fence of 
(£0.716m) in 20/21. 

      

CENTRAL DSG Full Year RAGY 

Budget 
£ 

Forecast 
£ 

Variance 
£   

Total - - -   

      

Central DSG 
Deputy Portfolio 
Holder Education                  -                     -                     -    G 

Page 57



Cabinet, 15th February 2021: Financial Monitoring Report – Quarter 3 2020/21 

 

 
 28 

 

There is a £0.863m budget pressure reported against Central Dedicated Schools Grant (DSG). A £0.145m budget 
pressure is reported against the Early Years Block of DSG as a direct result of the “double funding” of nursery 
placements due to Covid-19. There will be Early Years children who cannot access the free Early Years 
entitlement at the setting of their choice, either because it is still closed or because they have had to restrict places 
in order to operate safely within the current guidelines of Covid-19. This has led to the ‘double funding’ of the 
nursery places for these children. It is assumed that this cost will fall on the DSG rather than the Council's Covid-19 
grant. 
 
There is a £0.765m budget pressure on the High Needs Block of DSG. The budget pressure identified at Quarter 3 
relates to Post 16 FE College placements and top-up funding to mainstream schools. The SEND team believe that 
there will be a longer term impact once lockdown restrictions are eased. The costs pressures will be from a higher 
than "normal" proportion of Children presenting with needs that require top-up funding e.g. increased anxiety, plus 
an increase in demand for high cost residential placements or contributions towards joint funded high cost 
placements resulting from an increase in demand for these type of placements.  
 
There are a number of strategies in play to address the increasing deficit on the DSG with the aim of bring the 
Council's DSG account back into balance. These include;  
- Building capacity of maintained and academy school SEND Hubs as a more cost effective, local provision  
- Graduated Support Pathway (GSP) payments to children identified as requiring SEN support an early stage 
- Close partnership working with local mainstream college providers to realise efficiencies  
- Reducing reliance on Independent Special Schools through focusing on building capacity of maintained school 
SEND hubs and the development of a new free Special School from September 2022 
- Greater co-commissioning of provision with partners e.g Health and Social Care to meet the holistic needs of a 
child 
- Continue to support schools to be inclusive and manage the increase in permanent exclusions 

      

CHILDREN'S SERVICES   Full Year RAGY 

    

Budget 
£ 

Forecast 
£ 

Variance 
£   

Total       53,014,990      60,291,321  
     
7,276,331  R 

      

Children’s Social Care and 
Safeguarding 

Portfolio Holder 
Children's Services     32,354,320      39,388,310  

     
7,033,990  R 

The budget pressure in Children's Social Care reflects unachieved savings targets totalling £2.094m as well as 
ongoing budget pressures, many of which have continued from 2019/20 and mirror the national picture. 
 
£2.000m unachieved savings relates to the Stepping Stones project which has been partially delayed by Covid-19. 
The vision is that of a holistic approach to children in care with an individualised, wrap-around support system in 
place that pulls in key stakeholders to work in a multi-agency hub. This way of working will build on the strong 
foundations of outreach and short-breaks provision, as well as utilising residential care flexibly and creatively to 
help repair and prepare children and young people to step down to home or a foster family or onto independent 
living. The project requires investment in additional staff and property adaptations in order to deliver this £2.000m 
savings target so is a subject of an invest to save funding bid. Unfortunately, the project has been delayed by 
Covid-19 so it is forecast that no savings will be delivered in 2020/21. 
 
£0.050m unachieved savings relate to the 2 new residential children's homes. Again, the reason for this 
unachieved saving is Covid-19. While the first new children's home opened in February 2020 and is delivering 
some savings relating to the 2 children who are accommodated there, the opening of the second children's home 
was delayed to October due to Covid-19 lockdown restrictions, adversely impacting on savings delivery. The 
remaining £0.044m savings target relates to the use of agency workers. 
 
The largest overspending area within Children's Social Care is the external residential placements budget. There is 
a budget pressure of £0.988m being reported. Although, these types of placement are relatively small in number, 
they are high cost and we believe there is an increase in demand for this type of placement due to Covid-19 
increasing pressure on families during lockdown leading to an increase in neglect and abuse. There has been a 
large percentage increase in the number of children coming into the care of the Shropshire Council over the same 
period last year but this has not resulted in the same increase in residential placements. As at the end of 
December 2020, the number of external residential placements has reduced by 2 since the start of 2020/21 

Page 58



Cabinet, 15th February 2021: Financial Monitoring Report – Quarter 3 2020/21 

 

 
 29 

 

financial year. A commissioning and contracts manager was appointed in the 2019/20 financial year to scrutinise 
high cost residential placements with private providers where the Council is incurring additional costs relating to the 
child, which may include 1:1 or 2:1 levels of care, therapeutic intervention and education provision. By providing 
monitoring of these placements to provide assurance of value for money and challenge as to whether the 
increased levels of support often provided at a start of a placement could be reduced, this post has successfully 
managed to generate significant savings in 2019/20 and these savings will be considerably higher in the 2020/21 
financial year when we get the full-year effect in these reduction in placement costs plus any new reductions.  
 
As stated above, at the end of the 2018/19 financial year, the Council embarked on a strategy to develop additional 
in-house internal residential provision. One home opened in February 2020 and is operational while the second 
home opened in October 2020 once Ofsted had undertaken their inspection and assessment. This process was 
delayed due to Covid-19. In the meantime, there is an overspend of £0.390m across all of the Council's internal 
residential homes. This overspend relates to staffing pressures resulting from Covid-19 whereby existing staff have 
worked additional hours to provide additional support to the children accommodated at these homes during the 
pandemic, plus the cost of a Project Manager post to oversee the set-up of the 2 new children's homes. 
 
There is a budget pressure of £1.362m against External Fostering placements. Shropshire has experienced a 
significant increase in demand for fostering placements over the last few months (in line with the increase in looked 
after children described above) with a net increase of 62 new External Fostering placements since the start of the 
financial year (as at the end of December 2020). These placements are higher cost than internal foster placements 
with the average weekly cost of an external fostering placement at approximately £828 per week. However it 
remains a much more cost effective resource than residential placements which would be the alternative, and also 
ensures that children can remain in a family environment. Whilst Internal fostering placements are cheaper than 
external fostering placements, our internal fostering capacity is full. Covid-19 has prevented existing foster carers 
from taking any new children, while the recruitment of new foster carers which has been a strategy to address the 
budget pressures in placements has been negatively impacted by Covid-19 with far fewer inquiries from potential 
new foster carers. Pressures from the court to place children with families also impacts on the team’s capacity to 
undertake fostering assessments because they are undertaking family and connected persons assessments under 
the direction of the Court. Children’s Safeguarding are committed to increasing foster placement sufficiency so that 
the Council can care for more looked after children within a family environment.  This is not only in the best 
interests of the majority of looked after children but will lead to significant financial savings.  The aim is to increase 
the pool of foster carers and look to identify and support foster carers with the skills to look after more complex 
children. This will reduce demand for expensive residential provision. An ongoing monitoring pressure of £0.242m 
relates to increased capacity built into the Children’s Placement Service to enable the recruitment of more carers 
and retain and support current carers. A business case was approved to permit this. This provision has 
demonstrated significant impact on reducing the number of fostering placements breaking down, thus preventing 
higher cost placements whilst ensuring greater stability for our children.  
 
There is a budget pressure of £1.273m caused by staffing budget pressures across the rest of Children's Social 
Care. The majority but not all of this pressure has continued from previous years and relates to agency social 
workers covering social worker posts. It is necessary to ensure that children who are looked after, on a Child 
Protection Plan or children in need of a plan are adequately supported in line with statutory timescales and this will 
dictate that sickness, maternity or temporary vacancy must be covered in the interim through agency staff.  We 
have reduced the number of agency workers from 38 last year to 27.  We have retained some agency social 
workers through Covid-19 to maintain our ability to deliver our statutory responsibilities.  The service remains 
focused on recruitment and retention with a dedicated HR worker in post to support with the timely recruitment of 
social workers.  The recruitment campaign for children’s services has been continuous and we are engaged with 
the graduate programmes for social work Step Up.  The service has appointed 8 social work apprentices in 
January 2020 with a further cohort starting in January 2021. Whilst this strategy in itself has led to a further budget 
pressure of £0.185m on staffing, it was a deliberate strategy to grow our own social workers, to retain them in our 
employment, and ultimately reduce costs over the longer term. As of December 2020, recruitment remains a real 
issue with a heavy reliance on agency social workers due to the number of social worker vacancies and the 
challenges in recruiting to vacant posts. Those staff that are responding to our recruitment campaign tend to be 
inexperienced ASYE social workers, so agency workers will be required to stay in post for a limited time to support 
these new social workers until such time that they are able to take on full caseloads. Although growth was built into 
the budget for a number of social workers posts, this growth has been outstripped by increasing demand caused 
by rising LAC numbers and as a result there are still a small number of agency social workers who are classed as 
extra capacity albeit fewer than in 2019/20. As with other areas of Children's Social Care, the staffing budget 
position has been negatively impacted by Covid-19. 
 

Page 59



Cabinet, 15th February 2021: Financial Monitoring Report – Quarter 3 2020/21 

 

 
 30 

 

There is a £0.064m budget pressure relating to Adoption Services. £0.111m relates to the Joint Adoption Service 
with Telford & Wrekin Council where there are 2 posts in Post Adoption Support that are over and above the 
budgeted number of posts and an anticipated budget pressure on intra-agency adoption placements. These 2 
posts are critical as part of Shropshire Council's becoming part of a regional adoption agency called 
Together4Children.  The offsetting forecast underspend of £0.047m relates to Special Guardianship Allowances. 
Growth of £0.280m was built into the budget for 2020/21 and we have continued to see an increase in Special 
Guardianship Orders issued which mirrors the national trend where there has been a steep increase in the number 
of SGOs over the past 8 years.  These are less costly options than residential or fostering placements and give a 
child more permanence than a regular fostering arrangement. 
 
There is a one-off pressure of £0.132m in the Disabled Children's Team. The majority of this relates to an increase 
in Disabled Children's Team Direct Payments and prevention and support payments. This reflects an increase in 
demand for these type of payments and is partly the longer term impact of the temporary closure of the Council's 
commissioned overnight short breaks provision in 2019. 
 
The remaining £0.304m forecast overspend relates to one-off monitoring pressures on non-staffing budgets such 
as barrister fees, transport recharges and interpreting fees across several social work teams. The impact of Covid-
19 remains on these budget remains unknown as yet. 

Early Help, Partnerships 
and Commissioning 

Portfolio Holder 
Children's Services      2,298,370       2,087,406  

       
(210,964) Y 

The (£0.211m) one-off monitoring savings are forecast against Early Help. (£0.079m) is the result of in year 
vacancy management savings either within the Family Hubs structure or the Parenting team. A further (£0.144m) 
underspends relate to premises, supplies and services and staff mileage budgets for the six new Family Hubs. 
Work has commenced to determine if these underspends are ongoing or one-off in terms of the future structure of 
Early Help, as there is a plan to use these budgets in a different way within the service in the 2021/22 financial 
year.  
 
There is a net £0.012m overspend across non-staffing budgets across the remainder of Early Help. This results 
from a £0.030m expenditure relating to a Social Impact Bond offset by one-off underspends across budgets within 
the Specific Needs Clubs, Family Information Service or NEETs team. 

Children’s Services 
Management 

Portfolio Holder 
Children's Services         607,420          613,771  

            
6,351  G 

Minor variation from budget at Quarter 3. 

Learning and Skills 
Deputy Portfolio 
Holder Education     17,754,880      18,201,834  

        
446,954  R 

Page 60



Cabinet, 15th February 2021: Financial Monitoring Report – Quarter 3 2020/21 

 

 
 31 

 

The £0.345m forecast overspend reflects projected unachieved savings of £0.036m. £0.100m savings were 
planned in response to the Council's 2020/21 Central School Services Block DSG allocation from Government 
being reduced by 20% or £0.428m. While growth of £0.328m was built into the Learning and Skills budget to reflect 
this, it was anticipated that a further £0.100m reduction could be dealt with through savings by withdrawal of 
contributions to other service areas or reductions in contracts. To date £0.064m savings have been identified while 
work is ongoing to identify where the remaining £0.036m saving will be achieved. 
 
The largest projected overspend relates to home to school transport, with a £0.334m budget pressure being 
reported. It is important to note that while the Home to School Transport service has had growth built into the 
budget of £1.809m to increase the net budget to a total of £12.436m, this budget was not baselined at the 2019/20 
final outturn expenditure level of £12.719m.  The projected outturn position reflects that while expenditure will 
reduce in some areas of home to school transport in line with the  full-year effect of some 2019/20 savings, there 
are other areas of home to school transport where the service continues to see an increase in passenger numbers 
and costs. There is an acknowledged and demonstrable trend of increased SEN passenger numbers, while the 
service has also experienced an increase in the complexity of the needs of the children that are being transported 
which has had the effect of increasing the unit cost per passenger.  The introduction of a new Post-19 policy - as 
approved by Cabinet - has imposed a duty on the Council to make transport arrangements for adult learners aged 
19 and over attending educational institutions which has resulted in increased expenditure in this area and 2020/21 
will be the first year the full-year financial effect of this increase in duties has impacted. The extent of the impact of 
Covid-19 on home to school transport budgets is still unknown. Initially while schools were closed for lockdown, the 
Council continued to pay 100% of school transport contract rates to contractors for continuity and retention 
purposes. This was subject to strict conditions that providers were available to deliver a full service and not 
benefiting from the Coronavirus job retention scheme. In the Autumn Term, the Council received a £0.350m grant 
from the Department for Education for the first half-term to fund the additional costs of Covid-19. The projected 
additional costs for this period are difficult to predict.  

      

CORPORATE BUDGETS   Full Year RAGY 

    

Budget 
£ 

Forecast 
£ 

Variance 
£   

Total       (6,357,730) 
   
(16,909,536) 

   
(10,551,806) Y 

      

Corporate Budgets 

Portfolio Holder 
Finance and Corporate 
Support     (6,357,730) 

   
(11,652,576) 

    
(5,294,846) Y 

A saving of (£0.693m) was identified in the 2019/20 outturn report against MRP for 2020/21.  Additionally, a review 
of current budget has identified a further MRP saving (£2.250m) and (£2.013m) of Section 31 grant driven by 
delays in project delivery over the year. So this funding can be uncommitted for 2020/21. Part of the allocated 
element of this budget will be added to Invest to Save funding to support projects such as Stepping Stones and 
wider transformation and performance optimisation of the whole Council such as the 'Refocus' programme in future 
years.  Another allocated element of the budget will be used to support sustainability and carbon-reducing projects.  
Pressures against the interest receivable budget are forecast to be £0.268m. This needs to be monitored as the 
pressure may increase later in the year. This is currently offset by reduced interest payable, currently expected to 
be (£0.890m).   

Business Continuity - 
Covid 19 

Portfolio Holder 
Finance and Corporate 
Support                  -    

    
(5,256,960) 

    
(5,256,960) Y 

The Council has received £22.410m non-ringfenced Covid-19 grant, and the majority of this is included in the 
monitoring position within Corporate Budgets, along with additional one-off costs incurred, such as the purchasing 
of PPE, delivery of food parcels and the costs of temporary accommodation for rough sleepers.  As additional one-
off costs are forecast to be less than the grant received, a proportion of the grant is forecast to be allocated to 
service areas across the Council, to offset net losses of income caused by the pandemic.   

      

FINANCE, GOVERNANCE & ASSURANCE Full Year RAGY 

Page 61



Cabinet, 15th February 2021: Financial Monitoring Report – Quarter 3 2020/21 

 

 
 32 

 

    

Budget 
£ 

Forecast 
£ 

Variance 
£   

Total        2,239,570       2,957,591  
        
718,021  R 

      

Audit Services 

Portfolio Holder 
Finance and Corporate 
Support             1,000  

         
(97,791) 

         
(98,791) Y 

In year savings of (£0.098m) are anticipated from planned vacancy management and income generation. 

Finance 

Portfolio Holder 
Finance and Corporate 
Support          (37,150) 

         
(15,137) 

          
22,013  G 

In year savings targets are now expected to be achieved, however budget pressures of £0.049m exist in relation to 
additional staffing costs and £0.035m in relation to additional postage costs above those budgeted.  These 
additional costs have been partly offset by additional income of (£0.057m). 

Pension Administration 
Services 

Portfolio Holder 
Finance and Corporate 
Support           35,410            35,410                   -    G 

No variation from budget at Quarter 3. 

Revenues and Benefits 

Portfolio Holder 
Finance and Corporate 
Support      2,005,150       2,837,344  

        
832,194  R 

A pressure of £2.141m is forecast from the interim subsidy return, due to anticipated net Housing Benefit subsidy 
loss relating to an increase in homelessness.  This has been partly offset in year by the application of grant funds 
relating to Covid-19 of (£1.000m). Pressures have partly been offset in year by savings from vacancy management 
and savings on IT systems and legal disbursements of (£0.281m). 

Treasury Services 

Portfolio Holder 
Finance and Corporate 
Support             1,670              1,531  

             
(139) Y 

Minor variation from budget at Quarter 3. 

Commissioning 
Development and 
Procurement 

Deputy Portfolio 
Holder Procurement         168,770          158,531  

         
(10,239) Y 

Minor variation from budget at Quarter 3. 

Risk Management and 
Insurance 

Portfolio Holder 
Finance and Corporate 
Support           64,720            37,704  

         
(27,016) Y 

There are currently projected savings of (£0.027m) from expected staff vacancies. 

      

LEGAL AND DEMOCRATIC SERVICES Full Year RAGY 

    

Budget 
£ 

Forecast 
£ 

Variance 
£   

Total           453,440          499,308  
          
45,868  G 

      

Democratic Services 

Portfolio Holder 
Finance and Corporate 
Support             1,800  

       
(105,844) 

       
(107,644) Y 

In year savings within Committee Services have been identified at Quarter 3 from additional income (£0.028m).  
Efficiencies against supplies and services, subsistence and travel costs have also been identified across 
Democratic Services of (£0.080m). 

Page 62



Cabinet, 15th February 2021: Financial Monitoring Report – Quarter 3 2020/21 

 

 
 33 

 

Elections 

Portfolio Holder 
Finance and Corporate 
Support         440,300          504,435  

          
64,135  A 

Savings of £0.077m relating to grant bids for IER (Individual Electoral Registration) are unlikely to be delivered as 
anticipated and are projected not to be achieved. 

Legal Services 

Portfolio Holder 
Finance and Corporate 
Support           11,340          100,716  

          
89,376  A 

There are unachieved savings targets of £0.050m and expected increased budget pressures of £0.141m related to 
legal child-care costs.  It is likely that there will be further overspends in this area and this will be monitored closely.  
Overspends have currently been offset by planned savings from vacancy management of (£0.047m), in year 
savings across supplies and services budgets (£0.025m) and additional income (£0.030m). 

      

PLACE   Full Year RAGY 

    

Budget 
£ 

Forecast 
£ 

Variance 
£   

Total       57,834,590      61,113,585  
     
3,278,995  R 

      

Director of Place 

Portfolio Holder 
Communities, Place 
Planning and 
Regulatory Services         601,760          753,899  

        
152,139  R 

The cost centre holds the unachieved contract management savings for the directorate totalling £0.156m, which 
are being reviewed by the directorate senior team. 

Head of Commercial 
Services 

Deputy Leader and 
Portfolio Holder 
Assets, Economic 
Growth and 
Regeneration         145,990          210,378  

          
64,388  A 

The adverse variance is due to unachievable savings of £0.096m required from administrative buildings (less 
infrastructure costs (£0.053m) not incurred to facilitate the savings).  The decision was made not to proceed with 
these plans as they were deemed unachievable in light of the new ways in which Council is operating.  
A further pressure includes two consultancy reviews across the service resulting in unbudgeted expenditure of 
£0.022m. 

Corporate Landlord 

Deputy Leader and 
Portfolio Holder 
Assets, Economic 
Growth and 
Regeneration         482,360          624,835  

        
142,475  R 

£0.061m of this variance relates to unbudgeted ongoing expenditure associated with Shropshire Local.  Funding of 
Shropshire Local will form part of an overall business case/invest to save proposal, but, at present, the 
development has led to a financial pressure within Corporate Landlord. 
A further pressure of £0.077m is due to delays in agreeing a lease for the Gateway Education & Arts Centre, 
resulting in a loss of income in this financial year.  Some of the loss may be recovered from a service charge which 
is calculated towards the end of the year.  

Facilities Management 

Deputy Leader and 
Portfolio Holder 
Assets, Economic 
Growth and 
Regeneration             1,580                405  

           
(1,175) Y 

Minor variation from budget at Quarter 3. 

Property Services Group 

Deputy Leader and 
Portfolio Holder 
Assets, Economic             9,270  

       
(117,977) 

       
(127,247) Y 

Page 63



Cabinet, 15th February 2021: Financial Monitoring Report – Quarter 3 2020/21 

 

 
 34 

 

Growth and 
Regeneration 

Income relating to financial year 19/20 has been received this year and has produced a forecast overachievement 
of the income targets for PSG, resulting in a favourable forecast of (£0.124m) at Quarter 3. 

Strategic Asset 
Management 

Deputy Leader and 
Portfolio Holder 
Assets, Economic 
Growth and 
Regeneration         244,690          538,031  

        
293,341  R 

There is a budget pressure of £0.100m relating to sustainability investments. The required saving has been 
achieved, however the saving is being used to repay the Invest to Save loan and so not being seen in revenue 
figures in 20/21.  
The budgets anticipated a restructure that would yield £0.073m savings, but this has been delayed and the savings 
will not be achieved in the current year (although this is offset by in year salary savings within the Commercial 
Investment Team). There are also unbudgeted staffing costs of £0.060m for One Public Estate, where funding has 
now ceased, and unbudgeted expenditure on agency staff of £0.035m. The forthcoming restructure (due for 
completion in March ’21) across commercial services will address these salary pressures in 21/22.  
The area has also incurred £0.069m additional conveyancing and consultancy expenditure this year.  
Overspends are partially offset by increased income (£0.024m) in Property Strategy Review & Compliance and 
reduced salary costs (£0.015m) in Gypsy & Traveller Liaison. 

Commercial Investment 
Team 

Deputy Leader and 
Portfolio Holder 
Assets, Economic 
Growth and 
Regeneration      1,486,570          425,693  

    
(1,060,877) Y 

(£0.360m) has been saved due to a partial recruitment of this new team and the departure of one of the incumbent 
managers.  The upcoming restructure across Commercial Services is likely to reallocate this saving on salary 
budget in 21/22 across the property management services.   
The cost of investment budget has not been fully utilised, giving a saving of (£0.579m).  This budget was required 
to fund the cost of investments made in 19/20, however, due to the delays in setting up this team in 19/20, this 
budget has not been fully required in this financial year.  Investments made this year will require this budget in 
21/22. 
An overachievement of the savings target for commercial investment has yielded a further (£0.125m.) 

Climate Change 

Portfolio Holder Adult 
Social Services and 
Climate Change         400,000          400,000                   -    G 

No variation from budget at Quarter 3. 

Shire Services 

Deputy Leader and 
Portfolio Holder 
Assets, Economic 
Growth and 
Regeneration            (9,010)         548,823  

        
557,833  R 

The variance includes £0.401m of unachieved savings from previous years and £0.082m repayment of a loan to 
the general fund related to the deficit in 19/20 which will not be achieved this year due to the impact the Covid-19 
crisis is having on future planning.  
A review of this area is being undertaken, however the service does not have any reserves to draw on and is likely 
to need to rely on support from outside the area to reposition itself for the post Covid-19 world. 

Head of Economic Growth 

Deputy Leader and 
Portfolio Holder 
Assets, Economic 
Growth and 
Regeneration         272,830          243,389  

         
(29,441) Y 

An in year saving has arisen as a result of the gap between the departure of the previous Head of Economic 
Growth and the new postholder starting. 

Planning Services 
Portfolio Holder 
Communities, Place      2,146,720       2,352,339  

        
205,619  R 

Page 64



Cabinet, 15th February 2021: Financial Monitoring Report – Quarter 3 2020/21 

 

 
 35 

 

Planning and 
Regulatory Services 

It is anticipated that the pandemic will have a significant impact on the service area, leading to lost income of 
£0.436m.  This loss of income is forecast to be offset by the grant support from MHCLG. 
 
Variances include:- Design costs associated with providing a satisfactory waste water solution for a site in 
Whitchurch, estimated at £0.045m, additional support from consultants for planning enforcement cases, estimated 
at £0.083m, and finally, Highways Development Control has moved to Planning Services and has cost pressures 
estimated at £0.053m relating to additional 'Part 1' claims and an anticipated reduction in inspection fees of 
£0.040m.  

Economic Growth 

Deputy Leader and 
Portfolio Holder 
Assets, Economic 
Growth and 
Regeneration      1,115,460       1,108,077  

           
(7,383) Y 

Minor variation from budget at Quarter 3. 

Broadband 
Deputy Portfolio 
Holder Broadband         166,840          166,840                   -    G 

No variation from budget at Quarter 3. 

Planning Policy 

Portfolio Holder 
Housing and Strategic 
Planning         716,320          725,972  

            
9,652  G 

Minor variation from budget at Quarter 3. 

Shrewsbury Shopping 
Centres - Commercial 
Sites 

Deputy Leader and 
Portfolio Holder 
Assets, Economic 
Growth and 
Regeneration        (684,700) 

       
(486,109) 

        
198,591  R 

As fundamental changes in the retail sector continue, the shopping centres have been subject to several pressures 
including changing lease renewal negotiations. These on-going pressures on the budget have created a reduction 
in rental and service charge income that totals £0.199m (losses due to the impact Covid-19 pandemic are covered 
by additional grants). 

Shrewsbury Shopping 
Centres - Development 
Sites 

Deputy Leader and 
Portfolio Holder 
Assets, Economic 
Growth and 
Regeneration (1,465,770) (1,203,111) 

        
262,659  R 

Due to the changed economic landscape, primarily as a result of the Covid-19 pandemic, the proposals for the 
repurposing of the Pride Hill Shopping Centre, approved by Council in December 2019 are being reviewed.  The 
enabling works to Pride Hill, which are fundamental to any future development are commencing. 
Since the Quarter 1 report, the Council has been awarded £5.020m LEP funding towards the redevelopment of the 
Pride Hill Shopping Centre. 
The Covid-19 pandemic has impacted on the options for the repurposing of the Pride Hill Shopping Centre and the 
Council has adopted an aspiration for a town centre Civic hub, in which the Pride Hill Shopping Centre may play a 
part.  The future of the Pride Hill and Riverside Shopping Centres are an intrinsic part of the Council’s vision for the 
town centre and it has been agreed to treat them as a separate development project for accounting purposes. 
The forecast adverse variance of £0.262m may therefore be analysed as follows: - 
Unachievable savings £0.320m 
Additional consultancy costs relating to holding structure review £0.114m 
Cost of investment budgets not utilised (£0.196m) (saving) 
Deficit due to the downturn in the retail industry £0.024m (losses due to the impact Covid-19 pandemic are covered 
by additional grants) 

Head of Infrastructure 

Deputy Leader and 
Portfolio Holder 
Assets, Economic 
Growth and 
Regeneration         314,562          308,181  

           
(6,381) Y 

Minor variation from budget at Quarter 3. 

Page 65



Cabinet, 15th February 2021: Financial Monitoring Report – Quarter 3 2020/21 

 

 
 36 

 

Highways 

Portfolio Holder 
Highways and Car 
Parking      8,129,888       7,963,695  

       
(166,193) Y 

• Highways (Operations):- There is additional Kier expenditure forecast as the programme to address gully 
cleaning has continued into 2020/21, estimated at £0.089m.   It is also anticipated that, as a result of the delay of 
the LED streetlighting replacement programme, savings from energy and maintenance costs will not materialise in 
2020/21.  These are estimated at £0.211m for energy costs and £0.055m for maintenance.  These additional costs 
are mostly offset in year by vacancies and other savings on works. 
• Highways (Bridges and Structures):- It is anticipated that there will be some engineering supervision savings in 
2020/21 estimated at (£0.042m.) 
• Highways (Streetworks):- It is anticipated that Streetworks income (net) will be (£0.199m) higher than budgeted.  
• Highways (Governance):- It is currently anticipated that there will be significant costs associated with insurance 
claims and claims handling, estimated at £0.172m.  This is essentially offset by a favourable staffing variance, 
through vacancies, of (£0.155m) during the year.  

Environment and 
Transport 

Portfolio Holder 
Highways and Car 
Parking      5,993,270       6,909,631  

        
916,361  R 

• Public Transport:- It is anticipated that Covid-19 will have a significant impact on costs associated with the 
provision of public transport where reduced passenger numbers (and income from fares) will impact the subsidy to 
the operators.  Currently this is estimated at £0.995m.  This additional expenditure will be covered by Government 
Covid-19 grants.    
As previously reported, the Enterprise Car Scheme was created, whereby employees use an Enterprise vehicle 
rather than their own personal vehicle. Covid-19 has significantly changed this scenario and future provision will be 
reviewed.  Currently savings associated with changes in behaviour are evident (as a reduction) in other service 
areas’ expenditure.  The original savings target and costs still sit within Environment and Transport. This amounts 
to £0.446m.  
And finally, we are anticipating the release of a provision in 2020/21 of (£0.429m). 
• Street Scene:- It is currently estimated that there will be staffing vacancies and a reduction in maintenance 
expenditure totalling (£0.227m). 
• Parking:- It is currently anticipated that on-street and off-street parking income (net) will be less than the current 
budget by £3.799m, largely as a result of Covid-19.  The lost income is partially offset by Covid-19 support grants 
of (£2.636m). The long term financial targets for car parking will be reviewed as new behaviours are realised. 
• Strategic:-  There will be cost pressures relating to social distancing measures in towns.  The Council has been 
awarded grant funding for 'Reopening High Streets' to incorporate social distancing measures. These measures 
have been implemented in accordance with Government guidelines and advice from Public Health and Public 
Protection (for example:- Victoria Quay and Bridgnorth High Street). The costs of these measures will be covered 
by Covid-19 support grants.  
Other variances include a reduced programme of Road Safety education due to Covid-19 restrictions, resulting in 
an estimated reduction in expenditure of (£0.069m). 

Waste Management 

Portfolio Holder 
Culture, Leisure, Waste 
and Communications     30,906,840      30,858,308  

         
(48,532) Y 

In-year savings are being achieved on supplies and services budgets within the staff team cost centre, and a 
saving is being made by the volume of waste being sent to landfill being less than the budget set in accordance 
with the contract.      

Head of Homes and 
Communities 

Portfolio Holder 
Culture, Leisure, Waste 
and Communications        (254,960)         134,184  

        
389,144  R 

The adverse variances here are made up of unachievable savings as follows:- 
• £0.100m savings from the HRA 
• £0.250m savings from review of temporary housing 
The costs associated with the Housing Development Manager for the year have also been transferred to this area. 

Housing Development and 
HRA 

Portfolio Holder 
Housing and Strategic 
Planning     (1,025,000)                  -    

     
1,025,000  R 

The adverse is due to unachievable savings of £1.025m from Cornovii Ltd. 
The revised business plan for the Company approved by the Council earlier in the year set out that this saving 

Page 66



Cabinet, 15th February 2021: Financial Monitoring Report – Quarter 3 2020/21 

 

 
 37 

 

would not be achievable in 20/21, but it must also be acknowledged that Covid -19 has delayed the development of 
this enterprise and at least part of this loss of income could be attributed to the pandemic.   

Head of Culture, Leisure & 
Tourism 

Portfolio Holder 
Culture, Leisure, Waste 
and Communications         176,830          289,920  

        
113,090  R 

The overspend in this area is due to the allocation of salary costs of the Head of Culture, Leisure and Tourism.  A 
full review of CL&T areas has identified potential savings and efficiencies throughout the services which it is 
anticipated will cover these costs in the future.   

Arts 

Portfolio Holder 
Culture, Leisure, Waste 
and Communications           68,390            68,275  

             
(115) Y 

Minor variation from budget at Quarter 3. 

Shropshire Hills AONB 

Portfolio Holder 
Culture, Leisure, Waste 
and Communications           34,750            53,487  

          
18,737  G 

Minor variation from budget at Quarter 3. 

Outdoor Partnerships 

Portfolio Holder 
Culture, Leisure, Waste 
and Communications      1,025,190       1,111,339  

          
86,149  A 

The majority of this variance is due do an historic unachieved £0.050m savings requirement that is being reviewed 
within Culture, Leisure and Tourism.  

Leisure 

Portfolio Holder 
Culture, Leisure, Waste 
and Communications      2,139,500       2,387,813  

        
248,313  R 

The service has incurred additional costs associated with taking control of the centres at Bishops Castle and 
Church Stretton of £0.091m and the implementation of new IT systems have given rise to additional expenditure of 
£0.065 and other repair and refurbishment costs of £0.074m. 

Libraries 

Portfolio Holder 
Culture, Leisure, Waste 
and Communications      3,356,200       3,414,947  

          
58,747  A 

The adverse variance is due to unachieved savings of £0.107m relating to a review of this service. This review has 
been delayed due to the Covid-19 pandemic, but an external review has been commissioned to restructure and 
transform the service, which will address these savings for 21/22 and beyond.  The unachieved saving has been 
partly offset by in year supplies and services savings.  

Museums and Archives 

Portfolio Holder 
Culture, Leisure, Waste 
and Communications      1,306,830       1,290,931  

         
(15,899) Y 

Minor variation from budget at Quarter 3 

Theatre Services 

Portfolio Holder 
Culture, Leisure, Waste 
and Communications           31,390            31,390                    0  G 

No variation from budget at Quarter 3.   
(Losses due to the Covid-19 pandemic are forecast to be fully reimbursed by Covid-19 support grant funding.) 

      

STRATEGIC MANAGEMENT BOARD Full Year RAGY 

    

Budget 
£ 

Forecast 
£ 

Variance 
£   

Total               4,290          352,993  
        
348,703  R 

      

Strategic Management 
Board 

Leader and Portfolio 
Holder Strategy             4,290          352,993  

        
348,703  R 

Savings of (£0.139m) are anticipated from planned vacancy management.  These are partly offsetting one-off staff 
costs of £0.476m. 

Page 67



Cabinet, 15th February 2021: Financial Monitoring Report – Quarter 3 2020/21 

 

 
 38 

 

      

WORKFORCE AND TRANSFORMATION Full Year RAGY 

    

Budget 
£ 

Forecast 
£ 

Variance 
£   

Total          (246,130)         814,068  
     
1,060,198  R 

      

Customer Services 

Portfolio Holder 
Finance and Corporate 
Support         599,320          331,654  

       
(267,666) Y 

In-year savings of (£0.267m) are anticipated across Customer Services from a combination of planned vacancy 
management and reductions in systems costs and contract payments. 

ICT Digital Transformation 
Project 

Portfolio Holder 
Organisational 
Transformation and 
Digital Infrastructure     (2,141,550)         645,062  

     
2,786,612  R 

Combined savings targets relating to the “single front door”, the wider Digital Transformation Programme and 
potential organisational transformation of £2.787m have not yet been achieved.  Work is ongoing to identify and 
confirm how these savings can be delivered. 

ICT Services 

Portfolio Holder 
Organisational 
Transformation and 
Digital Infrastructure      1,283,300  

         
(45,860) 

    
(1,329,160) Y 

Savings of £0.490m have been delayed, partly due to Covid-19 preventing implementation of changes to contracts 
as planned.  Unachieved savings have been offset by vacancy management and by planned one-off expenditure of 
£1.101m being funded from capital budgets rather than revenue, creating an in-year revenue saving. 

Communications 

Portfolio Holder 
Culture, Leisure, Waste 
and Communications             9,800            47,985  

          
38,185  G 

Unachieved income of £0.045m has been offset against identified vacancy management savings. 

Information, Intelligence 
and Insight 

Portfolio Holder 
Organisational 
Transformation and 
Digital Infrastructure             8,890  

         
(91,713) 

       
(100,603) Y 

Anticipated in-year savings relating to vacancy management (£0.109m) have been offset against slightly increased 
supplies and services costs. 

Human Resources and 
Organisational 
Development 

Portfolio Holder 
Finance and Corporate 
Support            (5,890) 

         
(73,058) 

         
(67,168) Y 

Unachieved savings of £0.055m, and lost income of £0.072m across Health and Safety and Occupational Health 
training, are being offset by identified savings of (£0.184m) from a combination of vacancy management, supplies 
and services budgets and additional expected income.   

 

Page 68



Cabinet, 15th February 2021: Financial Monitoring Report – Quarter 3 2020/21 

 

 
 39 

 

Appendix 2: Amendments to Original Revenue Budget 2020/21 

 

 
 
Details of virements over £140,000 and below £500,000, reported to Cabinet for information 
 
Quarter 1:  

 A budget virement of £0.141m has taken place at Quarter 1 to correct an error that had 
taken place at budget setting.  A budget for pay inflation had been incorrectly allocated to 
posts within Adult Services that are grant funded.  The corresponding grant income should 
fund any increase in costs of the posts, rather than the Council’s base budget.    

Quarter 2: 

 A budget virement of £0.400m has taken place at Quarter 2 to create a budget for 
sustainability projects and initiatives as part of the work on climate change that the Council 
is undertaking. 

 
Details of virements between £500,000 and £1m, reported to Cabinet for information 
 
Quarter 2: 

 Following the announcement of the NJC 2.75% pay award for 2020/21, a virement has 
taken place to bring salary budgets across the Council into line with the uplifted costs.  A 
pay award of 2% had been assumed at budget setting, and therefore the £0.585m 

£000 Total

Adult 

Services

Children's 

Services

Corporate 

Budgets

Finance, 

Governance 

and 

Assurance

Legal and 

Democratic 

Services Place

Strategic 

Management 

Board

Workforce and 

Transformation 

Original Budget as 

Agreed by Council 225,522 118,755 52,873 (5,514) 2,245 439 57,302 (0) (578)

Quarter 1

Correction of budget 

setting error 0 (141) 141

Q1 Revised Budget 225,522 118,615 52,873 (5,373) 2,245 439 57,302 (0) (578)

Quarter 2

Structure change (not 

virement): Movement of 

Safer Community Co-

ordination from Public 

Health to Customer 

Services 0 (254) 254
Reallocation of contract 

management savings (ref 

P41) as per Commissioning 

and Assurance Board 0 51 40 (55) (28) (7)
Transfer of non-

controllable fleet transport 

budgets, following transfer 

of controllable budgets at 

budget setting (4) 4

Creation of climate change 

budget 0 (400) 400

Correction of salary 

budgets as a result of 

2.75% pay award 0 170 103 (585) 50 14 158 5 86

Q2 Revised Budget 225,522 118,579 53,015 (6,358) 2,240 453 57,835 4 (246)

Quarter 3

None

Q3 Revised Budget 225,522 118,579 53,015 (6,358) 2,240 453 57,835 4 (246)

Page 69



Cabinet, 15th February 2021: Financial Monitoring Report – Quarter 3 2020/21 

 

 
 40 

 

virement represents the remaining 0.75% that had not been included within original 
budgets.    

Page 70



Cabinet, 15th February 2021: Financial Monitoring Report – Quarter 3 2020/21 

 

 
 41 

 

Appendix 3 – Capital Budget And Expenditure 2020/21 
 

 
 

 
 

Shropshire Council - Capital Programme 2020/21 - 2023/24

Capital Programme Summary - Quarter 3 2020/21

Directorate
 Revised Budget Q2  2020/21

£ 

 Budget Virements Q3

£ 

 Revised Budget Q3  2020/21

£ 

 Actual Spend

£ 

 Spend to Budget Variance

£ 
 % Budget Spend 

 Outturn Projection

£ 

 Outturn Projection Variance

£ 

 2021/22 Revised Budget

£ 

 2022/23 Revised Budget

£ 

 2023/24 Revised Budget

£ 

General Fund

Adult Services 5,515,984 (2,876,088) 2,639,896 1,449,645 1,190,251 54.91% 2,639,896 0 8,976,088 3,200,000 0

Children's Services 11,661,770 (3,459,784) 8,201,986 2,407,269 5,794,717 29.35% 8,201,986 0 21,794,735 5,500,000 0

Place 68,910,226 (13,705,196) 55,205,030 28,945,917 26,259,113 52.43% 55,205,030 0 98,234,054 86,233,274 0

Workforce & Transformation 2,394,900 (1,000,000) 1,394,900 480,878 914,022 34.47% 1,394,900 0 1,000,000 0 0

Total General Fund 88,482,880 (21,041,068) 67,441,812 33,283,709 34,158,103 49.35% 67,441,812 0 130,004,877 94,933,274 0

Housing Revenue Account 11,300,680 (5,364,233) 5,936,447 1,717,678 4,218,769 28.93% 5,936,447 0 20,148,353 19,828,300 14,000,000

Total Approved Budget 99,783,560 (26,405,301) 73,378,259 35,001,387 38,376,872 47.70% 73,378,259 0 150,153,230 114,761,574 14,000,000

Shropshire Council - Capital Programme Portfolio Holder Summary Quarter 3 2020/21

Portfolio Holder
 Revised Budget Q2  2020/21

£ 

 Budget Virements Q3

£ 

 Revised Budget Q3  2020/21

£ 

 Actual Spend

£ 

 Spend to Budget Variance

£ 
 % Budget Spend 

 Outturn Projection

£ 

 Outturn Projection Variance

£ 

 2021/22 Revised Budget

£ 

 2022/23 Revised Budget

£ 

 2023/24 Revised Budget

£ 

General Fund

Adult Social Services and Climate Change 5,248,857 (2,876,088) 2,372,769 1,449,645 923,124 61.10% 2,372,769 0 8,976,088 3,200,000 0

Assets, Economic Growth and Regeneration 21,630,911 (5,069,853) 16,561,058 7,136,113 9,424,945 43.09% 16,561,058 0 46,548,117 32,370,649 0

Broadband 5,646,123 (2,706,286) 2,939,837 401,098 2,538,739 13.64% 2,939,837 0 7,706,286 0 0

Children's Services 618,462 (296,000) 322,462 162,129 160,333 50.28% 322,462 0 296,000 0 0

Communities, Place Planning and Regulatory Services 336,480 89,284 425,764 154,285 271,479 36.24% 425,764 0 0 0 0

Education 11,043,308 (3,163,784) 7,879,524 2,245,140 5,634,384 28.49% 7,879,524 0 21,498,735 5,500,000 0

Highways and Car Parking 39,731,595 (4,721,390) 35,010,205 21,056,243 13,953,962 60.14% 35,010,205 0 39,097,009 53,862,625 0

Housing and Strategic Planning (General Fund) 1,479,472 (999,642) 479,830 180,518 299,312 37.62% 479,830 0 4,557,642 0 0

Leisure, Waste and Communications 352,772 (297,309) 55,463 17,660 37,803 31.84% 55,463 0 325,000 0 0

Transformation and Digital Infrastructure 2,394,900 (1,000,000) 1,394,900 480,878 914,022 34.47% 1,394,900 0 1,000,000 0 0

Total General Fund 88,482,880 (21,041,068) 67,441,812 33,283,709 34,158,103 49.35% 67,441,812 0 130,004,877 94,933,274 0

Housing Revenue Account

Housing and Strategic Planning (HRA) 11,300,680 (5,364,233) 5,936,447 1,717,678 4,218,769 28.93% 5,936,447 0 20,148,353 19,828,300 14,000,000

Total Approved Budget 99,783,560 (26,405,301) 73,378,259 35,001,387 38,376,872 47.70% 73,378,259 0 150,153,230 114,761,574 14,000,000

P
age 71



Cabinet, 15th February 2021: Financial Monitoring Report – Quarter 3 2020/21 

 

 
 42 

 

 

Shropshire Council - Capital Budget Monitoring Report Quarter 3 2020/21

Directorate

Service Area

 Revised Budget Q2  2020/21

£ 

 Budget Virements Q3

£ 

 Revised Budget Q3  2020/21

£ 

 Actual Spend

£ 

 Spend to Budget Variance

£ 
 % Budget Spend 

 Outturn Projection

£ 

 Outturn Projection Variance

£ 

 2021/22 Revised Budget

£ 

 2022/23 Revised Budget

£ 

 2023/24 Revised Budget

£ 

General Fund

Adult Services 5,515,984 (2,876,088) 2,639,896 1,449,645 1,190,251 54.91% 2,639,896 0 8,976,088 3,200,000 0

Contracts & Provider Capital 0 0 0 0 0 0.00% 0 0 0 0 0

Housing Services Capital 3,293,608 (1,876,088) 1,417,520 820,316 597,204 57.87% 1,417,520 0 8,076,088 3,200,000 0

Public Health Capital 0 0 0 0 0 0.00% 0 0 0 0 0

Public Protection Capital 267,127 (250,000) 17,127 0 17,127 0.00% 17,127 0 150,000 0 0

Social Care Operations Capital 1,955,249 (750,000) 1,205,249 629,329 575,920 52.22% 1,205,249 0 750,000 0 0

Children's Services 11,661,770 (3,459,784) 8,201,986 2,407,269 5,794,717 29.35% 8,201,986 0 21,794,735 5,500,000 0

Children's Residential Care Capital 618,462 (296,000) 322,462 162,129 160,333 50.28% 322,462 0 296,000 0 0

Non Maintained Schools Capital 2,207,988 (902,110) 1,305,878 23,051 1,282,827 1.77% 1,305,878 0 7,200,000 0 0

Primary School Capital 7,055,134 (1,101,835) 5,953,299 1,095,749 4,857,550 18.41% 5,953,299 0 4,603,275 5,000,000 0

Secondary School Capital 1,115,983 (306,766) 809,217 35,432 773,785 4.38% 809,217 0 2,000,000 0 0

Special Schools Capital 146,652 (27,250) 119,402 19,200 100,202 16.08% 119,402 0 27,250 0 0

Unallocated School Capital 517,551 (825,823) (308,272) 1,071,708 -1,379,980 -347.65% -308,272 0 7,668,210 500,000 0

Place Capital - Commercial Services 15,367,586 (5,069,853) 10,297,733 5,450,838 4,846,895 52.93% 10,297,733 0 36,558,954 30,000,000 0

Corporate Landlord Capital 15,367,586 (5,069,853) 10,297,733 5,450,838 4,846,895 52.93% 10,297,733 0 36,558,954 30,000,000 0

Place Capital - Economic Growth 13,458,273 (3,616,644) 9,841,629 2,421,176 7,420,453 24.60% 9,841,629 0 22,253,091 2,370,649 0

Broadband Capital 5,646,123 (2,706,286) 2,939,837 401,098 2,538,739 13.64% 2,939,837 0 7,706,286 0 0

Development Management Capital 69,353 89,284 158,637 154,285 4,352 97.26% 158,637 0 0 0 0

Economic Growth Capital 6,263,325 0 6,263,325 1,685,275 4,578,050 26.91% 6,263,325 0 9,989,163 2,370,649 0

Planning Policy Capital 1,479,472 (999,642) 479,830 180,518 299,312 37.62% 479,830 0 4,557,642 0 0

Place Capital - Homes & Communities 27,772 27,691 55,463 17,660 37,803 31.84% 55,463 0 0 0 0

Leisure Capital 21,463 34,000 55,463 17,660 37,803 31.84% 55,463 0 0 0 0

Outdoor Partnerships Capital 6,309 (6,309) 0 0 0 0.00% 0 0 0 0 0

Visitor Economy Capital 0 0 0 0 0 0.00% 0 0 0 0 0

Place Capital - Infrastructure 40,056,595 (5,046,390) 35,010,205 21,056,243 13,953,962 60.14% 35,010,205 0 39,422,009 53,862,625 0

Environment & Transport Capital 0 0 0 0 0 0.00% 0 0 0 0 0

Highways Capital 39,731,595 (4,721,390) 35,010,205 21,056,243 13,953,962 60.14% 35,010,205 0 39,097,009 53,862,625 0

Waste Capital 325,000 (325,000) 0 0 0 0.00% 0 0 325,000 0 0

Workforce & Transformation 2,394,900 (1,000,000) 1,394,900 480,878 914,022 34.47% 1,394,900 0 1,000,000 0 0

ICT Digital Transformation - CRM Capital 456,695 0 456,695 73,350 383,345 16.06% 456,695 0 0 0 0

ICT Digital Transformation - ERP Capital 188,854 147,356 336,210 336,210 0 100.00% 336,210 0 0 0 0

ICT Digital Transformation - Infrastructure & Architecture Capital 66,012 0 66,012 2,486 63,526 3.77% 66,012 0 0 0 0

ICT Digital Transformation - Social Care Capital 185,217 0 185,217 68,832 116,386 37.16% 185,217 0 0 0 0

ICT Digital Transformation - Unallocated  Capital 1,498,122 (1,147,356) 350,766 0 350,766 0.00% 350,766 0 1,000,000 0 0

Total General Fund 88,482,880 (21,041,068) 67,441,812 33,283,709 34,158,103 49.35% 67,441,812 0 130,004,877 94,933,274 0

Housing Revenue Account 11,300,680 (5,364,233) 5,936,447 1,717,678 4,218,769 28.93% 5,936,447 0 20,148,353 19,828,300 14,000,000

HRA Dwellings Capital 11,300,680 (5,364,233) 5,936,447 1,717,678 4,218,769 28.93% 5,936,447 0 20,148,353 19,828,300 14,000,000

Total Approved Budget 99,783,560 (26,405,301) 73,378,259 35,001,387 38,376,872 47.70% 73,378,259 0 150,153,230 114,761,574 14,000,000

P
age 72



Cabinet, 15th February 2021: Financial Monitoring Report – Quarter 3 2020/21 

 

 
 43 

 

Shropshire Council - Capital Programme 2020/21- 2023/24
Financing  Revised Budget

Q2 2020/21

£ 

 Budget 

Virements

Q3

£ 

 Revised 

Budget Q3

2020/21

£ 

 2021/22 

Revised Budget

£ 

 2022/23 

Revised Budget

£ 

 2023/24 

Revised Budget

£ 

-

Self Financed Prudential Borrowing 11,265,358 (6,691,954) 4,573,404 47,766,750 41,000,000 10,000,000

Government Grants

Department for Transport 32,247,754 (1,500,000) 30,747,754 26,422,289 53,862,625 -

 - Rapid Electric Vehicle Charging Points Grant 11,386 - 11,386 - - -

Ministry of Housing, Communities & Local Gov

 - Land Release Fund 280,343 - 280,343 - - -

 - Housing Infrastructure Fund 578,792 - 578,792 6,405,669 1,312,187 -

Department for Health - Better Care Fund 2,703,354 (1,115,307) 1,588,047 6,315,307 3,200,000 -

Department for Health - HOLD Grant 971,962 (900,000) 71,962 1,900,000 - -

Department for Education

- Condition Capital Grant 2,272,649           59,950-             2,212,699 1,059,950 500,000 -

- Basic Need Capital Grant 564,000 - 564,000 6,253,160 - -

- Devolved Formula Capital 869,413 (200,000) 669,413 704,304 - -

- Special Provision Funds 231,104 - 231,104 450,000 - -

 - Healthy Pupils Capital Grant 13,606 (7,000) 6,606 7,000 - -

 - Full Fibre Broadband 172,008 118,864 290,872 - - -

Department for Communities and Local Government

- Community Housing Fund 261,296 (191,296) 70,000 191,296 - -

Disabled Facilities Grant (Additional) - - - - - -

Education Funding Agency

- Early Years Capital Fund - - - 155,474 - -

HCA - Travellers - - - - - -

HCA - New Build 320,000 - 320,000 3,000,000 3,000,000 3,000,000

BDUK - Broadband 667,633 - 667,633 - - -

Environment Agency 933,379 (471,233) 462,146 55,073 - -

DEFRA - 50,000 50,000 950,000 - -

Local Enterprise Partnership (LEP) Fund 8,491,073 - 8,491,073 - - -

51,589,751 (4,275,922) 47,313,829 53,869,522 61,874,812 3,000,000

Other Grants

Historic England/English Heritage - - - - - -

Natural England - - - - - -

Other Grants 271,742 189,216 460,958 - - -

271,742 189,216 460,958 - - -

Other Contributions

Section 106 4,169,242 (1,266,186) 2,903,056 12,540,863 - -

Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL) 7,127,012 (2,377,213) 4,749,799 7,590,261 58,462 -

Other Contributions 209,689 (9,259) 200,430 4,332,449 - -

11,505,943 (3,652,658) 7,853,285 24,463,573 58,462 -

Revenue Contributions to Capital 4,406,942 (3,007,699) 1,399,243 4,328,493 3,048,200 1,000,000

Major Repairs Allowance 6,569,444 (3,117,672) 3,451,772 3,780,100 3,780,100 -

Corporate Resources (expectation - Capital Receipts 

only)

14,174,380 (5,848,612) 8,325,768 15,944,792 5,000,000 -

Total Confirmed Funding 99,783,559 (26,405,301) 73,378,259 150,153,230 114,761,574 14,000,000

P
age 73



Cabinet, 15th February 2021: Financial Monitoring Report – Quarter 3 2020/21 

 

 
 44 

 
 

Funding Changes - Quarter 3

Budget Increase/Decrease 2020/21 2021/22 2022/23 2023/24

Self Financed Prudential Borrowing 285,000 (910,000) (910,000)

Government Grants

Full Fibre Broadband 118,864

Environment Agency (416,160)

DEFRA 50,000 950,000

Other Grants

Other Grants 189,216

Other Contributions

Section 106 9,400

CIL 1,441,350

Other Contributions (4,259)

Total Other Contributions 1,446,491 0 0 0

Revenue Contributions to Capital (2,576,930) 970,000

Major Repairs Allowance (1,989,372) 1,128,300

Corporate Resources (expectation - Capital Receipts 

only)

687,778

(2,205,113) 1,010,000 218,300 0

£12,605 school revenue 

contribution to DFC schemes at 

Welshampton Primary (£4,650) 

and Clive Primary (£7,955) in 

2020/21.

Reduction of £2,715,679 HRA 

revenue contributions for delivery 

of the New Build Phase 5 

programme.

Budget increase of £126,144 

ERDF match funding for SEPuBu 

Phase 2 projects.

£970,000 general fund revenue 

contribution to Community Led 

Affordable Housing Grant Scheme 

in 2021/22.

Budget decrease in 2020/21 of 

£1,393 due to completion of 

Snailbeach Lead Mine scheme.

Budget decrease of £100,000 as a 

result of agreed transfer to 

revenue in relation to Shropshire 

Empty Property Grants.

Budget increase of £789,171 for 

HRA approved property 

acqusitions.

Budget reduction of £1,989,372 for 

the HRA Major Repairs 

Programme due to reduced budget 

requirement for delivery of the 

2020/21 programme.

Budget increase of £1,128,300 to 

deliver the the HRA Major Repairs 

Programme in 2022/23.

Budget increase of £89,284 for 

newly approved S106 Parish 

Council Outdoor Recreation 

Projects.

Budget increase of £2,385 in 

relation to an ITP scheme in 

Shifnal (ITP South - Shifnal 

Bradford Street Enhancement) to 

cover planned expenditure.

Budget decrease of £16,916 in 

relation to completed schemes 

(Broseley BMX Track  £2,424 and 

Whitchurch Skate Park £2,492) 

and a legacy scheme (S106 

Affordable Housing £12,000).

Budget decrease of £65,353 in 

relation to completed school 

schemes (£65,093) and completed 

Highways scheme (Morda Speed 

Bank £260).

Budget decrease to remove 

private sector contribution (ERDF 

match) for the Ludlow Assembly 

Rooms scheme.

Budget increase of £1,517,088 for 

approved Highways projects.

Budget removal of £75,738 in 

relation to completed school 

scheme.

Details

Remove SALIX loan funding 

associated with the now on hold 

Street Lighting LED Conversion 

scheme of £1,215,000, £910,000 

and £910,000 in 2020/21, 2021/22 

and 2022/23 respectively.

Increase Prudential Borrowing 

requirement by £1,500,000 in 

relation to The Tannery project. 

Grant award from DfE for Schools 

Full Fibre Braodband porjects

Grant award from DEFRA for 

Flood & Water Management 

schemes.

Successful award of ERDF funding 

for SEPuBu Phase 2 projects.

Removal of Environment Agency 

grant funding for Flood & Water 

Management schemes that are no 

longer progressing.

Page 74



Cabinet, 15th February 2021: Financial Monitoring Report – Quarter 3 2020/21 

 

 
 45 

 
 

Re-Profiling

Adult Services

Disabled Facilities Grants (976,088) 976,088

Housing Projects - Assistive Technology (100,000) 100,000

Greenacres Farm Renovation (250,000) 250,000

ASC Unallocated (400,000) 400,000

HOLD Project (900,000) 900,000

Shropshire Empty Property Grant (150,000) 150,000

Children's Services

New Primary Provision - Bowbrook (1,500,000) 1,500,000

Whitchurch Junior Extension (500,000) 500,000

Whitchurch Infants Extension (150,000) 150,000

Shifnal Primary School Secure Lobby (32,700) 32,700

Various School Schemes (200,000) 200,000

Children's Residential Care (296,000) 296,000

Schools Future Place Planning (306,766) 306,766

Early Years Unallocated (39,286) 39,286

Shifnal St. Andrew's 2 Class Extension (70,000) 70,000

Whitchurch Infants - 2 x Classroom Reconfiguration (57,048) 57,048

Whitchurch Junior - 2 Class Extension & Refurbishment (90,000) 90,000

Market Drayton Junior - Place Planning (10,439) 10,439

Meole Brace Primary 2 Class Extension (11,772) 11,772

Basic Need Unallocated (118,161) 118,161

Ford Trinity All Weather MUGA (7,000) 7,000

Hookagate TMBSS (27,250) 27,250

Place

In Vessel Composting Facility (325,000) 325,000

A529 Road Safety Works (1,500,000) 1,500,000

SITP (1,516,386) 1,516,386

Oxon Link Road (141,635) 141,635

Affordable Housing Rolling Fund (200,346) 200,346

Community Housing - Community Led Affordable Housing 

Fund

(191,296) 191,296

Community Led Affordable Housing Grant Scheme (96,000) 96,000

Broadband Phase 3 (2,244,628) 2,244,628

Broadband Phase 6 (461,658) 461,658

DVSA Site Acquisition (1,200,000) 1,200,000

Shirehall FRA Works (200,000) 200,000

Commercial Investments (5,480,954) 5,480,954

Shrewsbury Self Build Scheme (500,000) 500,000

Shropshire Slow the Flow Project (50,000) 50,000

Flood & Water Management Unallocated Fund (37,859) 37,859

Highways CIL Projects (1,408,563) 1,408,563

Ash Parva 30mph Speed Limit (5,000) 5,000

Workforce & Transformation

ICT Digital Transformation Unallocated (1,000,000) 1,000,000

Housing Revenue Account

HRA New Build (300,000) 300,000

HRA PSH Adaptations (20,053) 20,053

HRA MRP Unallocated (1,128,300) 1,128,300

(24,200,188) 24,200,188 -                      0

Reprofiling of capital receipts to 

reflect expected expenditure.

Reprofiling of DFG (265,307) and 

capital receipts (£134,639) to 

reflect expected expenditure 

profile.

Reprofiling of DoH HOLD grant to 

reflect anticipated expenditure 

profile.

Reprofiling of capital receipts to 

reflect expected expenditure 

profile.

Reprofiling of Prudential Borrowing 

requirement to reflect expected 

expenditure profile.

Reprofiling of DFC grant 

(£200,000) and S106 (£56,766) to 

reflect expected expenditure 

profile.

Reprofiling of capital receipts in 

relation to Shrewsbury Self Build 

Scheme to reflect anticipated 

expenditure profile.

Reprofiling of capital receipts to 

reflect expected expenditure.

Reprofiling of EA grant to reflect 

expected expenditure profile.

Reprofiling of capital receipts 

(£32,786) and EA grant (£5,073) 

to reflect expected expenditure 

profile.

Reprofiling of CIL to reflect 

expected expenditure profile.

Reprofiling of private sector 

contribution to reflect expected 

expenditure profile.

Reprofiling of HRA revenue 

contributions to reflect expected 

expenditure profile.

Reprofiling of MRA contributions to 

reflect expected expenditure 

profile.

Reprofiling of Prudential Borrowing 

requirement in relation to future 

commercial investments to reflect 

anticipated expenditure profiles.

Reprofiling of capital recipts to 

reflect revised expenditure profile.

Reprofiling of DfT Safer Roads 

Fund to reflect expected 

expenditure profile.

Reprofiling of S106 contributions 

(£1,000,000) and capital receipts 

(£516,386) to refect expected 

expenditure profile.

Reprofiling of capital receipts to 

reflect expected expenditure 

profile.Reprofiling of capital receipts to 

reflect expected expenditure 

profile.Reprofiling of MHCLG Community 

Housing Fund to meet future 

programme.

Reprofiling of General Fund 

revenue contributions to reflect 

expected expenditure profile.

Reprofiling of capital receipts to 

reflect expected expenditure 

profile.

Reprofiling of capital receipts to 

reflect expected expenditure 

profile.

Reprofiling of Prudential Borrowing 

requirement to reflect expected 

expenditure profile.

Reprofiling of capital receipts to 

reflect expected expenditure 

profile.

Reprofiling of CIL to reflect 

expected expenditure profile.

Reprofiling of CIL to reflect 

expected expenditure profile.

Reprofiling of S106 to reflect 

expected expenditure proifle.

Reprofiling of Condition grant to 

reflect expected expenditure 

profile.

Reprofiling of DFC grant to reflect 

expected expenditure profile.

Reprofiling of Healthy Pupils 

Capital grant to reflect expected 

expenditure profile.

Reprofiling of Condition grant to 

reflect expected expenditure 

profile.

Reprofiling of S106 to reflect 

expected expenditure profile.

Reprofiling of S106 to reflect 

expected expenditure profile.

Reprofiling of CIL to reflect 

expected expenditure profile.

Reprofiling of CIL to reflect 

expected expenditure profile.

Reprofiling of capital receipts to 

reflect expected expenditure 

profile.

Reprofiling of capital receipts to 

reflect expected expenditure 

profile.

Reprofiling of capital receipts to 

reflect expected expenditure 

profile.

Reprofiling of capital receipts 

(£476,088) and DFG (£500,000) 

to reflect expected expenditure 

profile.

Reprofiling of DFG to reflect 

expected expenditure profile.

Reprofiling of DFG to reflect 

expected expenditure profile.

Page 75



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 Committee and Date 
 
Cabinet 
 
8 March 2021 
 

 Item 
 
 
 
 
 
Public 
 

 
REQUEST FOR CHANGE TO HACKNEY CARRIAGE FARE CARD 

 
Responsible Officer  Tanya Miles, Executive Director Adult Social Care / Housing and 

Public Health 
e-mail: Tanya.miles@shropshire.gov.uk Tel: 01743 255811  

 
 

1. Summary 
 

1. On the 19 September 2019 the Council resolved that the five existing 
Hackney Carriage Zones, which are defined by reference to the five district 
and borough council areas that existed prior to the creation of Shropshire 
Council, be removed, and that all provisions of the hackney carriage 
licensing regime be applied across the whole of the administrative area of 
Shropshire Council with effect from 1 April 2021.  

 
2. This report concerns the final stage of the process to revise the existing 

Tables of Fares for the five separate zones and replace them with a single 
Table of Fares to be applied to the whole of the administrative area of 
Shropshire Council to come into effect from 1 April 2021. 

 
 

2. Recommendations 
 

1. That the Cabinet approves, with any necessary modifications, the proposed 
Table of Fares for the whole administrative area of Shropshire Council, as set 
out in Appendix A, and agrees that it will come into effect from 1 April 2021. 

 
 

REPORT 

 
3. Risk Assessment and Opportunities Appraisal 

 
1. A risk assessment and opportunities appraisal has not been undertaken 

as a result of the recommendation in this report. The process for the 
removal of the five Zones has been undertaken in accordance with the 
requirements of the Local Government Act 1972.  The risk assessment 
and opportunities appraisal has been addressed through extensive 

Page 77

Agenda Item 10



Cabinet – 8 March 2021: Request for Change to Hackney Carriage Fare Card 

 

Please contact Tanya Miles on 01743 255811 2 

 
 

consultations and revisions of the policy. For full sight of the 
considerations please refer to the background papers section of this 
report.   

 
 

4. Financial Implications 
 

1. Any financial implications will be offset against future fee calculations. 
 
 

5. Climate Change Appraisal 
 

1. There is no direct climate change impact as a result of the 
recommendations in this report. However, this has been addressed 
through extensive consultations and revisions of the policy, for full sight 
of the considerations please refer to the background papers section of 
this report.   

 
 

2. Background 
 

1. On 1 April 2021, Shropshire Council will remove the five existing Hackney 
Carriage Zones and they will be replaced by one single zone covering the 
whole administrative area of Shropshire Council. 
 

2. The Strategic Licensing Committee has overseen each stage of this process 
and have made their decisions based on the evidence presented during the 
committee process.    
 

3. The existing Hackney Carriage Tables of Fares (Appendix B) needs to 
be revised to reflect this change.  
 

4. Notification of a formal consultation inviting submissions on the revision of the 
Tables of Fares was sent out by email to the trade on 19 January 2021 and 
closed on 5 February 2021.  Three submissions were received two from Zone 
four (Appendix C and D) and one from Zone two (Appendix E).  The 
submissions proposed an increase to the minimum fare (Tariff 1, Flag & First 
Mile) 
 

5. Tariff 1, Flag & First Mile is currently set at £4.00, the submissions proposed 
that this fee be increased to £4.80, £4.95 and £5.00.  The revised Table of 
Fares at Appendix A recommends that an increase to £4.90 be introduced as 
this is the midway point of the fee increases requested during the 
consultation. 
 

6. Notification of an informal consultation was previously done inviting 
submissions on the revised Tables of Fares an email was sent out to the trade 
inviting submissions between the 28 July 2020 and 21 August 2020.  The 

Page 78



Cabinet – 8 March 2021: Request for Change to Hackney Carriage Fare Card 

 

Please contact Tanya Miles on 01743 255811 3 

 
 

submissions proposed an increase to the minimum fare (Tariff 1, Flag & First 
Mile) and to remove the Sunday day time Tariff (Tariff 2 Sunday only).  Due to 
the limited number of responses received during the informal consultation it 
was not proposed to make any amendments to the Tables of Fares prior to 
the formal consultation commencing.   
 

7. It is important to note that the fare card states the maximum fare that can be 
charged.  The proprietor can agree a lower fare with the passenger.  A meter 
can also be set at a level lower than the Council’s agreed fares on condition 
that the proprietor displays two fare cards, these being the Council’s agreed 
fare card and one to show the lower fare to which the meter has been set. 

8. Following the formal consultation, and prior to new fares coming into force, 
there is a requirement for the table of fares to be advertised in the local paper 
with a minimum 14 day consultation period (Appendix F). If no 
representations are received, the fares would be introduced on the date 
stated, which in this case is 1 April 2021.  If representations are made, the 
council must set a date, no later than two months after the proposed 
implementation date, for the fares to come into effect, with or without 
changes.   

 

List of Background Papers (This MUST be completed for all reports, but does 
not include items containing exempt or confidential information) 

 
Proposed Removal of the Existing Five Hackney Carriage Zones Council Report 
dated 19 September 2019 https://shropshire.gov.uk/committee-
services/documents/s23017/Proposed%20Removal%20HC%20Zones%20-
%20Council%20Report%20-%20FINAL.pdf  

Hackney Carriage and Private Hire Licensing Policy 2019 to 2023 
https://shropshire.gov.uk/media/12328/hcph-licensing-policy-2019-2023.pdf  

Request for Change to Hackney Carriage Fare Card Report dated 7 October 2020 
https://shropshire.gov.uk/committee-
services/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=166&MId=4107&Ver=4  

Current Hackney Carriage Tables of Fares.  Applicable to: Zone 1 – Bridgnorth; 
Zone 2 – North Shropshire; Zone 3 – Oswestry; Zone 4 – Shrewsbury and Atcham; 
Zone 5 – Ludlow https://shropshire.gov.uk/media/1434/hackney-carriage-fare-
card.pdf  
 

Cabinet Member (Portfolio Holder) 
Councillor Gwilym Butler Portfolio Holder for Communities, Place Planning and Regulatory 
Services 

Local Member 
Cover all areas of Shropshire 

Appendices 

Page 79

https://shropshire.gov.uk/committee-services/documents/s23017/Proposed%20Removal%20HC%20Zones%20-%20Council%20Report%20-%20FINAL.pdf
https://shropshire.gov.uk/committee-services/documents/s23017/Proposed%20Removal%20HC%20Zones%20-%20Council%20Report%20-%20FINAL.pdf
https://shropshire.gov.uk/committee-services/documents/s23017/Proposed%20Removal%20HC%20Zones%20-%20Council%20Report%20-%20FINAL.pdf
https://shropshire.gov.uk/media/12328/hcph-licensing-policy-2019-2023.pdf
https://shropshire.gov.uk/committee-services/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=166&MId=4107&Ver=4
https://shropshire.gov.uk/committee-services/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=166&MId=4107&Ver=4
https://shropshire.gov.uk/media/1434/hackney-carriage-fare-card.pdf
https://shropshire.gov.uk/media/1434/hackney-carriage-fare-card.pdf


Cabinet – 8 March 2021: Request for Change to Hackney Carriage Fare Card 

 

Please contact Tanya Miles on 01743 255811 4 

 
 

 
Appendix A – Revised Hackney Carriage Table of Fares for the whole 
administrative area of Shropshire Council 

Appendix B – Hackney Carriage Tables of Fares for Zones 1,2,3,4 and 5 

Appendix C – Consultation response 1 from Zone 4 

Appendix D – Consultation response 2 from Zone 4 

Appendix E – Consultation response 3 from Zone 2 

Appendix F – Notice dated 15 January 2021 

 

Page 80



      

 

HACKNEY CARRIAGE 
TABLES OF FARES 

 
 
 

Applicable to the whole administrative area of Shropshire Council 
 
Tariff 1 
(From 07.00 hrs to 23.00 hrs Mon - Sat) 
Flag & First Mile (1,760 yards (1,609 metres))   £4.90 
For each 176 yards or uncompleted part thereof 
(equivalent to £1.50 per mile)    £0.15 
Waiting time (equivalent to £18 per hour)  £0.15 per 30 sec  
 
 
Tariff 2 
(23.00 to 07.00 hrs including all day Sunday and Bank Holidays 
with the exception of those listed below) 
Flag & First Mile (1,760 yards (1,609 metres))  £6.00 
For each 176 yards or uncompleted part thereof 
(equivalent to £2.50 per mile)    £0.25 
Waiting time (equivalent to £30 per hour)   £0.25 per 30 sec 
 
 
Tariff 3 
(From 00.01 hrs to 24.00 hrs on Easter Sunday, Christmas Eve,  
Christmas Day, New Year’s Eve and New Year’s Day) 
Flag & First Mile (1,760 yards (1,609 metres))  £6.60 
For each 176 yards or uncompleted part thereof 
(equivalent to £3.00 per mile)    £0.30 
Waiting time (equivalent to £36 per hour)   £0.30 per 30 sec  
 
 
Tariff 4 
Optional tariff for minibus or larger vehicles where 5 or  
more passengers are carried. 
Flag & First Mile (1,760 yards (1,609 metres))  £7.50 
For each 176 yards or uncompleted part thereof 
(equivalent to £3.00 per mile)    £0.30 
Waiting time (equivalent to £36 per hour)   £0.30 per 30 sec 
 
 
Extra Charges 
Soiling charge       £100.00 
 
 

 
All of the above fees are inclusive of VAT where applicable. 

Shropshire Council, Shirehall, Abbey Foregate, Shrewsbury, Shropshire, SY2 6ND. 
Tel: 0345 678 9026 

Email: Licensing@shropshire.gov.uk 
 
 

Appendix A 
 

Page 81

mailto:Licensing@shropshire.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank



      

 

HACKNEY CARRIAGE 
TABLES OF FARES 

 
 
 

Applicable to: Zone 1 – Bridgnorth; Zone 2 – North Shropshire; Zone 3 – Oswestry; 
 Zone 4 – Shrewsbury & Atcham; Zone 5 - Ludlow 
 
 
Tariff 1 
(From 07.00 hrs to 23.00 hrs Mon - Sat) 
Flag & First Mile (1,760 yards (1,609 metres))   £4.00 
For each 176 yards or uncompleted part thereof 
(equivalent to £1.50 per mile)    £0.15 
Waiting time (equivalent to £18 per hour)  £0.15 per 30 sec  
 
 
Tariff 2 
(23.00 to 07.00 hrs including all day Sunday and Bank Holidays 
with the exception of those listed below) 
Flag & First Mile (1,760 yards (1,609 metres))  £6.00 
For each 176 yards or uncompleted part thereof 
(equivalent to £2.50 per mile)    £0.25 
Waiting time (equivalent to £30 per hour)   £0.25 per 30 sec 
 
 
Tariff 3 
(From 00.01 hrs to 24.00 hrs on Easter Sunday, Christmas Eve,  
Christmas Day, New Year’s Eve and New Year’s Day) 
Flag & First Mile (1,760 yards (1,609 metres))  £6.60 
For each 176 yards or uncompleted part thereof 
(equivalent to £3.00 per mile)    £0.30 
Waiting time (equivalent to £36 per hour)   £0.30 per 30 sec  
 
 
Tariff 4 
Optional tariff for minibus or larger vehicles where 5 or  
more passengers are carried. 
Flag & First Mile (1,760 yards (1,609 metres))  £7.50 
For each 176 yards or uncompleted part thereof 
(equivalent to £3.00 per mile)    £0.30 
Waiting time (equivalent to £36 per hour)   £0.30 per 30 sec 
 
 
Extra Charges 
Soiling charge       £100.00 
 
 

 
All of the above fees are inclusive of VAT where applicable. 

Shropshire Council, Shirehall, Abbey Foregate, Shrewsbury, Shropshire, SY2 6ND. 
Tel: 0345 678 9026 

Email: Licensing@shropshire.gov.uk 
 
 

Appendix B 
 

Page 83

mailto:Licensing@shropshire.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank



          Appendix C 
 

Formal Consultation Response - Zone 4 
 
Sent: Tue 19/01/2021 17:05 
To: Taxis Taxis@shropshire.gov.uk 
Subject: Fare card consultation 
 
Hi my proposal is day rate changed to £4.95 instead of £4.00 start .this would be reasonable with the 
current status fuel going up and euro 5/6 vehicles buying costly!  
Regards 
 
Hackney carriage driver, Shrewsbury. 
 

Page 85

mailto:Taxis@shropshire.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank



          Appendix D 
 

Formal Consultation Response - Zone 4 
 
Sent: Tue 19/01/2021 17:14 
To: Taxis Taxis@shropshire.gov.uk 
Subject: Tarrif review 2021 
 
Hi there 
I would propose a increase in tarrif 1 from a £4 start to £4.80 
It's been years since we've had any increase on any tarrifs 
 
Many thanks  
  
Hackney carriage driver, Shrewsbury. 
 

Page 87

mailto:Taxis@shropshire.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank



         Appendix E 
 

Formal Consultation Response - Zone 2 
 
Sent: Thu 21/01/2021 07:52 
To: Taxis Taxis@shropshire.gov.uk 
Subject: Hackney carriage fare proposal 
 
This is the current fare table dated May 2013 An increase of at lease £1 to the current rate  
 
Hackney carriage driver, North Shropshire. 
 
Sent from my iPhone 
 

Page 89

mailto:Taxis@shropshire.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank



          Appendix F 
 

SHROPSHIRE COUNCIL 
 

LOCAL GOVERNMENT (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1976 
SECTION 65 

 

HACKNEY CARRIAGE TABLE OF FARES 
 

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN under the above Act that Shropshire Council proposes to vary 
the Hackney Carriage Table of Fares for the administrative area of Shropshire Council in 
accordance with the following table: 
 

Tariff 1 
(From 07.00 hrs to 23.00 hrs Mon - Sat) 
Flag & First Mile (1,760 yards (1,609 metres))   £4.00 
For each 176 yards or uncompleted part thereof 
(equivalent to £1.50 per mile)    £0.15 
Waiting time (equivalent to £18 per hour)  £0.15 per 30 sec  
 

Tariff 2 
(23.00 to 07.00 hrs including all day Sunday and Bank Holidays 
with the exception of those listed below) 
Flag & First Mile (1,760 yards (1,609 metres))  £6.00 
For each 176 yards or uncompleted part thereof 
(equivalent to £2.50 per mile)    £0.25 
Waiting time (equivalent to £30 per hour)   £0.25 per 30 sec 
 

Tariff 3 
(From 00.01 hrs to 24.00 hrs on Easter Sunday, Christmas Eve,  
Christmas Day, New Year’s Eve and New Year’s Day) 
Flag & First Mile (1,760 yards (1,609 metres))  £6.60 
For each 176 yards or uncompleted part thereof 
(equivalent to £3.00 per mile)    £0.30 
Waiting time (equivalent to £36 per hour)   £0.30 per 30 sec  
 

Tariff 4 
Optional tariff for minibus or larger vehicles where 5 or  
more passengers are carried. 
Flag & First Mile (1,760 yards (1,609 metres))  £7.50 
For each 176 yards or uncompleted part thereof 
(equivalent to £3.00 per mile)    £0.30 
Waiting time (equivalent to £36 per hour)   £0.30 per 30 sec 
  
Extra Charges 
Soiling charge       £100.00 
 

In accordance with Section 65(2)(b) of the Local Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1976 a 
copy of this notice may be inspected without payment during normal office hours at the Shirehall, 
Abbey Foregate, Shrewsbury SY2 6ND until noon on 5th February 2021. 
 

Any objections to the proposed fares should be made in writing and addressed to Licensing, 
Shropshire Council, Shirehall, Abbey Foregate, Shrewsbury SY2 6ND or by e-mail to 
taxis@shropshire.gov.uk by noon on 5th February 2021.   
  
If no objection to this proposal is received within the specified period, then the proposed table of 
fares will come into force at noon on 5th February 2021 and take effect on 1st April 2021.  It is intended 
that any objections received by that date, will be considered by Shropshire Council’s Cabinet at a 
meeting on 8th March 2021. 
 Page 91

mailto:taxis@shropshire.gov.uk


Frances Darling Trading Standards and Licensing Operations Manager Shropshire Council 
 
Dated 18th January 2021 

Page 92



 

 Committee and Date 

Cabinet 

8th March 2021 

 Item 

 

Public 

 

 

 Quarter 3 Performance Report 2020/21 

Responsible:  James Walton, Interim Executive Director of Resources. 

e-mail: james.walton@shropshire.gov.uk 01743 258915  

 

1. Summary 
 

1.1. This report presents Cabinet with the Council’s Performance against its key 

Outcomes for Quarter 3 2020/21.  
 

1.2. The Corporate Plan for 2020/21 and the High-Level Outcomes provide the 

shape and focus of the updated Performance Management Framework. The 

measures in the framework have been refined to reflect the updated strategic 

action plans for the year. 
 

1.3. The framework is presented with seven key outcome areas: A Healthy 

Environment, A Good Place to do Business, Sustainable Places and 

Communities, More People with a Suitable Home, Embrace our Rurality, Care 

for those in Need at any Age and Your Council 

 

1.4. The online performance portal has continued to be developed to present 

performance information to be used in conjunction with this report, and can be 

accessed here -    

https://shropshireperformance.inphase.com/  
 

1.5. This is part of improving access to performance information and that of data 

transparency. Member and user feedback will help to inform further 

developments of performance information, which will form part of the IT 

system developments. 

 

1.6. The new Corporate Plan 2019/20 to 2021/22 which sets out new priorities for 

the Council was agreed at Council at their meeting on the 13 December 2018. 

A revised framework of measures and milestones is being developed to 

demonstrate impact and progress against these new priorities and will be 

reported from Quarter 1 of 2019/20. Measures and milestones will also be 

included as they are developed that reflect the transformation of the Council. 
 

Page 93

Agenda Item 11

mailto:james.walton@shropshire.gov.uk
https://shropshireperformance.inphase.com/


 

2. Recommendations 

Members are asked to: 

A. Consider the emerging issues in this report 

 

B. Review the performance portal and identify any performance areas that 

they would like to consider in greater detail or refer to the Performance 

Management Scrutiny Committee. 

 
 

3. Risk Assessment and Opportunities Appraisal 
 

3.1. Poor performance could have implications for vulnerable people (including 

children) who are supported by Council services and economic growth in 

Shropshire. In turn, there may be significant financial, legal and reputational 

risk to the Council, Schools (and Academies), and partners from across the 

public and voluntary and independent care sectors.   

 

3.2. Effective monitoring and follow-up against key measures of success provides 

the opportunity to manage risks and ensure that Children and Young People 

and vulnerable adults in Shropshire remain safe and achieve the desired 

outcomes.  

 
 

4. Financial Implications 

 

4.1. This report does not have any direct financial implications but presents service 

and financial information to support decision making. Accountable officers and 

senior managers may use the information to inform actions or interventions for 

improving service performance and the prioritisation and use of resources. 

 

4.2. Full financial details are presented as part of the Financial Reports. 

 

 

5. Introduction 

 

5.1. Each of the seven outcome areas contains a number of sub-outcomes with a 

range of associated performance measures. The frequency of the availability 

of the data varies from monthly and quarterly updates to annual updates. All 

measures, regardless of frequency will be available on the performance portal 

to improve accessibility to information.  

 

5.2. Quarterly reports will be used to highlight performance exceptions and 

changes to measures reported annually.  

 

Page 94



5.3. The Quarter 3 report is written and presented under yet more challenging 

circumstances. The report covers the period from 1st October 2020 to 31st  

December 2020. The country entered the second national lockdown period 

during November with a brief respite in December before the commencement 

of the third lockdown at the start of the current quarter. The corporate 

performance measures are presented against the backdrop of the Covid 19 

crisis, which resulted in an emergence from the national lockdown during this 

reporting period.  

  

 

5  A Healthy Environment 

 

6.1  The sub outcomes for A Healthy Environment are; The Council is Improving 

Energy Efficiency, Providing access to Shropshire’s Great Outdoors, A Clean 

and Attractive Environment is maintained, Participation in Positive Activities for 

Health and Well being, Improving Public Health Keeping People Safe.  

 

6.2 The National Child Measurement Programme figures for 2019/20 have been 

published. The programme stopped in March 2020 due to the pandemic and 

therefore participation rates are lower than usual.  

 

There is concern about the rise of childhood obesity and the implications of 

such obesity persisting into adulthood. The risk of obesity in adulthood and risk 

of future obesity-related ill health are greater as children get older. 

 

Data shows that the prevalence of overweight (including obesity) children in 

reception class was 22.6%, similar to the previous year (22.4%). Rates for 

year 6 children was 29.7% compared to 30.3% in 2018/19. 

 

Caveats: The data presented only includes children participating in the NCMP 

in state-maintained schools, any measurements taken at independent and 

special schools are excluded from the analysis. There is the potential for error 

in the collection, collation and interpretation of the data (bias may be 

introduced due to poor response rates and selective opt out of children which it 

is not possible to control for). 

 

 Shropshire  West Midlands  England  
Reception - prevalence 
of overweight 
(including obesity) 

22.6% 24.6% 23% 

Year 6 - prevalence of 
overweight (including 
obesity) 

29.7% 38.2% 35.2% 

 

 

 

 

Page 95



6.3 During Q3 the Theatre Severn continued with socially distant film screenings, 

except during the November lockdown. There were 6909 visitors attending in 

total during Q3, but overall the figures continue to fall. Live performances are 

yet to resume. The Old Market Hall cinema remained closed during Q3.  
 

6.4  Visits to libraries are significantly down as they were closed for public access 

during most of November due to lockdown restrictions. Even when libraries 

were open visits were low due to reluctance of older/vulnerable library 

customers to go out, reduced library services in branch, greater focus on 

digital services, no events or activities in libraries.  

 

6.5 The projected Recycling and Composting rate for quarter 3 20/21 is 53.6% 

which is above the target of 52.5%. The long-term trend shows that recycling 

rates continue to improve gradually, albeit with seasonal variations. Current 

performance exceeds the national targets for English councils to recycle 50% 

of household waste by the end of 2020. The next challenge is to meet the 65% 

target by the end of 2035.  

 

7 A Good Place to do Business 

 

7.1 The sub outcomes for A Good Place to do Business are; A Well Qualified 

Workforce, A Good Place to Start, Grow or Locate a Business, Employment 

Opportunities, Employment Conditions and Infrastructure and Conditions. 

 

7.2 Claimant count figures to December 2020 show that the number of claimants 

aged 16+ stands at 8,505 an increase of 4,740 (125%) compared to December 

2019 (3,765). The sharp rise reflects the severe economic downturn as a result 

of national lockdown during the Covid-19 pandemic. Please note: Under 

Universal Credit a broader span of claimants are required to look for work than 

under Jobseeker's Allowance. As the Universal Credit Service is rolled out the 

number of people recorded as being on the Claimant Count will increase. 

 

Shropshire claimant rates continue to compare favourably with comparator 

groups December 2020: 

 

   Shropshire  West Midlands  Great Britain 

18 – 24  8.1%   9.9%    8.9%  

16 - 64  4.5%   7.2%    6.3% 

   

 

7.3  Pay rates Latest data published in December 2020 shows the average wages 

in 2020 for people working in Shropshire (workplace wages) increased by 

£7.00 to £532.90 gross per week in the year to April 2020, this is lower than 

the West Midlands and Great Britain average. Lower pay rates in Shropshire 

may be due to a higher percentage of our businesses being within sectors that 

tend to be lower paid; agriculture, care, hospitality and leisure. 

Page 96



 

Earnings by residence increased by £19.00 to £574.90, this is higher than 

those for West Midland residents and lower than the Great Britain average. 

Higher residence work rates in Shropshire may be due the net outward 

commuter workforce, which can achieve higher pay rates in other areas.    

 

 Shropshire  West Midlands Great Britain 

Earnings by place 
of residence 

£574.90 £551.70 £587.10 

Earnings by 
workplace 

£532.90 £552.50 £586.70 

 

 

7.4 The economic and employment measures tracked in the corporate plan are 

highly likely to be impacted by the current lockdown situation. Many economic 

measures are reported annually, towards the end of the year, therefore it will 

take some time before the scale of impact and rate of recovery emerges in 

official statistics.  

 

 

8 Sustainable Places and Communities 

 

8.1 The sub outcome for Sustainable Places and Communities are; Community 

Volunteering, Communities Feel Safe and quality of life for adult social care 

users.  

 

8.2  Publication of the 2019/20 Adult Social Care comparator data for England, 

delayed due to the pandemic, were published December 2020. Results for 

Shropshire reports performance for the year 2019/20. This information 

highlights comparator data for that period. Shropshire is ranked in the top 2 

quartiles for 19 of 23 measures (82.6%)   

 

Shropshire performed above both the English Average and West Midlands 

region on 15 of these measures. Examples include supporting people with a 

learning disability into settled accommodation; the proportion of older people 

(aged 65 and over) who received reablement/rehabilitation services after 

discharge from hospital and the proportion of same who were still at home 91 

days after discharge from hospital into reablement/rehabilitation. 

The proportion of people who use services, who find it easy to find information 

about support, shows an improvement from 71.5% to 75.5%. This measure 

has shown steady improvement over the past years, moving from the third to 

upper quartile. Comparator groups – Statistical Neighbours 69.4%,  West 

Midlands 65.7% and England 68.4%. 

 

Page 97



Top quartile performance includes the overall satisfaction of people who use 

services, with their care and support. This measure shows an improvement 

from 66.1% to 69.2%. This compares well with comparator groups – Statistical 

Neighbours 65.9%,  West Midlands 64.4% and England 64.2%. 

Lower quartile performance relates to measures concerning Direct Payments 

(DP) to clients. Shropshire has a high rate of clients who opt to receive 

Individual Service Funds (ISF) where payments for services they receive are 

paid to the service provider to manage the funds on the client’s behalf. The 

service has reviewed the use of DP and has developed a new policy which will 

be effective from 1st April 2021. This improved system will address the need for 

more stringent performance on direct payments; in addition to the new policy 

there will be a relaunch highlighting this option, improved information for 

service users and carers and a bespoke refresher training programme for staff.  

The Council’s Social Care service reconfirms that it is committed to delivering 

continuous improvement through monitoring and addressing those measures 

where performance is weaker or declining. Some of the indicators where 

performance declined, but remains better than comparator average, is the 

extent to which we place people in residential and nursing care. Since these 

indicators were introduced (and are now under review) there has been a shift 

in national policy on this, recognising that supporting people to remain at home 

for longer produces better outcomes. There will inevitably be variances of 

need, which causes fluctuations in admission figures but the service is 

committed to ensuring people have the right support to live in a safe 

environment appropriate to their needs.   

We are  performing better in enabling people to remain at home after hospital 

discharge and are confident that with the addition of a new council service on 

admission avoidance we will continue to strengthen in terms of preventing 

readmission. 

In summary, the overall performance for adult social care in Shropshire shows 

a positive improvement for 2019/20, compared to the previous year.  82.6% of 

measures are rated in the upper quartiles and actions are in place to further 

improve this figure.  

 

8.3  The Q3 rate of permanent admissions of adults for those aged 65+ into 

residential or nursing homes is lower (better) than the profile. (340 people per 

100,000 against a target of 450.)  Admissions for those aged 18 – 64 is in line 

with the target. (7.6 people per 100,000 against a target of 7.5.) The actual 

number of admissions of those aged 18 – 64 remains relatively low and 

therefore small changes in numbers shows a higher percentage variance. The 

service remains committed to enabling people to remain in their homes and 

maintain a decent quality of life for as long as possible. The service also 

confirms that it assesses the needs of each person to ensure that the right 

service is provided at the right time ensuring that residential and nursing care 

is provided at the most appropriate time.  

Page 98



 

 

8.4 Due to lockdown and social distancing the usual number of volunteer hours 

supporting libraries, museums and outdoor recreation service has been greatly 

reduced during the reporting period. The work of volunteers in supporting 

these services is greatly appreciated as is the tremendous work of all 

volunteers around the county who help improve the quality of life in so many 

ways.  

 

9 More People with a Suitable Home 
 

9.1 The sub outcomes for More People with a Suitable Home are; Creating the 

Conditions for Housing Supply, Meeting the Demand for Suitable Housing, 

Prevention of Homelessness and Access to Affordable Homes. 

 

9.2  Shropshire Council is committed to enabling the delivery of ‘community-led’ 

affordable housing projects which empower communities of all shapes and 

sizes to commission their own homes to meet local needs. We recognise that 

this is an ambition for some communities and have responded with an initiative 

to help parish councils to secure delivery of the homes that local people 

want and need in order to make their places more sustainable and resilient. 

Progress during quarter 3 has started to see sites coming forward and 

progressing through the planning stages. Prees is currently going through 

planning and hopes to start on site this Spring. This scheme will deliver 27 

affordable “A” rated homes for energy efficiency. 

Whittington is currently going through planning and hopes to start on site this 

Spring. This scheme will deliver 24 affordable homes.  

Weston Rhyn are in the early stages of their Community Led Scheme and this 

will deliver 16 affordable homes whilst Harmer Hill are at the early stages and 

this scheme is expected to deliver 6 homes. 

 

9.3 Cornovii Developments Limited is Shropshire Council’s wholly owned Local 

Housing Company, which aims to build 1,000 new homes between 2020 to 

2025.  The company has been formed to address unmet housing need in the 

county and to generate income for the Council. Planning applications have 

been submitted for their first four development sites in Shrewsbury, Ifton 

Heath, Ellesmere and Whitchurch. The company is currently investigating 

expansion into the Private Rented Sector to further address unmet need in this 

sector. 

 

9.4 The number of affordable homes delivered in 2019/20 is confirmed as 223. For 

the current financial year, the number of completions during quarter 1 was 35 

and 76 for quarter 2 and 85 at Q3. There has not been a reduction in 

completions due to covid, although some sites were shut down during the first 

Page 99



lockdown which has led to a few delays, but all sites are now back up and 

running.  

 

9.5 The Shropshire Housing Strategy 2020 - 2025 was approved by cabinet on 

18th January 2021.  

 

9.6 The draft Homelessness strategy deadline was extended in agreement with 

MHCLG but due to the increased work because of Covid19 and a need to 

prioritise frontline work, has still not been finalised.  The aim is to have a draft 

document ready for consultation by the end of Q4 2021. 

 

 

10 Embrace our Rurality 

 

10.1 The sub outcomes for Embrace our Rurality are; Creating the Vision for our      

Rural Landscape and Communities, Rural Housing, Rural Transport and Rural 

Infrastructure. 

 

10.2  The 3-year rolling annual average for the number of people killed or seriously 

injured has seen a welcome reduction in numbers. The latest annual average 

over 3 years is 143.6 compared to 165.6 at the same period in 2019. Early 

indications show that accidents and casualty numbers were lower during the 

lockdown period. This may impact on reporting over the next 3 years as may 

changes to working and commuting patterns.  

 

10.3  Shropshire Council’s Connecting Shropshire broadband programme has 

been in place since 2013 and has contracted over £32.5m of public funding, 

through 3 separate suppler contracts with Openreach and Airband Community 

Internet Ltd. The programme has focused on delivering superfast broadband 

(with download speeds of at least 30mbps) to the Shropshire Council area 

programme where there is no commercial provision. 

Alongside the three main contracts there have been a number of other project 

interventions that have improved superfast broadband in the Shropshire 

Council area: 

 Better Broadband Subsidy Scheme – now closed 

 Marches & Gloucestershire Viable Clusters Broadband Project – in delivery  

 Gigabit Broadband Voucher Scheme – in delivery ( 

 Marches & Gloucestershire Business Broadband Grant Scheme – in delivery  

 

Broadband coverage: 

When the programme began in 2013, superfast broadband coverage in the 

Council area was less than 24%. The graph below shows that the Shropshire 

Council area, as of 2021 now has a high percentage of superfast broadband 

Page 100



coverage (94.15%1) compared to nearby Local Authorities that are less rural. The 

increase is significantly attributable to the Connecting Shropshire Programme 

with many businesses and communities directly benefiting.   

The ambition for the programme remains to deliver superfast broadband to all 

premises, and currently our projections is that most premises will have access by 

2023. 

 

Outlook: 

Connecting Shropshire will continue to: 

 manage its last superfast contract, where Airband are delivering gigabit-

capable broadband networks in some of the hardest-to-reach premises in the 

Shropshire Council area (for example, to the west of Bucknell); 

 work with BDUK and commercial partners to develop projects to deliver 

superfast broadband to the remaining gap premises; 

 work with Building Digital UK, to increase the availability of gigabit broadband, 

prioritising those premises without access to a superfast broadband 

connection; 

 stimulate the commercial broadband infrastructure market in Shropshire to 

deliver gigabit-capable broadband networks in the Shropshire Council area. 

 

 

 
 

                                                           
1 Source: https://labs.thinkbroadband.com/local/shropshire,E06000051  

28.42

7.87 6.96 6.98

36.51

92.1 94.15
98.45

93.99 97.15

54.04
57.32

6.71

51.52

17.63

0

10

20

30

40

50

60

70

80

90

100

P
e

rc
e

n
ta

ge

Authority

Marches LEP Boadband 2021 coverage vs. Rurality

Gigabit
coverage % -
1,000 megabits
per second

Superfast
coverage % -
30 megabits
per second

Rurality % -
ONS 2011

Page 101

https://labs.thinkbroadband.com/local/shropshire,E06000051


11 Care for those in Need at any Age 
 

11.1 The sub outcomes for Care for those in Need at any Age are; Young people 

receive appropriate and timely care, Young people are supported to achieve 

their potential and Adults receive appropriate and timely care. 

 

11.2  Demand across all areas of Children’s services has seen an increase during 

the year. In 2020/21 to date, there have been 1453 children referred to social 

care, which is 7.3% higher than in the same period last year.  

 

The main referral source during the year has been the police (29%). With covid-

19 closures, referrals from schools fell during the early part of the year, with 36 

during Q1 and 52 during Q2. During Q3 school referrals increased to 117. 

 

Latest available benchmarking data for 2019/20 (published Dec 2020) indicates 

that Shropshire’s referral levels are below most of its statistical neighbour (SN) 

group. The average for the group being 422.8 referrals for every 10,000 under 

18 residents, compared to 314 for Shropshire.  

 

 

11.3  At the end of quarter 3 2020/21, there were 478 Looked After Children at the 

end of December. This is a 19.8% increase over year end 19/20.  

In 2019/20 there were an average of 9 new looked after children per month, 

which has increased to 17 in 2020/21. More children have started to be looked 

after during quarter three than during the same period last year, indicating an 

increase in the complexity of cases entering social care.  

The rate of children looked after has increased during quarter 3 to 79.7 children 

per 10,000 Under 18s. National reports indicate that local authorities across the 

country have experienced an increased rate of Looked After Children during the 

Covid 19 emergency.  

 

The latest available comparator data for 2019/20 (published Dec 20) shows the 

Statistical Neighbour average per 10,000 as (60.4) West Midlands (82) England 

average (67) similar to the Shropshire rate of (66) as at March 2020.  

 

 

12 Your Council 

 

12.1 The sub outcomes for Your Council are; a financially stable council, an 

excellent workforce, Transforming services and Compliments and Complaints. 

 

12.2 The quarter 3 finance report is to be presented to Cabinet on 8th March, 

figures will be updated in the performance portal after publication of the report.    

 

Page 102



12.3 The number of Full Time Equivalent (FTE) employees as at the end of quarter 

3 has increased by 5 to 2702. 

 

Previous end of year FTE numbers are shown in the table below.  

Dec 20 2702 

Sept 20 2697 

June 20 2697 

March 2020  2649 

March 2019  2609 

March 2018 2547 

March 2017 2474 

March 2016 2661 

March 2015 2876 

March 2014 3089 

March 2013 3552 

 

 

12.4 The total number of complaint investigations for Q3 2020/21 was 245 similar to 

the numbers received in the corresponding period for 2019/20 (247).   

 

Period  Total 
Complaints  

Complaints 
Statutory 
Children’s 
Investigations 

Complaints 
Statutory Adults 
investigations (inc 
provider) 

Corporate 
Complaints 
Investigations 

Total 2018/19  1,281 46 150 1,085 

Q1 2019/20  314 9 25 280 

Q2 2019/20  323 10 37 276 

Q3 2019/20  247 9 22 216 

Q4 2019/20 272 12 29 231 
Total 2019/20 1,156 40 113 1,003 

Q1 2020/21 165 5 6 154 

Q2 2020/21 260 12 21 243 

Q3 2020/21 245 15 11 219 

  

12.5 There were 245 complaint investigations within the quarter. This total is in line 

with previous quarter totals (following a reduction at the start of the pandemic). 

Numbers of statutory complaints remain in line with previous totals but require 

close attention and more detailed quarterly reports and service reports are used 

to measure performance. In quarter 3 there were 219 corporate complaints, a 

slight decrease on the previous quarter. Highways complaints reduced slightly 

this quarter but remain a significant proportion of all corporate complaints 

overall.  
 

 

12.6 There were 139 compliments were received within quarter 3. This is higher than 

usual for quarter three, which typically receives lower numbers. Many 

Page 103



compliments were generated by activity undertaken in response to the 

pandemic.  

 

Period  Total Compliments   Total Comments    
Year - 2018/19  460 522 

Q1 2019/20  73 164 

Q2 2019/20  112 171 

Q3 2019/20  91 152 

Q4 2019/20 131 234 
Year - 2019/20 407 721 

Q1 2020/21 179 159 

Q2 2020/21 158 263 

Q3 2020/21 139 190 

 

13 Conclusion 

 

13.1 This performance report provides an update on the results achieved and the 

impact on delivering the outcomes for Shropshire 

  

13.2 Performance for Quarter 3 of 2020/21 has seen unprecedented changes to 

the delivery of services. Service areas who were particularly impacted by 

lockdown started to make tentative returns to ‘normality’  whilst others are 

adopting to new ways of working and delivering services.   

 

Despite these challenges there continues to be good areas of performance  

 

 Comparator data for Adult Social Care shows a positive performance with 

83% of measures performing in the top 2 quartiles. Actions are being 

taken to improve performance in lower quartile areas.   

 Waste management recycling and re-use rates continue to be above 

target  

 The number of people killed or seriously injured on our roads has seen a 

significant reduction in the past year 

 There are also challenges to services including   

 Children’s social care continues to receive more demand on services with 
higher numbers of Referrals and Looked After Children 

 Leisure, libraries, theatres and cultural attractions have all experienced a 
significant downturn in visitor numbers.  

  

List of Background Papers (This MUST be completed for all reports, but does not 

include items containing exempt or confidential information) 

Business Plan and Financial Strategy 2018/19 – 2022/23  

Page 104



Corporate Plan 2019/22   

Cabinet Member (Portfolio Holder) 

Cllr Lee Chapman 

Local Member All 

Appendices  https://shropshireperformance.inphase.com/  

 

Page 105

https://shropshireperformance.inphase.com/


This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 107

Agenda Item 13
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	6 Scrutiny Items
	7 The Cliffe Designation as Local Nature Reserve
	8 Strategic Development Framework
	9 Financial Monitoring Report Quarter 3 2020/2021
	10 Hackney Carriage Table of Fares
	Appendix A - Revised Hackney Carriage Table of Fares
	Appendix B - Current Hackney Carriage Tables of Fares
	Appendix C - Consultation response 1 from Zone 4
	Appendix D - Consultation response 2 from Zone 4
	Appendix E - Consultation response 3 from Zone 4
	Appendix F - Notice dated 15 January 2021

	11 Quarter 3 Corporate Performance Report
	13 Shrewsbury Pitch and Putt

